FILE
Lance J.M. Steinhart, P.C. ! 692.
Attorney At Law —
1720 Windward Concourse
Suite 115 - -
Alpharetta, Georgia 30005 / /- 1//5 8 TP ’4 CE
Also Admitted in New York Telephone: (770) 232-9200
and Maryland Facsimile: (770) 232-9208
Email: Istemnhart@telecomcounsel.com
June 29, 2011
VIA OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

Renee J. Jenkins

Director of Administration

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
180 E. Broad St.

Columbus, OH 43215-3793

(614) 466-3016

Re: Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.
CLEC & CTS — ACE Certification

Dear Ms. Jenkins:

Enclosed please find for filing an original and seven (7) copies of Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.'s
Telecommunications Filing Form, Telecommunications Supplemental Application Form for Carrier Certification
and Telecommunications Retail Service Offering Form for Non-BLES Carriers.

I have also enclosed an extra copy of this letter to be date stamped and returned to me in the enclosed, selt-
addressed, postage prepaid envelope.

If you have any questions, or if I may provide you with additional information, please do not hesitate to
contact me. Thank you.

J.M. Steinhart
orney for Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.
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The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
TELECOMMUNICATIONS FILING FORM

(Effective: 01/20/2011)
This form is intended to be used with most types of required filings. It provides check boxes with rule references for the most common types of filings. It does
not replace or supersede Commission rules in any way.

In the Matter of the Application of Crexendo Business ) TRF Docket No. 90-

Solutions, Inc. ) Case No. ” - t’_.[_]_SB-TP ..4 c/é

To Provide Competitive Facilities-Based ) NOTE: Unless you have reserved a Case #, leave the “Case No” fields
and Resold Local and Interexchange Services throughout the ) BLANK.

State of Ohio

Name of Registrant(s) Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.

DBAC(s) of Registrant(s)

Address of Registrant(s) 1615 South 52nd Street, Tempe, Arizona §5281

Company Web Address www.crexendo.com

Regulatory Contact Person(s) Jeff Kom, Chief Legal Officer Phone (801} 227-0004 Fax (801)426-6712
Regulatory Contact Person’s Email Address jkom{@storesonline.com

Contact Person for Annual Report Jeff Kom, Chief Legal Officer Phone (801} 227-0004
Address (if different from above)

Consumer Contact Information Patricia Creviston, Customer Support Manager Phone (866) 621-6111
Address (if different from above)

Motion for protective order included with filing? [[] Yes DJ No
Motion for waiver(s) filed affecting this case? [ ] Yes [X] No [Note: Waivers may toll any automatic timeframe. ]

Notes:

Section I and II are Pursuant to Chapter 4901:1-6 OAC

Section 1l - Carrier to Carrier is Pursuant to 4901:1-7 OAC, and Wireless is Pursuant to 4501;1-6-24 OAC,
Section TV — Attestation

(1) Indicate the Carrier Type and the reason for submitting this form by checking the boxes below.

(2) For requirements for various applications, see the identified section of Ohio Administrative Code Section 4901
and/or the supplemental application form noted.

(3) Information regarding the number of copies required by the Commission may be obtained from the Commission’s
web site at www,phco.ohio.gov under the docketing information system section, by calling the docketing division
at 14-466-4093, or by visiting the docketing division at the offices of the Commission.

{4) An Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier (ILEC) offering basic local exchange service (BLES) outside its traditional
service area should choose CLEC designation when proposing to offer BLES outside its traditional service area or
when proposing to make changes to that service.

All Filings that result in a change to one or more tariff pages require, at a minimum, the

following exhibits.
Exhibit Description:
A The tariff pages subject to the proposed change(s) as they exist before the change(s)
B The Tariff pages subject to the proposed change(s), reflecting the change, with the change(s)
marked in the right margin.
C A short description of the nature of the change(s), the intent of the change(s), and the
customers affected.
D A copy of the notice provided to customers, along with an affidavit that the notice was
provided according to the applicable rule(s). |
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Section 1 - Part 1 - Common Filings

Carrier Type | For Profit [ I Not For Profit | [ ] CLEC
[T Other (explain below) IEIEC IEIEC -
.. ATA I-6- ATA 1-6-14(H} ATA 1-6-14(H)
Ch‘an‘ge terms & conditions of 14¢E) — (Auto 30 days) (Auto 30 days)
existing BLES (Auto 30 days)
Introduce non-recurring charge., L[] ATA 1.6-14(H)
surcharge, or fee to BLES {Auto 30 days)
[J ATA i-6- LI ATA 16-7400 | [ ATA 15-1401)
Introduce or Increase Late Payment 1411 {Auto 30 days) {Auto 30 days)
{Auto 30 days)
[ zrA 1-6-
Revisions to BLES Cap. 14¢F)
(0 day Notice)
Introduce BLES or expand local L1 zTA -6 L] zTA _Ll]_-5-14 1) | L] zra _L)_I.-6-14 el
. . 14¢H) (0 day Notice) {0 day Notice)
service area {calling area) (0 day Notice)
Notice of no obligation to construct L] ?TA 1-6- Ll zTA M@
facilities and provide BLES 2y (0 day Notice)
(0 day Notice)
[ TRF i-6- [T TRF 1-¢- [J TRF I-6-14(G}
Change BLES Rates 14(F) 14(F)(4) (0 day Notice)
{0 day Notice) {0 day Notice)
[TBLS /-6-14
To obtain BLES pricing flexibility (Ci(1)c)
Suto 30 days) O
. ACB 1-6-32 ACR 1-6-32
Change in boundary (Auto 14 days) (Auto 14 days)
Expand service operation aréa ] TRF 1-6-08(Gj(0 day)
BLES withdrawal L1 ZTA L6-258)
{0 day Notice)
Other* (explain)

Section I — Part II - Customer Notification Offerings Pursuant to Chapter 4901:1-6-7 OAC

Type of Notice Direct Mail Bill Insert Bill Notation | Electronic Mail
[ 15-day Notice ] L] L] L]
[ 30-day Notice O 1 & [
Date Notice Sent:
Section I — Part IIT -TOS Offerings Pursuant to Chapter 4901:1-6-22 QAC
108 Introduce New Tariff Change | Price Change Withdraw
] 108 [ ] | O
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Section I — Part I — Carrier Certification - Pursuant to Chapter 4901:1-6-08, 09 & 10 OAC

ILEC CLEC Carrier’s CESTC CETC

. . (Out of Not
Certification Territory) Offering
BLES
] ACE /-6- ACE /- |[J ACE 1-6- | [J ACE 1.6- | [] UNC/-6-09
* See Supplemental 08 6-08 08 10 * Non-Auto)

form * (Auto 30- *(Auto 30 *(Auto 30 (Auto 30

day) day) day) day)

*Supplemental Certification forms can be found on the Commission Web Page,

Section IT — Part II — Certificate Status & Procedural

Carrier’s Not

Certificate Status ILEC CLEC Offering BLES
) [] ABN /-6-26 [T ABN 7-6-26

Abandon all Services (Auto 30 days) (Auto 30 days)

. [] ACN 7-6-29(B) {1 ACN 1-6-29(B) 1 C10 1-6-29(C)
*

Change of Official Name (Auto 30 days) (Auto 30 days) (0 day Notice)

. i (] ACO 1-6-29¢E) [J ACO 1-6-29(E} (] c1o 1-6-29(C)
*

Change in Ownership (Auto 30 days) {Auata 30 days) (0 day Notice)
Mereer * Ll AMT -6-29¢) | [0 AMT 1-6-29¢E) | [ CIO 1-6-29(C)
& (Auto 30 days) (Auto 30 days) (0 day Notice)

. L] ATC 7-6-29(B; CT ATC 1-6-29(B) [ CIO 1-6-29(C)
*
Transfer & Certificate (Auto 30 days) (Auto 30 days) (0 day Notice)

Transaction for transfer or lease
of property, plant or business *

[ ATR 1-6-29/B)
{Auto 30 days)

L] ATR 7-6-29(B}
{Auto 30 days)

] CIO 1-6-29¢C)
(0 day Notice)

* Other exhibits may be required under the applicable rule(s). ACN, ACO, AMT, ATC,
ATR and CIO applications see the 4901:1-6-29 Filing Requirements on the Commission's

Web Page for a complete list of exhibits.

Section ITT — Carrier to Carrier (Pursuant to 4901:1-7), and Wireless (Pursuant to 4901:1-6-24)

CLEC

Carrier to Carrier ILEC

Interconnection agreement, or amendment [] NAG 1-7-07 L1 NAG 1-7-07

to an approved agreement {Auto 90 day) {Auto 20 day)
. ] ARB J-7-09 [TARB 1-7-09

Request for Arbitration (Non-Auto) (Non-Auto)

Introduce or change c-t-¢ service tarifts,

L1 ATA [-7-14
{Auto 30 day)

C] ATA 1-7-14

{Auto 30 day)

Request rural carrier exemption, rural carrier

] UNCI-7-04 or 05

suspension or modification (Non-Auto)

Changes in rates, terms & conditions to Pole | [ ] UNC [-7-23(B)

Attachment, Conduit Occupancy and (Non-Auto)

Rights-of-Way.
LIRrcc LINAG

Wireless Providers See 4901:1-6-24 {Registration & [Interconnection Agreement or Amendment]
Change in (Auto 90 days)
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Section I'V. — Attestation

Registrant hereby attests to its compliance with pertinent entries and orders issued by the Commission.

AFFIDAVIT
Compliance with Commission Rules

I am an officer/agent of the applicant corporation, Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc., and am authorized to make this statement on its
behalf.

Please Check ALL that apply:

P31 attest that these tariffs comply with all applicable rules for the state of Qhio. [ understand that larifl notification filings do
not imply Commission approval and that the Commission’s rules as modified and clarified [rom time to time, supersede any
contradictory provisions in our tariff. ' We will fully comply with the rules of the state 01" Ohic and understand that noncompliance
can result in various penalties, including the suspension of our certificate o operate within the state of Ohio.

[] 1 attest that customer notices accompanying this filing form were sent to affected customers, as spuuhcd in Sceetion 11,

accordance with Rule 4901:1-6-7, Ohio Administrative Code.

[ declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

] , Lhep LL"
Executed on 173 i & x)u,;f L2011 at Tempe, Atiro Cbn

atiia

Te [ ChiefLegal Officfr

e This affidavii is required for everv tariff-affecting filing.  Itfmal be signed by colgsef or an officer of the applicant, or an authorized ugent
of the applicant.

VYERIFICATION

I, Jeff Korn verify that [ have utilized the Telecommunications Filing Form for most proceedings provided by the Commission and
that all of the informathen submitted here, and all additional information submitted in connection with this case, is true and correct
to the Kest of my kngwledge.

; [1\

, (Date) yT ¥4/ if .2011
i 0!1&, Chiel Lggal Ollig

r !

Verification isxequfred for every filing. It may be signed by counsel or an officer of the applicant, or an authorized agent of the applicant.

Send your campleted Application Form, inclading all required attachments as well as the required numiber of copies, to:

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
Attention: Docketing Bivision -
180 East Broad Street, Columbus, OH 43215-3793
Or
Make such filing electronically as directed in Case No 06-900-AU-WVR



The Public Utilities Comimnission of Ohio
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SUPPLEMENTAL APPLICATION FORM

for CARRIER CERTIFICATION

(Effective: 09/19/2007)
(Pursuant fo Case Nos. 06-1344-TP-ORD and 06-1345-TP-ORD}
NOTE: This SUPPLEMENTAL form must be used WITH the
TELECOMMUNICATIONS APPLICATION FORM for ROUTINE PROCEEDINGS.

TRF Docket No. 90-
Case No. _ - _ -TP -

In the Matter of the Application of Crexendo Business
Solutions, Inc.

To Provide Competitive Facilities-Based

and Resold Local and Interexchange Services throughout the
State of Ohio

S N et Ve

Name of Registrant(s) Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.
DBA(s) of Registrant(s)
Address of Registrant(s) 1615 South 32nd Street, Tempe, Arizona 85281

Motion for protective order included with filing? [J Yes X No
Motion for waiver(s) filed affecting this case? [] Yes [ No [Note: waiver(s) tolls any automatic timeframe]

List of Required Exhibits
Tariffs: (Include all that apply)
[] Interexchange Tariff [J Local Tariff

NDTE Aﬂ Facﬂme Based carners must ﬂie an Access Tariff

Description of Services o
B’ Both Resold and Facihtles—based .

X Service provisioned via Resale .';,. Serwce pm\nsmned via Facnmes
B Description of Proposed Services X Statement about the provision of E Description of the proposed
CTS services market area
Explanation of how the proposed B<] Description of the class of customers (e.g., residence, business) that the
services in the proposed market apphicani intends to serve

area are in the public interest.
Business Requirements
Evidence of Registration with: [ Ohio Department of Taxation [<] Ohio Secretary of State' &
Cerificate of Goed Standing
Documentation attesting to the applicant’s financial viability, including the following:

B An executive Summary describing the applicant's current financial condition, liquidity, and capital resources. Describe
internaily generated sources of cash and external funds avaitable to support the applicant's operations that are the
subject of this certification application.

X Copy of financial statements {(actual and pro forma income statement and a balance sheet). Indicate if financial
statements are based on a certain geographical area(s) or information in other jurisdictions

X1 Documentation to support the applicant's cash and funding sources.
Documentation attesting to the applicant’s managerial ability and corporate structure, including the following:

Documentation attesting to the applicant's technical and managerial expertise relative to the proposed service
offering(s} and proposed service area

List of names, addresses, and phone numbers of officers and directors, or partners.
Documentation indicating the applicant's corporate structure and ownership

! Certification from Ohio Secretary of State (domestic or foreign corporation, authorized use of fictitious name, etc.), and
Certificate of Good Standing is required.
Page 5



Documentation attesting to the applicant's managerial ability and corporate structure (cont’d);
Bd Verification of compliance with any affiliate transaction requirements
Documentation attesting to the applicant's proposed interactions with other Carriers
Explanation as to whether rates are derived through {check all applicable):
[ interconnection agreement U retail tariffs resale tariffs
[ Explanation as to which service areas company currently has an approved interconnection or resale agreement.

B A notarized affidavit accompanied by bona fide letters requesting negotiation pursuant to Sections 251 and 252 of the
Telecommunications Act of 1996 and a proposed timeline for construction, interconnection, and offering of services
ta end users,

Documentation attesting to the applicant's proposed interactions with Customers

B Explanation of whether applicant intends to provide Local Services which require payment in advance of Customer
receiving dial tone.

Dd Tariff sheet(s) listing the services and associated charges that must be paid prior to customer receiving dial tone (if
applicable)

A sample copy of the customer biil and disconnection notice the applicant plans to utilize.

Far CLECsS, List of Qhig ILEC Exchanges the applicant intends to serve
(Use spreadsheet from: hitp://www.puc.state.oh.us/pucoiforms/form.cfm?doc  id=357)

if Mirroring the entire ILEC exchanges for both serving area and local calling areas, tariffs may incorporate by
reference. If not mirroring the entire ILEC serving and/or local calling areas, the CLEC shall specifically define their
service and local calling areas in the tariff.

[
Bd Provide a copy of any customer application form required in order to establish residential service, if applicable.
1
]

Affidavit

I am an authorized representative of the applicant, Crexende Business Solutions, Inc., and | am authorized to make this statement on
its behalf. | attest that | have utilized the Telecommunications Supplemental Application Farm for Garrier Certification provided by the
Commission, and that all of the infermation submitted here, and all additional infarmation submitted in connection with this case, is true
and corregt.

L ATRTE AT,

Executed on WL at FemperArizona

il
JTHY% , {bhlef Legd| Officer

\J



http://www.puc.state,oh,us/puco/forms/form,cfm?dQC

The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
TELECOMMUNICATIONS RETAIL SERVICE OFFERING FORM
For Non-BLES Carriers

Per the Commission’s 01/19/2011 “Implementation Order” in Case No. 10-1010-TP-ORD
(Effective: 01/20/2011)

Company Name Crexendo Business Solutions. Inc.
Company Address _1615 South 52nd Street, Tempe, Arizona 85281
Company Web Address  www.crexendo.com
Regulatory Contact Person Jeff Ko, Phone (801) 227-0004 Fax (801) 426-6712
Regulatory Contact Person’s Email Address jkomn@storesonline.com
Contact Person for Annual Report Jeif Korn Phone (801) 227-0004 Fax (801) 426-6712
Consumer Contact Information  Patricia Creviston Phone (866) 621-6111 Fax (801) 226-8848
TRF Docket No. - -TP-
I. Company Type (Check all applicable):
KINon-BLES CLEC  [IXC []Other (explain)
II. Services offered (Check all applicable):
BJ Toll services (intrastate)
& Local Exchange Service (i.e., residential or business bundles)
[ Other (explain)
I11. Tariffed Provisions/Services (To the extent offered, check all applicable and attach tariff
pages):
O Toll Presubscription
[ Intrastate Special and Switched Access Services to Carriers (facilities-based local carriers only)*
L N-1-1 Service
L} pole Attachment and Conduit Occupancy
0 Pay Telephone Access Lines
2 Inmate Operator Service
[ Telephone Relay Service
*Access service tariffs shall be maintained separately and are subject to the Commission’s carrier-to-
carrier rules found in Chapter 4901:1-7, Ohio Administrative Code.
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Part IV. — Attestation

Carrier hereby attests to its compliance with pertinent entries and orders issued by the Commission.

[ am an officer/agent of the carrier/telephone company, Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc,, and am authorized to make statements on its
behalf,

I understand that Telephone companies have certain responsibilities to its customers under the Telecormmunications Rules (Chio Adm,
Code 4901:1-6). These responsibilities inctude: warm fine service; not committing unfair or deceptive acts and practices; truth in bitling
requitements; and slamming and preferred carrier freeze requirements. We will comply with the rules of the state of Ohio and
understand that non-compliance can resultin vartous penalties, including the suspension of our certificate to operate within the state of
Ohio,

[ declare under penfilty §f perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

_, Chief Legal Oficer




LIST OF EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT A — Copy of applicants proposed tariffs

EXHIBIT B - Description of proposed services

EXHIBIT C — Statement about the provision of CTS services
EXHIBIT D— Description of the proposed Market Area

EXHIBIT E — Explanation of how the proposed services in the proposed market area are in the public
interest

EXHIBIT F — Description of the class of customers (e.g., residence, business) that the applicant intends to
scrve

EXHIBIT G - Statement affirming that the registrant has notified the Qhio Department of Taxation of its
intent to conduct operations as a telephone utility in the State of Ohio

EXHIBIT H - Certification from Ohio Secretary of State and Certificate of Good Standing

EXHIBIT I- Summary describing Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.’s current financial condition, liquidity
and capital resources. Describe internally generated sources of cash and external funds
available to support the applicant’s operations that are the subject of this certification
application

EXHIBIT J - Cdpy of financial statements (actual and pro forma income statement and a balance sheet).
Indicate if financial statements are based on a certain geographical area(s) or information in
other jurisdictions

EXHIBIT K — Documentation to support the applicant’s cash and funding sources

EXHIBIT L — Documentation attesting to the applicant’s technical and managerial expertise relative to
the proposed service offering (s) and proposed service area

EXHIBIT M -List of names, addresses, and phone numbers of officers and directors, or partners
EXHIBIT N — Documentation indicating the Applicant’s corporate structure and ownership
EXHIBIT O - Information regarding any similar operations in other states

EXHIBIT P — Verification that the applicant will maintain local telephony records separate and apart
from any other accounting records in accordance with the GAAP

EXHIBIT Q — Verification of compliance with any affiliate transaction requirements

EXHIBIT R — Explanation as to which service areas company currently has an approved interconnection
or resale agreement



EXHIBIT S — A notarized affidavit accompanied by bona fide letters requesting negotiation pursuant to
Sections 251 and 252 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and a proposed timeline for
construction, interconnection and offering of services to end users

EXHIBIT T — Explanation of whether applicant intends to provide Local Services which require
payment in advance of Customer receiving dial tone

EXHIBIT U — Tariff sheet(s) listing the services and associated charges that must be paid prior to
customer receiving dial tone (if applicable)

EXHIBIT V- A sample copy of the customer bill and disconnection notice the applicant plans to utilize

EXHIBIT W- Provide a copy of any customer application form required in order to establish residential
service, if applicable

EXHIBIT X- For CLECs, List of Ohio ILEC Exchanges the applicant intends to serve (Use spreadsheet
from: http://www.puc.state.ch.us/puco/forms/form.cfm?doc_id=357)

EXHIBIT Y- If Mirroring the entire ILEC exchanges for both serving area and local calling areas,
tariffs may incorporate by reference. If not mirroring the entire ILEC serving and/or local
calling areas, the CLEC shall specifically define their service and local calling areas in the
tariff.

EXHIBIT Z — Welcome Letter


http://www.puc.state.oh.us/puco/forms/form.cfm?doc_id=357

EXHIBIT A — Copy of applicants proposed tariffs

Detariffed services are regulated but not required to be filed in a tariff. A complete description of the
rates & terms and conditions that are offered by the Company can be found on the Company’s website at
www.crexendo.com,


http://www.crexendo.com

EXHIBIT B - Description of Proposed Services

Crexendo by this Application seeks authority to provide resold and facilities-based/UNE local exchange and
interexchange telecommunications services to the public by initially reselling services and purchasing
unbundlied network elements (UNE) obtained from and utilizing facilities provided by facilities-based carriers.
At this time the company has no plans to install facilities in the State of Ohio, but may do so in the future. For
local exchange service, Crexendo will initially mirror the existing local calling areas of incumbent local
exchange telephone companies. Crexendo seeks authority to provide the following services:

1. Interexchange (switched and dedicated services):

A. 1+ and 101 XXXX outbound dialing;
B. 800/888 toll-free inbound dialing;

C. Calling cards; and

D. Data services.

2. Local Exchange:

A.

=Fe

Local Exchange Services that will enable customers to originate and terminate local calls in the
local calling area served by other LECs, including local dial tone and custom calling features.
Switched local exchange services such as flat-rated and measure-rated local services; vertical
services, carrier access, and any other switched local services that currently exist or will exist in the
future.

Non-switched local services (e.g., private line) that currently exist or will exist in the future.

Centrex and/or Centrex-like services that currently

exist or will exist in the future.
Digital subseriber line, ISDN, and other high capacity line services.

Crexendo seeks authorty to provide local exchange services initially throughout the State in the areas served by
AT&T Ohio and interexchange service throughout the State.



EXHIBIT C —~ Statement about the provision of CTS services

The company will be including CTS services within its CLEC filing herein.


file:////ithin

EXHIBIT D- Deseription of the proposed Market Area

The applicant proposes to provide local service in all areas in the State of Ohio serviced by AT&T Ohio, and
interexchange service statewide.



EXHIBIT E- Explanation of how the proposed services in the proposed
market area are in the public interest

Granting this application will promote the public interest by increasing competition in the provision of
telecommunications services in Ohio.

Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. will provide customers high quality, cost effective telecommunications
service, with an emphasis on customer service. In addition to driving prices closer to costs, thereby ensuring
just and reasonable rates, competition also promotes efficiency in the delivery of services and in the
development of new services. These very real benefits work to maximize the public interest by providing
continuing incentives for carriers to reduce costs, while simultaneously promoting the availability of potentially
desirable services.



EXHIBIT F- Description of the class of customers (e.g., residence, business)
that the applicant intends to serve

The applicant intends to serve residential and business customers.



EXHIBIT G - Statement affirming that the registrant has notified the Ohio Department of Taxation of its
intent to conduct operations as a telephone utility in the State of Ohio

See Attached



Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.
1615 South 52nd Street
Tempe, Arizona 85281
(801) 227-0004 (Phone)

May 11, 2011

Ohio Department of Taxation
¢/o Public Utility Section
21% Floor

30 East Broad Street
Columbus, OH 43215-3793
{800) 282-1780

RE: Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.
Dear Sir/Madam:

Please be advised that the above referenced corporation intends to provide telecommunications service in the
State of Ohio after receiving approval of its application filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

2/

Chief Legal Officer
Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.



EXHBIT H - Certification from Qhio Secretary of State and Certificate of Good Standing

See Attached



Doc ID --> 200922901488

0G0

DATE: DOCUMENT I DESGRIPTION FILING EXPED PENALTY GERT

COPY

(_ STATE OF OHIO
\ CERTIFICATE

I Ohio Secretary of State, Jennifer Brunner

1876921

It is hereby certified that the Secretary of State of Ohio has custody of the business records for
CREXENDO BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, INC

and, that said business records show the filing and recording of:

Documeni(s) Document No(s):
FOREIGN LICENSE/FOR-PROFIT 200922901488

' Authorization to transact business in Ohio is hereby given, until surrender, expiration or
cancellation of this license.

Witness my hand and the seal of
the Secretary of State at Columbus,
Ohic this 17th day of August, A.D.

Gy e/ 2009.
Py L) : é
United States of America g; ?
State of Chio
Office of the Secretary of State Ohio Secretary of State
‘ L . . . |

08/18/2009 200922901488  FOREIGN LICENSE/FOR-PROFIT (FLF) 125.00 00 00 .00 00
Receipt
This is not a bill Please do ot remit payment.
NATIONAL CORPORATE SERVIGES, (NC.
2 CLUB CENTRE CT., 5TE. 5
EDWARDSVILLE, IL 62025
Ji——ini— e — I e -

Page 1




Expedite this FOMM: seen o

Prescribed by 5

The Ohio Secretary of Srare #lail Fonn to one of tha Following:
Central Ohio: (614) 466-3910 OY PO Box 13590
Toll Free: 1-877-50S-FILE {1-877-767-3453} b Columbus, OH 43216

-~

- i
@ PC Box 670
[ Na Columbus, OH 43216

—W0An-EQE-Slataob UE
e-mail. bussen/@sos.slate.oh.us

FOREIGN CORPORATION APPLICATION FOR LICENSE  RECEIVED
OR REGISTRATICN OF CORPORATION NAME
(For Foreign Profit or Nenprofit) AUG 17 2009

THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY STATES THE FOLLOWING: SECR ETARY OF STATE

{CHECK ONLY ONE (1) BOX)
(1) Foreign Corporation (2) Registrabion of Corporate Name by Uniicensed Forsign Corparation
[F)For-Profit j15:.FLm [ original (1s8-rco)
[nenprofit ¢15z-FLm ORC1703]  [7] Renewal (172-RNR (RCR)) ORC 1703
[Registranon Ng.)
Eillng Fas §125 .00 Filing Fee $50.00

Complety the general information in this section for the box checked shave. |

Corparate Name o nﬂm f‘({t}ﬁ;ﬂ(’ﬁ JB/L}ZLI'M@ Ty

Under the Laws of the State of 33 z
{Home State)
Date of lncarporation in Hame State 4 /{1014
(Date}

The corporation's pringipal office is located at

1303 N Research Way

{Straat) NOTE: P.O. Box Addresses ars NOT acceptabia

Orem uT 84097

(City) {Stats) (Zip Code)

The carporate purpose it proposes lo exercise in the state of Ohio are as follows: {Please provide a brief but specific
description; a genaral purpose clause is not sufficient)

P erwr Q&g\mﬂ & inroc..é.cqs'\-""\j

The corporation is camying on or doing business.

Dcruck here if additfonal provisions are aitached

530 Page t of 3 Lest Radged: Jap, 2002
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Doc ID «-> 200922901488

r

Complake the informatien in this section i box (1) is checked. |

The corparation hereby appaints the following as its statutory agent upan wham process against the corporation may
be served in Ohio

National Registered Agents

(ame}

145 Baker St

(Streat) WOTE: P.O, Box Adds am NOT ol

Marion Qhio 43302

{Cay) (Stote} (Zip Code)

The entdy above imevocably consants Lo service of pracess on the agent listed abova as long as the autharity of the
agent sentinues, and to service of proceas upon the OHIQ SECRETARY OF STATE if:

A. the agent cannot be found or
B, the above listed falla to designate another agont when required 1o 9o 8o, o
C. the ahove stated regiatration to do buginess n Ohio expires or ls cancelled

Eompiete the information in thiy section I profit 15 checkad in box (1) |

The application is made 1o secure a Epermmenl Diemparary license
The corporation's principal office within Ohio #s to be locatad in ﬂCorpurau‘on will not have an office
in Ohia
{Stroet) NOTE: P.O. Box Ada) Bre MOT sccep
Ohio
(Chy) {County) (Stats) (Zip Coda)
Has the carporation oained o license to fransact business in Ohior at any time in the past? D Yes E Ho
If yes, prior License No issued
(Date}
The date on which the corporation began transacting business in Dhio
Floate _Z-(0-D4
QR
D'Wil begin business upon approval of application
Isthis application being mads to enable the corporation to prosacute or defend a legal action? D Yes No
Complete Ute infarmgtion in thig section .‘fnog—ﬂ-g checked in box (1), |
The localion of its principal office in the state of Chic is
(Street] NOTE: P.O. Box Adah ara NOT nceey
Ohio
(Ciy) (County) (Edatn) ([ Cade)
(Pursuant to QRC 1703.27 must have an Ohio address)
530 Page 2 5f3 Last Revised: Jan. 2002
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"IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the corpoaration has causad this application 1o be executed by an authorized

officer on 8/ .3 / Drt?a?le)

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

- . t
.\ .]W@'\ %-YL(EC.:‘EV‘} Jbaing first duly swomn, deposes and says that heishe is the
(Name of Officar)

G0 o Crevends Bines Solut e, e

(utle)
the corporation described in the foragoing application, and that the statements contained in said application are true and
correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Signature: ,-2"4j

-

Name: Jonathan Erickson

Swom to before me and subscribed in my presence, G}?}/D ?
(date) -
O, |
A TN W
SSOCE e A
{Natary Public) N
NOTARY SEAL Explration date of Notary's Commission: 0% - 10 L’O
[date)
9. STACY F ALLRED
U MOTARY AALC ST 0P VI
= 1634 BOUTH 300 WEAT
&7 PROVO, UTAH sS40
COMM. EXP 08-05-2010
530 Page 3 of3 Last Raviged: Jan. 2002

Page 4



Doc 1D -->

200922901488

STATE OF ARIZONA

Office of the
CORPORATION COMMISSION

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING

To all to whom these presenfs shall come, greeting:

I, Mictael P. Kearns, Interim Executive Director of the Arizona Corporation Commission,
do hereby certify thal

¥HCREXENDO BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, INC. ***

& domestic carporation organixed vnder the laws of the State of Arizona, did incorporate on
Aprif 14, 2008,

1 further certify that according to the records of the Arizona Corporation Commission, as
of the date set forth hereunder, the said corporation is not administratively dissolved for
faifurs to comply with the provisions of the Arizong Business Corporation Act; and that its
most recent Annual Report, subject to the provisions of A.R.S. sections 10-122, 10-123,
10-125 & 10-1522, has been dellvered to tha Arizona Corporation Commission for filing; and
that the said corporation has not filed Articles of Dissolution as of the date of this certificate.

This certificate relates only to the legai existence of the above namod entity as of the date
issued. This certificate Is not to be constrved as an endorsemant, recommendation, or
notice of approval of the enfity's condition or business activities and practices.

IN WITNESS WHEREGQOF, | have hereunto sef my hand and sffixed
the official seal of the Arizona Corporation Commission, Done at
Phoenix, the Capital, this 15th Day of July, 2009, A. D.

Interim Executive Direcfor

Order Number: IT13s

Page 5




United States of America
State of Ohio
Office of the Secretary of State

1, Jon Husted, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected, qualified and present
acting Secretary of State for the State of Ohio, and as such have custody of the
records of Ohio and Foreign business entities; that said records show
CREXENDO BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, INC, an Arizona corporation, having
qualified to do business within the State of Ohio on August 17, 2009 under
License No. 1876921 is currently in GOOD STANDING upon the records of this

office.

Witness my hand and the seal of the
Secretary of State at Columbus, Ohio
this 29th day of June, A.D. 2011

i

Ohio Secretary of State

Validation Namber: V2011180J59611



EXHIBIT T - Summary describing Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.’s
current financial condition, liquidity and capital resources. Describe internally
generated sources of cash and external funds available to support the applicant’s
operations that are the subject of this certification application

See Exhibit J



EXHIBIT J - Copy of financial statements (actual and pro forma income statement
and a balance sheet). Indicate if financial statements are based on a certain
geographical area(s) or information in other jurisdictions

Crexendo is a wholly owned subsidiary of iMergent, Inc. (*iMergent”™), a publicly traded company.
See copy of iMergent's SEC Form 10-K for period ended December 31, 2010 which is attached hereto
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10-K 1 iig_10khm ANNUAL REPORT

- UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

b ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF
THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010:
Or .
e  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR IS{dj OF

THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

iMergent, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 001-32277 87-0591719
{State or Other Jurisdiction (Counission (LR.S. Employer
of Incorporation or File Number) ldentiication No.)
Organization)

1613 South 52+¢ Street, Tempe, AZ 85281
{Address of Principal Executive Office) (Zip Code)

(623) 242-5959
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)

Not Applicable
{Former name, former dddress and former fiscal year, if changed since last repori)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which
' registered
Cormmon Stock, par value $0.001 per share New York Siock Exchange -
AmexSecuritics

1 of 99
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Large acceleratcd

Securities registered pursuant te Section 12(g) of the Act:

(Title of Class)
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act,
es” Nob

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section ]5(d) of the Exchange
Act. Yes” Nob

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all repdrts required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
file such reports), and (2} has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yesp No ™

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website, if any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursoant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter)
during the preceding 12 momhs (or for such shorter pcrmd that the registrant was required to submit and post siich

files). Yes " No~

Tndicate by.check mark if disclosure of délinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this chapter) is
not contained herein, and will not be contained, fo the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information
statements incorporated by reference in Part Il of this Form 10-X or any amendment to ﬂ]is Form10-K. b

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company.

) o -Acceleratedfiler o Nom-accelerated o Smaller reporting. b
filer” ‘ filer company
Indicate by cﬁeck mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act}). Yes” No b

The aggregate market value of the common stock held by nonaffiliates m“ the regisfrant as of June 30, 2010 (end of'the
Company’s second most recent fiscal quarter) was approximately $27,728,000.

The number of shares of the registrant’s common stock outstanding as of February 28, 2011 was 10,645,135,

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Staiemnent to be used by the registrant in connection with its 2011 Annual Meeting of
Stockholdets and to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the close of the fiscal year are
incorporated by reference into Part Il of this Anmual Report on Form 10-K.
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hiip:ifwww.sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/ 107 5736/00013544831100...

3/1]/2011 5 52 PM


http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1075736/00013544881100

o ke T s e

R PPV

e Lt 4 AR T b A AL b0 i e ot 4588 b L L

iig 10k htm

TABLE OF CONTENTS
PART 1
PAGE
ITEM 1. BUSINESS 1
ITEM
1A.  RISK FACTORS 13
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 29
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 29
TTEM
4, REMOVED AND RESERVED 29
PART 1I
ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
5. AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 30
ITEM o
6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 33
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
ITEM 7, OF QPERATIONS 34
ITEM _
7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS 55
ITEM _
8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 56
CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
ITEM 9. FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 83
ITEM
9A.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 83
ITEM
98.  OTHER INFORMATION 84
PART TII
ITEM
10.  DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 85
ITEM
1l.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 85
ITEM SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
12.  RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 85
ITEM CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
13.  INDEPENDENCE 85
ITEM _
14,  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 85
PART IV
ITEM |
15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 86

htip://www sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1075736/0001354488110¢..,

30f99 3/11/2011 5:52 PM



http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1075736/00013544881100

ﬁ
:
§
!

¢
:
5
i
i
t
!

iig_10khitm http://www sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/ 107 5736/00013544881100...

4 0f99

PART I

Throughout this Anrual Report, we refer to iMergent, Inc., together with its subsidiaries, as “we,” “us,” “our
Company” or “the Company.” As used in this Annual Report, “StoresOnline™ is a registered trademark ofour Company in the
United States and other countries. All other product names are or may be trademarks of, and are used to identify the products
and services of, their respective owners,

THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K. CONTAINS FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. THESE
STATEMENTS RELATE TO FUTURE EVENTS CR OUR FUTURE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE. IN SOME CASES, YOU
CAN IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS BY TERMINOLOGY SUCH AS “MAY,” “WILL,” “*SHOULD,”
“EXPECT.” “PLAN,” “INTEND,” “ANTICIFATE,” “BELIEVE,” “ESTIMATE,” “PROJECT,” “PREDICT,” “POTENTIAL”
OR *CONTINUE” (INCLUDING THE NEGATIVE OF SUCH TERMS), OR OTHER SIMILAR TERMINOLOGY. THESE
STATEMENTS ARE ONLY ESTIMATIONS, AND ARE BASED UPON VARICUS ASSUMPTIONS THAT MAY NOT BE
REALIZED. ACTUAL EVENTS OR RESULTS MAY DIFFER MATERIALLY. IN EVALUATING THESE STATEMENTS,
YOU SHOULD SPECIFICALLY CONSIDER VARIOUS FACTORS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TQ, THE RISKS
QUTLINED BELOW UNDER ITEM 1A, THESE FACTORS MAY CAUSE OUR ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER
MATERIALLY FROM ANY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENT.

ALTHOUGH WE BELIEVE THAT THE ESTIMATIONS REFLECTED IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS ARE REASONABLE, WE CANNOT GUARANTEE FUTURE RESULTS, LEVELS OF ACTIVITY,
PERFORMANCE OR ACHIEVEMENTS. MOREOVER, NEITHER WE NOR ANY OTHER PERSCON ASSUMES
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS OF THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. WE
DO NOT INTEND TO UPDATE ANY OF THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THIS
ANNUAL REPORT TO CONFORM SUCH STATEMENTS TO ACTUAL RESULTS OR TO CHANGES IN OUR
EXPECTATIONS, UNLESS REQUIRED BY LAW.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

We provide a variety of cloud-based infrastructure services to entreprencurs and small and medium-sized businesses.
Our services inchude high-guality voice and messaging services over broadband networks, Do-K-For-Me and Do-It- Yourseif
content rmanagement and website building tools, ontine marketing, online lead generation, e-commerce technology, and training
solutions that enable entreprenewrs and small and mediurn—sized businesses to build and maintain an effective online
presence. Our scrvices are designed to help Increase the predictability of success for online businesses.

Our primary web service offerings are designed to meet the needs of entreprenewrs and smail and mediume-sized
businesses anywhere along their lifecycles. Our Do-H-Yourself package includes our rebust content management and website
buitding solution, fully enabled e-commerce package, online marketing tools, and educational training modules. In addition to
our primary service offerings for the Do-I-Yourself customer base, we also offer a variety of premium services to the Do-It-

" Yourself customer such as initial site design and bunild, logo design, drop-shipper/supplier integration, and a variety of search

engine optimization and link building packages.

Our Do-J-For-Me services are comprehensive and flexible, allowing us to meet the needs of a wide variety of
customers ranging from those just establishing their online presence 1o those wanting to enhance their existing online
presence. These services include custom website design and development, search engine optimization, link building,
conversion rate optimization, paid search management, and social media management. Additionally, as the online space
continues to evolve our product and service offerings will continue to evolve, to keep our customers on the cutiing edge of the
online space.

In addition to web services, we offer a suite of high quality voice and messaging services over broadband
networks. Our smali and home office services are portable and allow our customers to make and receive phone calls almost
anywhere a broadband Internet connection is available. We transmit these calls using Voice over Imternet Protocol (VoIP)
technology, which converts voice signals into digital data packets for transmission over the Internet. At a cost effective rate,
each of our calling plans provides a number of basic features typically offered by traditional telephone service providers, plus
a wide range of enhanced features that we believe offer an attractive value proposition to our customers. '

We rely heavily on our ngtwork, which is a flexible, scalable Session Initiation Protocol (SIP) based VoIP network

3/11/2(}11 5:52 PM
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that rides on top of the Internet. This platform enables a user via a single “identity” to access and mtilize services and featires
regardless of how they are connected to the Internet. As a result, with one identity, either 2 number or user name, customers
have access to Crexendo voice, messaging, features, and personal profile information regardless of location, device, or how
they access the Internet.

3/11/2011 5:532 PM
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OUR STRATEGY

We have historicaily sold our content managernent and website building tool as a perpetual software license. During
the fourth quarier of 2010 we ransitioned approximately 80% of our sales from selling a perpetusl software license to a
Software as a Service (SaaS) model. This transition provides the foumdation for our strategy on a go forward basis, Key
elements of our strategy inchude:

Expanding Our Distribution Channels. To sell our web and hosted telecom products and services cost effectively,
we must expand our distribution channels, We have historically sold our web services through an educational seminar format,
which relies on direct mail marketing campaigas to attract attendees. We plan to expand our distribution channels through
affiliaie programs, white-label programs, strategic marketing partnerships, direct sales, and online marketing channels. We
anticipate these expanded distribution channels will provide muoltiple revenue sireams from customers across a broader
spectrurm. We expect Do-It-Yourself customers acquired through these new distribution channels to provide significant
opportunities for up-selling and cross-selling additiona] online marketing, lead generation, search engine optimization and
hosted telecom products.

Continuing to Target the Entreprenewr and Small and Medium-Sized Business Market Segmenit. We believe the
entrepreneur and small and medium-sized business market segment offers us the best opportunity for fiture growth. We believe
this is a largely underserved market with significant needs for comprehensive, affordable, and scalable solutions for their web
and telecom service requirements. Owr services are designed to be scalable so 2s 10 meet the needs of these businesses that
oftent times do not have the time, resources, or technical skilis fo fulfill themselves.

Strengthening Customer Retention. We are dedicated to enhancing customer retention and building lasting
relationships with our customers. We believe a critical element in strengthening customer retention is continucus improverment
to our content management and web-building tools, including improvements to our user interface to create a more inkuitive and
interactive experience. Wa believe education is a critical element to customer retention. One of the core features of our

“~product offering is the continuous education we provide our customers on How 6 Tdentify opportunities in the marketplace, how

to effectively design their website for optimal conversion, and how to market their website to increase traffic. We are ,
comstantly updating and expanding our education offerings to meet the needs of our customer base in this dynamic marketplace
and expect to continue to expand and diversify our educational offerings to provide up-to-date and relevant content.

Developing Complimentary Services and Technologies. We seek to develop complimentary products and services
for our customers. Cur ultimate goal is to become the leading provider of hosted solutions in the entrepreneur and small and
medium-sized business space. We currently provide web services, hosting services, online marketing services and hosted
telecom services, We expect fo expand our product offerings in the fihure to include bandwidth services, premium telecom
services such as operator setvices, conferencing services, call center services, and mobile features for both our web platform
and telecom service. Additionally, we plan to expand our educational offerings to not otly include education on online
marketing, but education on entreprenewrship and small business management.

OUR SERVICES AND PRODUCTS

Our goal s to provide a broad range of cloud-based products and services that enable entrepreneurs, and small and
medium-sized businesses to more efficiently run their business. By providing a variety of comprehensive and scalable
sclutions, we are to able sell customers regardless of where they are in the business lifegyele. Our Web and Telecom products
and services can be categorized in the following offerings:
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Website Pesign and Development

Using our proprietary software and processes we design and develop websites with “conversion” in mind. The ferm
conversion means different things to different websttes. To a lead-generation website, it means getting prospects to submit their
contact information so our sales team can contact them. For an e-commerce wehSIte conversion means getting an online
custoiner to complete an order.

Our website design packages range from a semi-custom template based design package to a completely custom design
package. We incorparate Google Analytics into every site unless the customer specifies some other system. Proper analytics
allow identification of weak spots in the conversion process. Onece weak spots are identified, the site can be adjusted to
smooth out the process and turn more prospects info customers.

Once the site is complete, we provide tutorials and tools to allow customers to make changes to their sites as often as
necessary without having to pay additional programming fees. Alternatively, custormers can elect to have us manage the changes
to their websites for an additional fee.

Search Engine OQptimizatior

There are two general aspects to Search Engine Optimizztion (“SEQ”). First, the tactical level, which includes
cenditioning a page to be relevant and search-engine friendly. Second, strategic selection of keywords and keyword
phrases. The popularity of a site plays a role in what keyword phrases a customer can compete ont versus what keyword
phrases might be ‘out of their league’. We focus on the strategic selection of keywords and only go after keywords that have
healthy search volumes and high *win’ capability. Our experience coupied with our proprietary rSAT software allow us to
strategically select the best choices for keyword phrases to target which provide the highest probability of getting high search
engine positions and drawing maximum traffic to the website. Our SEO packages include a keyword interview, strategic

_ keyword research, baseline ranking report, search engine optimization plan, and comparison ranking report.

Link Building

Link building is a critical component of off-page SEO. To be effective, a link building campaign must be done
manually. Search engines can defect links obtained via avtomated submission. Also, links rieed to come from many different
types of sites, not just one or two. Link building is closely related to search enginc optimization, as such; we carefully
synchronize all our Hink building efforts and anchor text with our search engine optimization efforts.

An effective link building effort is Jabor intensive, with no real shorteuts. We incorporate the following strategies in
our link building efforts; live directory submissions, social bookmarks, blog postings, artmle submissions, regional portals, and
leverage links,

Conversion Rate Optimization.

Convérsion is the percentage of visitors to a site that turn into action takers. A customer’s site might be an
e-commerce site, a lead generatien site, or it might have a goal of signing up members, newsletier subscribers, webinar
registrations, white paper downloads, or accessing a specific page in the site, There are many different types of success events,
and not afl websites perform equally with respect to getting visitors to take the desired actions. Sites with 2 high percentage of
action takers as compared to all traffic would be considered to have high conversion rates. For example, a lead generation
website that generates four leads out of every 100 visitors would have a conversion rate of four percent.
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Conversion Rate Optimization (CRO) is the process of making a site better at moving visitors toward
conversion. Beeanse the Internet is constantly changing, conversion rate best practices are moving targets. We specialize in
staying on top of the latest Internet developments in order to know how best to optimize a given site for conversion.

An important part of CRO is analytics. For most companies we recommend Google® Analytics because it is free and
accomplishes everything most companies need. With any analytics solution, the challenge is to confipure it properly. Qur CRO
packages are designed to ensure proper configuration of the customers” analytics solution and ongoing review of the data to
help analyze and interpret the data 1o spot trends and make course corrections.

Paid Search Management

i We offer paid search management services, such as management of Google® AdWords™ and Microsoft Advertising
adCenter™ accounts for our cusiomers.

Modert: paid search networks are incredibly sophisticated and require a tremendous amount of experience and
expertise to avoid the many potential pitfalls of paid search. We assist customers by taking a conservative approach to paid
search management. By using a combination of proprietary automation tools, split test dedicated landing pages, as well as the
practiced eye of an expert monitoring our customer accounts on a daily basis, we are able to consistently raise conversion rates
and lower the cost-per-acquisition,

e W hea i D itah

Do-I-Yourself Websites

We offer a variety of Do-It-Yourself website building and marketing solutions for entrepreneurs and smali businesses
that intend to build their own websites or enhance their websites with online marketing. These solutions include hosting
services, web building tools with e-commerce capabilities and online marketing training. Our online marketing training
courses instruct on the following SUb_TSCfS affiliate marketing, Amazon® and eBay® training, comparison shopping engines,

" competitive reconnaissance, CONversion raté optimization, keyword research, link building, localization and regionalization, -
paid search campaigns, permission marketing, search engine optimization, social media marketing, and Google® analytics.

Telecom Plans

We completed development of Phase One of our hosted telecom offering in thé fourth quarter of 2010. 'We currently
offer the following plans and equipment:

Small Office, Home Office Plans

Crexendo Adaptor Plan — this plan is a professjonal business commmnication service for small officehome office
{SOHQ}, which operates with a user”’s high speed internet cormection. The Adaptor unit supports the connection of up 10 two
analog phone devices including support of fax machines, home phones, or cordiess/wireless phones.

8 of 93 3/81/2011 5:52PM
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The Crexendo Adaptor Plan includes unlimited local and long distance calling in the 1JS/Canada using VoIP
technology. Porting of 2 local number and an audio conferencing bridge account with pin for up to 10-parties are inclhded in the
momnthly service, The user account includes a web user interface for management of voicemail, email and inbound fax. Feanmres
include 3-way calling, find me/follow me, and interactive voice response for customized greetings and routing. Toll-free
service and local number services may be added for an additionat monthly cost,

Small Business Plans

Crexendo 804 Plan — this plan is an inbound 800 comrumication service which includes a virtual office web user
interface for managing your 800 phone numbers, incoming emails, inbound fax, and voice messages. The plan inclndes an 800
mmber and free local fax number.

Crexendo Silver Plan- this plan is a professional business communication service for small offices which operates
with a business’ pre-wired internct connection or high speed internet. Silver is 1deal for small businesses going to a virtual
office. The plan includes a business desktop phone, the Crexendo 200 internet Phone which offers a 2-line display with a mem
of features including HD speaker phone, mute, hold, do-not-disturb, and multi-line support.

Silver Plan includes:

Crexendo 200 Phone - business desktop Internet phone;
Unlimited Calling - local and fong distance calling ini the US/Canada;

. Number Transfer - free porting of a local number;

‘Web Interface - manage voicemail, email and inbound fax;
Business Features — two-line support, three-way calling on the phone or ten-party through bridge, find me/follow me and
interactive voice response for business routing, consultative transfers, blind transfer, text-to- spcech support for
personalized greetings, E911 support, basic hunt groups and more; and

'Extras toll-free service and additional local number services may be added for an additional monthly cost.

L B I R

Crexendo Gold Plan— this plan is an executive business communication service for small offices which operate with
a business’ pre-wired internet or high speed internet. Gold is designed for businesses going to a virtual office or adding
knowledge-based/teleworkers.

Gold Plan includes:

Crexendo 300 - business desktop internet phone;

Unlimited Calling - local and long distance calling in the US/Canada;

Number Transfer - free porting of a local number;

Web Interface - manage voicemail, email and inbound fax;

Business Features — two-line support, three-way calling on the phone or ten-party through bridge, find me/follow me
and Interactive voice response for business routing, consultativé transfers, blind transfer, text-to-speech support for
personalized greetings, ES1] support, basic hunt groups and more; and

#  Extras - toll-free service and additional local number services may be added for an additiona] monthly cost.

* e 0 00
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Crexendo Adaptor Plan/Business Fax Plan —this plan is a professional business fux commumication service for
small business which operates with a busjoess’ pre-wired internet or high speed internet. The Adaptor unit supports the
comnection of fax machines for owbound fax, plus up to one additicnal device which could be another fax machine, a home
phone, or cordless/wireless phone.

Crexendo Adaptor Plan includes:

1500 Minutes for Fax/Calling - limited local and long distance faxing/calling in the US/Canada,

Number transfer - free parting of a local number;

Conferencing/ Andio Bridge Combo - audto conferencing bridge account with pin for up to ten-parties;

Web Interface - manage inbound faxes, voicemail, and e-mails from a single web screen assigned to each account;
and

e  Extras - toll-free, extra minutes, and local mmmber services may be added for an additional cost.

e & » &

Crexendo Communication Equipment

Crexendo 280 Internet Phone ~ this phone is a standard professional two-line business deskiop phone for making
voice over the interpet calls. Buitons include mem, do-not-disturb, held, three-way conference, directory, message waiting,
headset transition, transfer, redial, and volume controls.

Crexendo 300 Internet Phone — this phong is an executive professional six-line business desktop phone for making
voice over e internet calls. Buttons includes menu, do-not-dishurb, hold, three-way conference, directory, message waiting,
headset transition, transfer, redial and volume controls. Add a pc connection to share internet resources, phus, ten speed
dial/programmable keys. Menu prompts users for one touch connections, history, directory, do-not-disturb, status, features like
call forward, call waiting, dss keys, key as send, hotline, anonymous call, auto redial, intercom, call completion, password set,
contacts, blacklist, and corporate contacts, .

Crexendo Adaptor — this is an analog telephone adaptor {ATA), The adaptor provides connectivity for fax machines,
heme phenes, and cordless/wireless phones,

Audio Bridge — Crexendo SOHO ard small office plans include ope audio bridge conference line per phone This
service prov1des users with a pin and local number for bridging up to ten-parties in a conference call.

Lacal Number Portability - Crexendo allows users to port their phone number to our telecom service.
Marketing and Sales Channel
We engage in a variety of marketing activities to increase awareness of our products and services, to seil additional

products and services to our existing ¢ustomer base, and to enhance the value we provide to entrepreneurs, smatl and
mediun-sized business entities. Our marketing and sales channels are best described by business segment.

3/11/2011 5:52 PM
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StoresOnline

Cur StoresCnline business segment serves the SOHO business owner and entreprenewr seeking the tools and training
to establish a snccessfil website on the Internet. Specifically, StoresOnline services a market segment looking for a “do-it-
yourself” option as an alternative to the high cost of contracting an e-commerce or lead generation web developer and, most
importantly, an ad apency for website promotion. Both are difficult barriers to many entrepreneurs looking 10 establish a
presence on the Internet.

We have traditionally sold our SioresOnline products and services through an educational seminar format utilizing
direct response marketing campaigns. Ohr sale typically starts with a complimentary 90~-mimite informational “Preview
Training Session” aimed toward those interested in extending their business to the Internet. These 'review Training Sessians
have been proven fo increase awareness of and excitemént for the opportunities presented by the Internet. At these Preview
Training Sessions, our instroctors (i) preview the advantages of establishing a website on the Internet, (i1) answer many of the
Most common questions new or prospective Internet merchants have, (iil) explain, in general terms, how to develop an effective
Internet strategy and (iv) explain how to transform an existing “brick and mertar” company into an e-commerce enabled
company.

At the Preview Training Session, the attending entrepreneur or smal) business owner has the opportunity to purchase
two motiths access to our proprietary content management System and web building tools, as well as admittance to a full day
Internet Training Workshop.

Approximately two weeks after each Preview Training Session, we conduct an intensive “Internet Training Workshop”
which teaches Internet e-commerce and website implementation training to the small business owners and entrepreneurs who
purchased at the Preview Training Session. Instructors of the Internet Training Workshep expand upon the principles taught at
the Preview Training Session elaborating on the details, requirements, demands, tips, and techniques required to extend their
business or product to the Internet. Specifically, this instruction consists of a plain English explanation of e-commerce

" requirements and tools, specific details and tips on how to promote and drive traffic to 2 website, and techniques to increase

It of 99

sales from a website.

In addition to the training provided at the workshop, our customers are presented an opportugity to purchase additional
products and services including:

Proprietary research and optimization tools including; keyword analysis tool, keyword clowd tool, keyword
distribution tool, reverse search engine, and relevant link search tool ) ‘

Integration with nultiple merchant accounts

Integration with multiple drop-shippers

Online training cousses, including, drop-shipping and product sourcing, affiliate marketing, Amazon® and
eBay®, comparison shopping engines, competitive reconnaissance, conversion rate optimization, keyword
research, link building, localization and regionalization, paid search campaigns, permission marketing, search

engine optimization, social media marketing, and Google® Analytics; and

Website design and development.

3/11/2011 5:52 PM
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Following the initia] workshop sale, we seck to provide additional technology and services to our customers. For this
purpose we have partnered with third-party companies who offer our customers additional marketing tools, training, and/or tax
and legal services for their web-based businesses. We receive a commission from these companies when our costomers
purchase any of their products or services. For 2 commission, we allow third parties to market certain products and services
which we believe are complementary to our own products and services, available to custoniers in our Preview Training
Sessions, Internet Training Workshops, and through other direct marketing efforts. Furthermore, we continually explore ideas,
products and services which offer to enhance ongoing customer training and assistance.

Crexendo Web Services

Crexendo Web Services, Inc. (“Crexendo Web Services™) segment is a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Comipany,
previousty Crexendo Business Solutions, serves small and medium-sized businesses secking to erhance their presence on the
Internet. Specifically, Crexendo Web Services services a market segment looking for a “Do-It-For-Me” opiion to increase
traffic and conversion on their sites. The primary products and services for Crexendo Web Services include custom website
design and development, search engine optimization services, conversion rate optimization services, link building services, and
paid search management,

Crexendo Web Services sells its products and services through a direct sales chanmel, white label relationships, online
chapnels, and through strategic marketing partnerships. The initial step in the sales approach typically starts with an in-depth
analysis of the potential customer’s website using Crexendo Web Services’ proprietary tools and software for analyzing search
demand, identification of keywords, keyword density, and effective pay-per-click strategies. Utilizing these tools allows our
search engine optimization professionals to efficiently develop a long-term web-marketing strategy focused on generating
qualified leads and traffic to our customers® websites.

Crexendo Network Services
Crexendo Network Services is focused on developing, marketing, and selling telecommunication and data services.
We are currently developing and deploying broadband digital phone service utilizing standard Session Initiation Protocol (SIP)

equipment and services. .

Our telecom offering enables our customers to add digital voice services 1o their high-speed Internet comections.
Customers £an choose a direct-dial phone mamber from any of the rate centers offered by the service and use Crexendo supplied

IP phones or ATAs to make and receive calls to/from the Public Switched Telephone Network and other Crexendo endpoints.

We are in the process of developing a suite of business services that we anticipate will offer feature-rich
communications services to small and medium-sized businesses, eliminating the need for traditional telecommunications
services and business phone systems. Our primary focus with our service is to replace private branch exchange, or PBX,
telephone systems in the smatl business markeiplace with a hosted, Internet-based business phone service solution. We
anticipate when completed, our service will completely replace a company's PBX infrastructure by delivering all telecom
services over a managed Internet connection.

We intend to offer these setvices through both our StoresOnline division using an education seminar format, and
through our direct sales and strategic marketing relationships.

Our Crexendo Network Services division is currently in the development phase and as of December 31, 2010, had not
generated amy revenues. Costs associated with the start-up of the Crexendo Network Services division totaled $1,429,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2010, $210,000 for the six morths ended December 31, 2009, and $199,000 for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009 respectively and are included in owr respective consolidated statements of operations. No expenses were
recognized prior to January 1, 2009 relating to Crexendo Network Services.
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Segment revenue and operating income (loss) was as foHows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, Six Monthis Ended December 31, Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
(mudite d) (unaudited) {audited) {unavdited) {andited)
2010 2009 2009 2008 2009 2008

Revenue: ]
StorasOnline 3 64471 % 75,880 § 35,589 § 54120 & 94411 § 128,048
Crexendo Web Services 1,322 127 127 —_— — —
Crexendo Network Services — — — — — —
Consolidated $ 65793 % 76,007 § 35716 $ 54,120 % 94411 § 128,048
Operating Income (Loss)
StoresCOnline 5 5509 % 13,167 8 5455 % (4332) § 3682 % 7,992
Crexendo Web Scrvices (1,827) (1,158) {904} — (253) —
Crexendo Network Services {1,429) {409) (210) — (199 —
Unallocated comrporate item (8,827) (9,813) (4,864} (5,857} (11,109) . (11,245 °
Consolidated 3 (6,574) ¥ 1,787 3 (523) $ (10,189 § (7,879 ¢ (3,253)
Scasonality

Our StoresOrnline revenues are subject to seasonal fluctuations. Responses to our marketing for Preview Training
Sessions and Internet Training Workshops are historically lewer during the period from June through Labor Day, and during the
holiday season from Thanksgiving Day through the first few weeks of January.

Technolegy _

We believe our developed proprietary technologies represent a key component of our business model, We believe
these technologies distinguish our services and products from the services and products offered by our competitors. In
particular, our content management and website development software, which includes advanced editing capabilities in terros
of content and website creation, dynamic image creation, hosting environment and infrastructure, and total customer relationship
management. '
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Our software platform is continuously being enhanced and is an innovative website-building environment. Feztures
and fimctions of our software include:

during website development, our customers can experience the took and feel of their websites as if they were
their own customers. They can shop, navigate, order products, track orders, and more. If they want to change or
add more elements, they can edit, rearrange. add, and delete the elements all within a dynamiec, point-and-click
environment;

designs are customized based on the customers’ choices and arrangements. Customers can modify the look and
feel of the design 1o complement their services or products. In addition, design medification and arrangemert
are execoted within a streamlined, point-and-click environment;

blogs, online journals, message boards, and forums that are easily integrated into the content of the website, As
administrators, the customners have full control in terms of filtering content, allowing images, and other blog,
message board, and forum permissions;

customizable forms that address customer-specific needs. By using customized forms, our customers can set up
secure, encrypted forms with improved ease to collect sensitive information from their customers. This is
especially useful for service-based businesses, as these forms can be used for job, loan, apphcanons,
questionndires, bids, quotes, lead generation, etc.

Advanced features include: ordering rules setup for shipping, sales tax, and discount codes, UPS integration,
inventory control system, gift certificate and gift card purchasing and redemption, integration with Amazon®
Checkout andfor Google® Checkout, Google® Base integration, eBay® auctions integration, shopping cart
_supporting multiple currencies and price sets, automatic sitemap generation used by search engines, and
advanced website product ssarch usmg filters to qmcklv nATOW dowu the product offcnng based on product
aﬂnbutcs o

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

We invested $3,090,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010, $1,044,000 for the six months ended December 31,
2009, and $2,177,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 in the research and development of our technologies. The

majority of these expenditures were for our search engine optimization tools, confent management and web building tools, as
well as our hosted telecom product.

COMPETITION

Qur markets are increasingly competitive. Ow competitors include companies which sell through workshop formats
like ours, as well as portals, application service providers, software vendors, systems integrators and information technology
consulting services providers.

10
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Most of these competitors, however, do not yet offer the full range of services we believe our target market requires.
These competitors could elect to focus additional resources in our target markets, which could adversely affect our business
prospects, financial position and results of operations materizlly. Many of our current and potential competitors have longer
operating histories, Jarger customer bases and longer relationships with enstomers as well as significantly greater financiat,
technical, marketing and public relations resources than we do.

| . Additionally, should we determine fo pursue acquisition opportunities, we may compete with other companies with
similar growth strategies. Some of these competiters may be larger and have greater financial and other resources than us.

; Competition for these acquisition targets could also result in increased prices of acquisition targets and a diminished pool of
companies available for acquisition.

There are relatively low barriers to eniry-into our business. Our proprietary technology does not preclude or inhibit
competitors from entering our markets. [u particular, we anticipate new entrants will attempt to develop competing products and
: services or new forums for conducting e~commerce which could be deemed competition. Additionally, if e-commerce or
! Internet based enterprises with more resources and name recogrition were to enter our markets, they may redefine our industry
and make it difficult for us to compete.

Expected technology advances associated with the Internet, increasing use of the Internet, and new software products -
are welcome advancements that we believe will broaden the Imternet’s viability as a marketplace. We anticipate that we can
compete successfully by relying on our infrastructure, marketing strategies and techniques, systems and procedures, and by -
adding additional products and services in the future. We believe we can continue the operation of our business by periedic
review and revision to our product offerings and marketing approach. ‘

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Our success depends in part on using and protecting our proprictary technology and other intellectual property.,
Furthermore; we must conduct our operations withowt infringing on the proprietary rights of third parties. We also rely upon
trade secrets and the know-how and expertise of our key employees and independent contractors. To protect our proprietary
technotogy and other intellectual property, we rely on a combination of the protections provided by applicable copyright,
trademark and trade secret laws, as well as confidentiality procedures and licensing arrangements. Although we believe we
have taken appropriate steps to protect our intellectual property rights, including requiring employees and third parties who are
sranted access to owr intellectual property to enter into confidentiality agreements, these measures mmay not be sufficient to

protect our rights against third parties. Others may independently develop or otherwise acquire unpatented technologies or
products similar or superior to ours,

We license from third parties certain software and Internet tools which we inctude in owr services and products, Ifany
of these licenses were terminated, we could be required to seek licenses for similar software and Internet tools from other third
parties or develop these tools internally. We may not be able to obtain such licenses or develop such tools in 2 timely fashion,
on acceptable terms, or at all.

H
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Companies participating in the software and Internet technology industries are frequently involved in disputes relating
to intellectual property. We may be required to defend our intellectual property rights against infringement, duplication,
discovery and misappropriation by third parties or to defend against third-party claims of infringement. Likewise, disputes may
arise in the future with respect to ownership of technology developed by employees who were previously employed by other
companies, Any such litigation or disputes could be costly and divert our attention from owr business. An adverse determinatfon
could subject us to significant Jiabilities to third parties, require us to seek licenses from, or pay royalties to, third parties, or
require us to develop appropriate alternative technotogy. Some cor all of these licenses may not be available to us on acceptable
terms, or at all. In addition, we may be unable to develop alternate technology at an acceptable price, or at all, Any of these
events could have 2 material adverse effect on our business prospects, finantial position or results of operations.

EMPLOYEES
As of February 28, 2011, we had 395 employees; 297 full time and 98 part time, including six executives, 104 In

sales, 17 in matketing, sales administration and event planning, 31 in the development of our e-commerce solutivns aod IT, 19
in wehsite production, 23 in SEO fulfillment, 90 in event reservations, 56 in customer support and 49 in finance, legal and

general administration.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

iMergent, Inc. was incorporated as a Nevada corporation on April 13, 1995, In Noventber 1999, we were
reincorporated under the laws of Delaware. Effective July 3, 2002, we changed our corporate name to “iMergent, Inc.” to
better reflect the scope and direction of our business activittes of assisting and providing web-based technology solutions to
entrepreneurs and small businesses who are seeking to establish a viable e-commerce presence on the Internet.

We are headquartered at 1615 South 5200 Sireet, Tempe, AZ, 85281, and our telephone nurhber is (623) 242-5959. Our
website is www.imergentinc.com, Our website and the mformat:on contamed Therem or connected thereto shall not be deemed
to be incorporated-into this ‘Annual Report. ‘

We make available free of charge on or through owr Internet website our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly -
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those teports as soon as redsonably practicable after
such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities Exchange and Comnission (SEC).

You may read and copy this Anrual Report at the SEC’s pubtic reference room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington
D.C. 20549, Information on the operation of the public reference room can be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-
SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other mfonnatmn
regarding our filings at www.sec.gov.
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GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION

We are subject to regulations generally applicable 1o all businesses. In addition, because of our workshop sales
format, we are subject to laws and regulations conceriing sales and marketing practices, and particularfy those with regard to
business oppoertunities, franchises and selling practices. We assert that we do not offer our customers a “business opportisity”
or a “franchise”, as those terms are defined in applicable statutes of the states and ether jurisdictions in which we operate. In
general, with the exception of California, in order to be subject to business opportunity regulations in a state, a company is
typically required to provide a representation gharanteeing a return in excess of the purchase price and/or provide a marketing
plan. We do neither, Various states and other jurisdictions, however, have contended we sell 2 business opportunity and we
have been Involved in nultiple regulatory proceedings as a result of those contentions. It is possible that we will be required

to register as a seller of a business opportunity in some states or other jurisdictions in which we do business. The requirement

17 of 99

to register may have an adverse impact on our business. We believe we operate in compliance with laws concerning sales
practices, which laws in some jurisdictions require vs to offer the cusiomer a three-day “cooling off” or reseission peried in
which customers may cancel their workshop purchases. If we are required to register as a seller of business opportunities we
may be subject to rescission periods in excess of three days. Although we do not believe we are required to offer rescission
rights in most states, we voluntarily provide such rescission rights. These rights could reduce our sales if customers who
purchase products and services at our workshops elect to exercise those rights.

We are also subject to an increasing munber of laws and regulations directly applicable o Internet access and
commerce. The adoption of any such additional laws or regulations may decrease the rate of growth of the Internet, which could
inturn decrease the demand for our products and services. Such laws may also increase our costs of doing business or
otherwise have an adverse effect on our business prospects, financial position or results of operations. Moreover, the
applicablity to the Internet of existing laws governing issues such as property ownership, libel, and personal privacy is
uncertain. In particular, one channel we use to initially contact our customers is e-mail. The use of e-mail for this purpose has
become the subject of a number of recently adopted and proposed laws and regulations. Futire federal or state legislation or
regulation could have a material adverse effect on our business praospects, fimancial condition and results of operations.

INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

For 2 discussion of revenues relating to our infernational activities, see Note 1, entitled Business Segment and
Related Information, in our consolidated financial staternents,

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

In addition to factors discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report, the following are imporiant risks which could
adversely affect our future results. If any of the risks we describe below materialize, or if any unforeseen risk develops, our
operating results may suffer, our financial condition may deteriorate, the trading price of owr cormmon stock may decline
and our investors could lose all or part of their investment.

Proposed Federal Trade Commission rules could adversely impact the manner in which we solicit potential

CUSTOmETS.
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On April 5, 2006, the Federal Trade Commission announced proposed rules affecting sellers of business
: opportunities. Under carrent law, we do not believe we sell a business opportunity. The roles, if arrended, could require us to
; provide a disclosure statemnent to potential customers prior to a sale in excess of a threshold amount. We would then either be
j required to provide disclosure documents to all potential customers who sign up for a preview or provide the disclosure
document to all preview customers who elect to attend the workshop. I those rules were adopted and we were determined to
be a seller of business opportunities, such determination could negatively impact the mamner in which we solicit potential
custormers and could tead to a decrease in salcs. We believe we currently comply with the business opportunity statute in the
State of California, and we provide the disclosure documint to all preview customers who elect to attend the workshop.

1
i
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We have been subject to a number of claims by governmental agencies that we are required Lo register as a seller of
business apportunities, including actions seeking restraining orders or injunctions, and adverse decisions in these malters
could adversely affect our business,

We have been subiect to a number of claims by governmentat agencies which claim that we are required to register as
a seller or provider of business opportunities. We have successfully defended such claims, except in the State of California -
which has a statute with substantiafly different requirements than other jurisdictions. No assurances can be given that there will
not be other jurisdictions which may bring actions an similar grounds, or that such claims may be successfully defended. We
assert we do not sell a business opportunity and have not therefore registered as 2 seller under the various statutes (other than
California). Any new actions filed against us could also have a material negative impact on our sales or operations. Ifit is
determined in any other state that we are required to Tegister as a seller of business opportunitiés inorder to engage in business .
in that state, the requirement to do so could materially fmpair our business operations and/or force s to change our busiriess
mode} and consequenily may adversely affect our revenue, increase our compliance costs, and reduce our profitability.

Changes in international and domestic laws and regulations and the interpretation and enforcement of such laws
and regulations could adversely impact ouy financial results or ability 1c conduct business.

We are subject to a variety of international, federal and state laws and regnlations as well as oversight from a variety

of international and domestic governmental agencies. The laws governing our business may change-in ways that harm our

-business, Federal, state or forcign governmental apencies administering and enforcing such laws may also choose to interpret
and apply them in ways that harm our business. These interpretations are also subject to change. Regulatory action could
mmaterially impair or force us to change our business model and may adversely affect our revenue, increase our compliance
costs, and reduce our profitability. In addition, governmental agencies such as the SEC, IRS or state taxing authorities may
conclude that we have violated federal laws, state laws or other rules and regulations, and we could be subject to fines,
penalties or other actions that could adversely impact our financial results or our ability to conduct business.

i 2 ik A e

From time to time we are and have been the subfect of governmental inquiries and investigations into vur business
practices that could require us to change ouwr sales and marketing practices or pay damages or fines, which could
negatively impact owr financial results or ability 1o conduct business.

From time to time, we receive inquiries from federal, national, state, city and local government officials in the various
] jurisdictions in which we operate. These inquiries and investigations generally concern compliance with various city, county,
state and/or federal regutations involving sales, represemtations made, customer service, refund policies, and marketing
practices. We respond to these inquiries and have generally been successfil in addressing the concerns of these persons and
entities, without a formal complaint or charge being made, although there is often no formal closing of the inquiry or
investigation. See Part 1, Hem 3, Legal Proceedings, for a discussion of some of these pending rmatters. The ultimate resolution
of'these or other inguiries or investigations may bave a material adverse effect on our business or operations, or a formal
complaint could be initiated, During the ordinary course of business we also receive a mumber of complaints and inquiries from
customers, governmenial and private entities. In some cases these complaints and inquiries have ended up in civil court. While
we attempt to resolve these matters on a mutnally satisfactory basis, there can be no assurance that the ultimate resolution of
these matters will not have a material adverse effect on our business or resulis of operations. We are also subject to various
claims and legal proceedings covering matters which arise in the ordinary course of business. We believe the resohation of
these other cases will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position, or results of operations.
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We have been targeted by certfain companies that contact our customers and misrepresent an affiliate relationship,
or soficit our customers {o pay for services in seeking a refund.

: Some of our customers have been contacted by unrelated parties that claim to bave a relationship with us. Those
unrelated parties attempt to sell our customers certain products. They often misrepresent that they have an affiliate relationship
with us. Insome cases the products sold by these companies are not as advertised and we have received complaints from
customers. In certain instances the sale of products from non-affiliated third parties impacts our ability to have affiliated
companies market to our customers, In addition we have been targeted by unscrupulous marketing companies that call our
custormers and solicit business seliing “refund kits”, we believe These kits and services instruct our customers to le about their
transactions with us, the quality of service, and encourage o customers to contact regulators and misrepresent their
transactions with us. )

i
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, From time to time we are and have been the subject of customer complaints and lawsuils relating to our business
practices which could reguire uy to change our sales and marketing practices or pay damages or fines, which could
negatively impact our financial resulis.

In the ordinary course of business, we receive complaints and inguiries from both customers and governmental and
non-governmental bodies on behalf of customers and, in some cases, these customer complaints have resulted in litigation.
Seme of these matters are periding. The ultirmate resolution of these matters may have a material adverse effiect on our financial
position or results of operations.

SR SN

H We may be required 1o rechice our prices in prder to compete which could ﬁegarively impact our profitability.

As competition with our StoresOnline software increases and as our Crexendo Web Services and WIP (voice over
internef protocol} services continues to expand, we may be required to resporxd to additfonal competition which could require
us to lower prices and engage in price competition. If intense price competition occurs, we may be forced to lower prices,

* which could result in lower revenue and gross roargins.

Wz collect personal and credir card information from our customers and employees which could be suliject to
misuse.

‘We maintain credit card and other personal information in our systems. Due to the sensitive nature of retaining such
information we have implemented policies and procedures to preserve and protect our data and our customers’ data against
loss, misuse, corruption, misappropriation caused by systens failures, unauthorized access or misuse, Notwilhstanding these
policies, we could be subject to liability claims by individuals and customers whose data resides in our databases for the
misuse of that information.

o A e

We are subject to claims that our software is “defective” and difficult to use and that a substantial number of our
customers do not activate their web pages.

; We have been subject to claims by purchasers that our software is *defective” and difficult to use. Our software is a

i SaaS model (software as a service} and is hosted remotely on our servers in Orem, Utah. We utilize “cloud computing,” which
means that our software {s hosted remotely, and as such cannot be selectively defective, but repeated claims of defective
software could have a negative effect on our ability to sell ouwr products. We have also been subject to various claims that our
software is difficult to use. We contend our sofiware is inferactive, and can be used properly by our customers. However, the
claims of it being difficult 1o use are investigated by various regulatory agencies, and the persistence of such claims by
regulatory agencies, in the news media, and on the Internet, may have a substantial negative impact on our ability to transact
business. The claims that a substantial mmber of our customers do not activate their websites may impact the manner in which
we conduct our seminars and may have a negative impact on our operations.
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The telecommunications industry is highly competitive. We face inlense competition from traditional telephone
companies, wireless companies, cable companies and alternative voice comnmunication providers.

Our VoIP telecommunication product competes with other VoIP providers (such as Vonage), In addition it also
competes with traditional telephone service providers (such as AT&T) which provide telephone service based on the public
switched telephone network. Some of these traditional service providers also provide internet service to their customers. Our
YoIP offering is not fully compatible with such customers. Some: of these traditional providers have also added VoIP services.
There is also competition for ¢able providers, which have added VoIP services to their existing cable customers. The
telecommunications mdustry is mghly competiive. We face intense competition from traditional telephone companies, wirgless
companies, cable companies, and alternative voice communication providers.

Meost traditional wire line and wireless telephone service providers, cable companies, and scime VoIP providers are
substantially larger and better capitalized than we are and have the advantage of a large existing customer base. Because most
of our target customers are aiready purchasing communications services from one or more of these providers, our success is
dependent upon our ability to attract target customers away from thelr existing providers. Ouwr competitors’ financial resources
may allow them to offer services at prices below cost or even for free in order fo maintain and gain market share or Otherwlse
improve their competitive positions,

T aRiat L e e

Cur ability to provide VolP is dependent upon third-party facilities and equipment, the failure of which could
cause delays or interruptions af our service and :mpact our revenue and profitability.

SN SRS PR

Our ability to provide quality and relidble telephony service is in part dependent upon the proper functioning of

facilities and equipment owned and operated by third parties and is, therefore, beyond our control. Our VoIP service (and to a
lesser exterd our e-commerce services) requires our customers to have an operative broadband Internet connection and an
electrical power supply, which are provided by the custorner’s Internet service provider and electric utility company and not by
us. The quality of some broadband Internet connections may be too poor for customers to use our services properly. In addition,

* if there 15 any interruption to' a customer’s broadband Internet service or electrical power supply, that customer will be imable
to mzke or receive calls, including emergency calls, using our service. We outsource several of owr nerwork functions o
third-party providers. If our third-party service providers fail to maintain these facilities properly, or fail to respond quickly to
problems, our customers may experience Service interruptions. The failure of any of these third party service providers to
properly maintain services may be subject to factors including but not 1imited to the following: (i) cause 2 loss of customers,
{i1) adversely affect our reputation, (iii} cause negative publicity, (iv) negatively impactour ability to acquire customers, (v)

negatively impact our revenue ark profitability and {vi) potential law suits for loss of business, Joss of reputatlon or failure to

: " be able to access emergency services.

We rely on third parties to provide a portion of our customer service representatives, imitiate local number
portability for our customers and provide aspects of our E-911 service.

We offer our telephony customers support 24 hours a day, seven days a week. We rely on third parties (sometimes

i outside of the U.S) to provide some services that respond to customer inquiries. These third-party providers generally represent
f ) us without identifying themselves as independent parties. The ability of third-party providers to provide these representatives

: mmay be disrupted due to issues outside our control.

We also maintain an agreement with an E-911 provider to assist us in routing emergency calis directly to an emergency
service dispatcher at the PSAP in the area of the customer’s registered location and terminating E-911 calls. We also contract
with a provider for the national call center that operates 24 hours a day, seven days a week to receive certain emergency calls
and with several compani es that maintain PSAP databases for the purpose of deploving and operating E-911 services.
Interruptions in service from these vendors could cause failures in our customers’ access E-911 services and expose us to
lability.
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We also have agreements with companies that initiate our local number portability, which allow new customers to
retain their existing telephone numbers when subscribing to our services. We will need to work with these companies to
properly port numbers. The failure to port nummbers may subject us to loss of customers or regulatory review.

If any of these third parties do not provide reliable, high-quality service, our reputation and cur business wiil be
harmed. In addition, industry consolidation among providers of services to s may impact our ability to obtain these services or
increase our expense for these services,

We are subject to the risk of future disruptive technolagies. If new technologies develop that are able to deliver
compeling voice and messaging services at lower prices, betier or more conveniently, it conld have a material adverse
effect on us.

Our VoIP product competes against established alternative voice comnunication providers, (such as Skype or Magic
Tack), While we believe the technology we employ provides subsiantially better quality, changes in technology could allow
these alternative providers to deliver comparable quality at a substantially lower price. In addition as we continue providing
WolP services, we are likely to face competition from emerging competitors focused on newer, iess costly technology, In order
to compete with such service providers, we may have to reduce our prices, which would impair our profitability, or offer
additional features that may cause us to incwr additional costs without commensurate price increases.

If we fail to edapt to ropid changes in the market then our products and services could become obsolete.

The market for our products and services is constantly and rapidly evolving. There is substantial competition for our
e-commerce services, Crexendo Business Services, and our YWIP telephony product. As competitors introduce new and
enhanced products and services, we may not be able to develop or acquire new products and services that compete effectively.
New products based on new technologies or new industry standards could render our existing products obsolete and

unmarketable. Any technical flaws in products we release could have a negative effect on customer adoption and our reputation.

Fluctuations in our operating results may affect our stock price and ability to raise capital.

Our operating results for any given quarter or fiscal year should not be relied upon as an indication of future
performance. {Quarter to quarter comparisons of our results of operations may not be meaningful as a result of (i) our iimited
operating history relating to Crexendo Web Services and Crexendo Network Services and (ii) the emerging nature of the
markets in which we compete. Our fiture results will fluctiate, and those results may fall below the expectations of investors
and may cause the trading price of our common stock to fall. This may impair our ability to raise capital, shonld we seck to do
sa. Our quarterly results may fluctuate based on, but not limited to, the following factors:
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our ability to attract and retain customers;
negative publicity about our indusiry, events, or products;

one-time events that negatively impact attendance and sales at our Preview Training Sessions and Internet
Training Workshops;

seasonal fluctvations in our business;

fluctuations in collections of our extended payment term agreements;
number of workshops in 2 given period;

intense competition;

changes in pricing polieies;

regulatory actions and legal proceédings;

Internet and online services bsage levels and the rate of market acceptance of these services for transacting
COTIITIETCE; '

our ability to timely and effectively upgrade and develop our systems and infrastructure;

changes 1o our business model resulting from regulatory requirements;

our ability to comtrol certain costs;

our ability to attract, train and retain skilled management, as well as strategic, technical and creative
professionals;

technical, legal and regulatory difficulties with respect to our workshop distribution channel and Imernet use
generally;

the avaijlability of working capitdl and the amount and timing of costs relating to owr expansion; and

general econormic conditions and economic conditions specific to Intemet tectmology usage and e-commerce.

I8
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Errors in owr technology or technologicol issues outside our control could cause delays or interruptions fo our
customers. ‘ .

Our services (including e-commerce and VoIP) may be disrupted by problems with our technology and systems such as
malfimetions in our software or other facilities and overloading of our network. In addition there may be service interruptions
for reasons outside our conirol, Our customers and potential customers subscribing to our services have experienced
interruptions in the past and may experience interruptions in the future as a result of these types of problems. Interruptions could
cause us to lose customers and offer customer credits, which could adversely affect our revenue and profitability. Network
inerruptions toay alzo impair our ability to sign-up new custorners. In addition since our systems and our customers’ ability o
use ol services are luternet-dependent, our services may be subject to “hacker attacks™ from the Internet, which could have 2
significamt impact on our systems and services. Our customers’ ability to use our services is dependent on third-party internet
providers which may suffer service disruptions. If service interruptions adversely affect the perceived reliability of our
service, we may have difficulty atiracting and retaining customers and our growth may suffer.

Adverse publicity could reduce customer interest in our workshops and harm our financial resulls.

‘We have received adverse publicily concerning our business, and may, in the future, receive additional adverse
publicity concerning oar business. Adverse publicity concerning our business, including our Internet Training Workshops,
products, services, management or legal procesdings could reduce the response rates to our advertisements, reduce attendance
and purchase rates at our workshops and third-party sales to our customers, and thereby adversely affect our reverues. We do-
not always know when adverse publicity may occur and cannot accurately predict ils impact on our business and resuits of
operations, -

We may need to monetize a substantial portion of the customer receivables generated by our workshop business. If
we are unable to do so we may be required to raise additional working capital.

We offer our customers a choice of payment options at our Internet Training Workshops, including an installment
payment plan, These installment corracts are either sold to one of several third-party finance companies, with or without
recourse, OF are retained by us. Thereafier, we sometimes seek to sell the service contracts to the servicer or other third parties.
We have in the past experienced difficulties seliing these installment confracts at tevels that provide adequate cash flow for our
business, and a recurrence of these difficulties would lkely require us o raise additional working capital to allow us to service
these assets on our own. Since May 2004, we have not sold installment contracts with any recourse provisions.

Qur ability to use our net operating loss carryforwards may be reduced in the event of an ownership change, and
could adversely affect our financial resulls.

As of December 31, 2010, we had net operating loss ("NOL™) carryforwards of approximately $6,002, 000,
Section 382 imposes limitations on 2 corporation’s ability to utilize its NOL carryforwards. In general terms, an ownership
change results from transactions increasing the ownership of certain stockholders in the stock of a corporation by more than
50% over a three-year pertod. Since our formation, we have issued a significant number of shares, and purchasers of those
shares have sold some of them, resulting in two ownership changes, as defined by Section 382. As a result of the most recent
ownership change, utilization of our NOL is subject to an annual limitation determined by multiplying the value of our stock at
the time of the ewnership change by the applicable federal long-term tax-exempt rate. The annual Hmitation is approximately
$461,000. Any limited amounts may be carried over into later years, and the amount of the Hmitation may, under certain
circumstances, be increased by the “recognized built-in gains™ that occur diring the five-year period after the ownership change
(the recognition period). Future changes in ownership of more than 50% may also limit the use of these remaining NOL
carryforwards. Our earnings, if any, and cash resources would be materially and adversely affected if we cannot receive the
ftull benefit of the remaining NOL carryforwards. An ownership change cou]d occur as a result of circumstances that are not
within our control.

15

3/1112011 5:52 PM


http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1075736/000135448SllOO
file:////forkshops

iig 10k.htm http://www sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1075736/00013544881100...

We depend on our senior managemert and other key personnel, and a loss of these individuals could adversely
impact our abifity 1o execute our business plan and grow our business.-

We depend on the continued services of our key personnel, including but not limited to our Chief Executive Officer,
. Steven G Mihaylo, Chief Financial Officer, Jonathan Erickson, Chief Technical Officer, David Rosenvall, Chief Administrative
. Officer, David Krietzberg, Chief Legal Officer, Jeffery Korn, and Chief Operating Officer, Clint Sanderson, as well as certain
speakers at our Preview Training Sessions and Internet Trafning Workshops. Each of these individuals has acquired specialized
knowledge and skills with regpect fo our operations. The loss of one or more of these key personnel could negatively impact
! our performance. In addition, we expect to hire additional personnel as we continue to execute our strategic plan, particularly if
we are successful in expanding our operations. Competition for the limited number of qualified persomnel in our industry is
E intenise. At times, we have experienced difficulties in hiring personnel with the necessary training or experience.

We are dependent on crédit card issuers who provide us with merchant accounts that are used 1o receive payments
from our customers and if we canmot maintain these merchant accounts our business would be harmed,

Each financial instiution that issues merchant accounts establishes Himits on the amount of payments which may be
received through the account. Our merchant accounts require us to keep reserves on deposit with them to protect the financial
institutions against losses they may incur with respect to the accounts. We have, in the past, experienced difficulty in maintaining
these merchant accounts in good standing due to changes in the reserve requirements jmposed by the issuing banks and the
transaction amount permitied and changes in the rate of charge-backs. If we were to experience a significant reduction in or loss
of these merchant accounts our business would be severely and negatively impacted.

We might require additional capital to support business growth and fund other needs of the business, and such
capital might not be available.

We intend fo confinve o make investments to support business growth and may require additional finds to respond fo
business opportunities and challenges, which include the opportunity to increase our revenue by increasing the number of -
customer, installment contracts that we retain rather than sell, the need to develop new products or enhunce existing products,
the need to enhance our operating infrastructure and the opportunity to acquire complementary businesses and technologies.
Accordingly, we may elect or need to engage in equity or debt financing to secure additional funds. However, equity and debt
financing might not be available when needed or, if available, might not be available on terms satisfactory to us. If we are
umable to obtain financing on terms satisfactory to.us, our ability to continue to support our business growth and to respond to
] business challenges could be significantly limited,

Our aperations could be hurt by a natural disaster, network security breach, or other catastrophic event.

Substantially our entire network infrastructure is located in Utah, an area susceptible to earthquakes. We do not have
multiple site capacity if any catastrophic event occurs and, although we do have a redundant netw ork system, this systern does
} not guaraniee continued reliability if a catasrophic event oceurs. Despite implernentation of netw ork security measures, our
: servers may be vulnerabie to computer viruses, break-ins and similar disroptions from unauthorized tampering with our
computer systems. In addition, if there is a breach or atleged breach of security or privacy involving our services, or if any
; third party undertakes illegal or harmfut actions using our communications or e-commerce services, our business and reputation
] could suffer substantial adverse publicity and impairment,
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Our aperations could be hurt by terrorist attacks, fear of disease and other qgctivity and events that make air travel
difficult or reduce the willingness of customers to attend our workshops.

We rely on frequent presentations of our Preview Training Sessions and Internet Training Workshops by a limited
number of persons jn various cities and these persons generally travel by air. In addition, these Preview Training Sessions and
Internet Training Workshops involve large groups of persons in upscale and sometimes marquis hotel facilities. Our business
would be materially and adversely affected by air travel becoming less available due to significant cutbacks in the frequency of
service or significant increases in processing times at airports due o security or other factors or by air travel becoming
unavailable due to sovermmental or other action as was the case during a brief period in Seplember 2001. In addition, our
business would be materially and adversely affected if our potential customers were to become fearful of attending large pubtic
meetings.

The marke! for our producis and services is evolving and our position in that market is unceriain.

The markets for our products and services are continuing to evolve and are increasingly competitive, Demand and
market acceptance for recently introduced and proposed new products and services and sales of such products and services
internationally are subject to a high level of uncertainty and risk. Our business may suffer if the market develops in an
unexpected manner, develops more slowly than in the past or becomes saturated with competitors, if any new products and
services do not sustain market acceptance or if our efforts to expand internationally do not sustain market acceptance.

We may not have the resources to compete with other companies within our industry.

Many of our direct competitors have announced their intention to offer a range of Internet products and services
comparable to those offered by us. These copetitors at any time could elect to focus additional resources in our target markets,
which could materially and adversely affect us. Many of our current and potential competitors have stronger brand recognition,
longer operating histories, larger customer bases, longer relationships with customers and significantly preater financial,

* technical, marketing and publicrelations resources than we do. We believe our competitors may be able to adapt more quickly
to new tectnologies and customer needs, devote greater resources to the promotion or sale of their products and services,
initiate or withstand substantial price competition, take advantage of acquisition or other opportunities more readily or develop
and expand their product and service offerings more quickly.

Our expansion into international markets and development of country-specific e-commerce products and services
may be difficult or unprofitable,

We have commenced operations in selected international markets. There are difficulties ivherent in doing business in
international markets such as:

cultural, language and other differences between markets could result in lower than anticipated attendance at
our Preview Training Sessions and Internet Training Workshops and/or lower than anticipated sales;

bapking and payment mechamsms that differ from those in the United States and make it more difficult for us to

both accept payments by credit card and offer to customers a product that allows customers to accept credit
card paymemnts on their websites;
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wnproven markets for our services and products;
unexpected changes in regulatory requirements;
terrorism, war and infernational conflict;

" potentially adverse tax environment;

export restrictions and tariffs and other trade barriers;

burdens of complying with applicable foreign laws and exposures to different legal standa'rds, particularly with
respect k0 sales and marketing practices, intelleciua) property, privacy and distribution of potentially offensive
or unlawful content over the Internet;

fluctuations in currency exchange rates; and
' restrictions on repatriating cash from foreign markets.

Evolving regulation of the Internet, including the use of e-mail as a marketing tool, may harm our business.

As e-commerce and VOIP continue (o evolve they are subject to increasing regulation by federal, state, and foreign
agencies. Areas subject to regulation include, but may not be limited to, the use of c-mail, user privacy, pricing, content, quality
of products and services, taxation, advertising, intellectual property rights, and information security. In particular, our injtial
contact with many of our cusiomers is througii e-mail. The use of e-mail for this purpose has become the subject of a mmmber of
recently adopted and proposed laws and regnlations. In addition, laws and regulations applying to the solicitation, collection,

_or processing of personal or consumer. information could ﬂegatjveiy affect our activities. The perception of security and privacy

cancerns, whether or not valid, may inhibit market acceptance of our products. In addition, legislative or regulatory
requirements may heighten these concerns if businesses must notify website users that the data captured after visiting websites
may be used by marketing entities to unilaterally direct product promotion and advertising to that user. Moreover, the
applicability to the Internet of existing laws poverning issues such as intellectual property ownership and infringement,
copyright, trademark, trade secret, obscenity and libel is uncertain and developing. Furthermore, any regulation imposing fees
or assessing taxes for Internet use could result in a decline in the use of the Internet and the viability of e-commerce. Any new
legislation or regulation, or the application or interpretation of existing laws or regulations, mey decrease the growth in the e
of the Internet, mway impose additional burdens on e-commeree or may require us to alter how we conduct our business. This
could decrease the demand for our products and services, increase owr cost of doing business, increase the costs of products
sold through the Internet or otherwise have a negative effect on our business, results of operations and financial position.

fnternet security issues pose risks to the development of e-commerce and our business.

Secwrity and privacy concerns may inhibit the growth of the Internet and other online services generally, especially as
a means of conducting commercial transactions.
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; We could experience security breoches in the transmission and analysis of confidential and proprietary
i informaiion of the consumer, the merchant, or both, as well as our own confidential and proprietary information.

Anyone able to ¢ircumvent security measures could misappropriate proprietary information or cause interruptions in
our operations, as well as the operations of the merchant We may be required to expend significant capital and other resources
to protect against secirity breaches of to minimize problems caased by security breaches. To the extent (hat we experience
breaches In the security of proprietary information which we store and transmit, cur reputation could be damaged and we could
‘ be exposed to a risk of loss or litigation.

We depend upor our proprietary intellectual property rights, none of which can be completely safeguarded againsi
infringement.

We rely upon copyright law, trade secret protection and confidentiality or license agreements with our employees,
customers, business partners and others to protect our proprietary rights, but we cannot guarantee that the steps we have taken to
i protect our proprietary rights wiil be adequate. We do not currently have any patents or registered trademarks, and effective
trademark, copyright and trade secret protection may not be available in every country in which our products are distributed or
made available through the Internet. In addition, there can be 1o assurance that a patent will issue or a trademark will be
referred based on our pending applications.

4

We may incur substantial expenses in defending against third-party patent and trademark infringement claims
regardless of their meril.

From time to time, parties may assert patent infringement claims against us in the form of letiers, lawsuits and other
forme of commmumication, Third parties may also assert claims against us alleging infringement of copyrights, trademark rights,
trade secret rights or other proprietary rights or atleging unfair competition, If there is a determination that we have infringed
third-party proprietary rights, we conld incur substantial menetary liability and be prevented from using the rights in the future,

We are aware of lawsuits filed against certain of our competitors regarding the presentment of advertisements in
response fo search requests on “keywords” that may be wrademarks of third parties. It is not clear what, if any, impact an
adverse ruling in these recently filed lawsnits would bave on us, Many parties are actively developing search, indexing,
e-commerce and other web-related technologies, We believe that these parties will continue to take steps to protect these
technologies, including seeking patent protection. As a result, we believe that disputes regarding the owrnership of these
technologies are likely to arise in the firture.

There are low barriers to entry into the e-commerce services market and, as a result, we face significant
competition in a rapidly evolving indusiry,

et

‘We have no patented technology, and only a limited amount of other proprietary technology, that would preclude or
mhibit competitors from entering our business. In addition, the costs to develop and provide e-commerce services are relatively
low. Therefore, we expect that we will continually face additional competition from new entrants into the market in the future.
There is also the risk that our employees or independent contractors may leave and start competing businesses. The emergence
of these enterprises could have a material adverse effect on us. Existing or fiture competitors may better address new
developments or react more favorably to changes within our industry and may develop or offer e-commerce services providing
significant technological, creative, performance, price or other advantages over the services that we offer.
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Future sales of common stock by our existing stockholders and stoek options granted by us could adversely affect
| our stock price.

The market price of our common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares of our common
stock in the market or the perception that these sales could occur. These sales also might make it more difficult for us 1o sell
equity securities in the future at a time and at a price that we deem appropriate. As of February 28, 2011, we had
ouistanding 10,645,135 shares of common stock.

Additional dilution will result if outstanding options are exercised. As of February 28, 2011, we had outstanding stock
opiions to purchase 1,279,585 shares of common stock. In addition, in the event future financings should be in the form of .
convertible into or exchangeable for our equity securities, investors may experience additional dilution.

Cur business could be materially and adversely affected as a result of general economic and market conditions.

We are subject to the effects of general global economic and market conditions. Unfavorable changes in economic
conditions, including inflation, recession, or other changes in economic conditions may cause businesses and entrepreneurs to
curtail or eliminate spending on e~commerce services or to reduce demand for our praducts and services. An adverse change in
economic conditions may adversely affect our business.

RN TERE

Some provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws may deter takeover aitempts that may limit the
opportunity of our stockholders to sell their shares at a favorable price.

Some of the provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could make it more difficult for a third party to

i acquire us, even if doing s0 might be beneficial to owr stockholders by providing them with the opportunity to sell their shares
at a premium to \he ther market price. Our bylaws contain provisions regulating the intreduction of business at annual
stockholders’ meetings by anyone other than the board of directors. These provisions may have the cffect of making it more

~difficult, delaying; discouraging, preventing or rendering more costly an acquisition or a change in control of our Company.

In addition, our corporate charter provides for a staggered board of directors divided into two classes. Provided that
we have at Jeast four directors, it will take at least two annual meetings to effectuate a change in control of the board of
directors because a majorjty of the directors cannot be elected at a single meeting. This extends the time required to effect a
change in control of the board of directors and may discourage hostile takeover bids. We currently bave six directors.

Further, our certificate of incorporation authorizes the board of directors to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred
stock, which may be issued in one or nore serics, the terms of which may be determined at the time of issuance by the board of
directors without fiurther action by stockholders. Such terms may include voting rights, including the right to vote as a seties on
particular matters, preferences as to dividends and liguidation, conversion and redemption rights and sinking fund provisions.
No shares of preferred stock are currently outstanding and we have no present plans for the issuance of any preferred stock.
However, the issuance of any preferred stock could materially adversely affect the rights of holders of our eominon stock, and
therefore could reduce its value. In addition, specific rights granted to future holders of preferred stock could be used to restrict
our ability to merge with, or sell assets 10, a third party. The ability of the board of directors to issue preferred stock coudd -
make it more difficult, delay, discourage, prevent or make it more costly to effect a change in control, thereby preserving the
current stockholders’ control.

[P
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I we do not sueccessfully expand our sales teams, we may be unable o substantially increase owr sales.

We sell our products privaarily through our training workshaps, and we must expand the number of our workshop sales
teams to increase revenue substantially. If we are unable to hite or retain qualified speakers and sales team members or Hnew
speakers and team members fail to develop the necessary skills 1o be productive, or if they reach productivity more slowly than
anticipated, our ability to increase our revepue and grow our business could be compromised, Our speakers and workshop team
members may require a Jong period of time 1o become productive. The time required achieving efficiency, as weil as the
challenge of attracting, training, and retaining qualified candidates, may make it difficult to grow revemue. Further, we may not
generate sufficient sales to offset the increased expense resulting from growing our workshop sales force, or we may be unable
to manage a larger workshop sales force.

Our stock price could decline further because of the activities of short sellers.

Our stock has historicatly anracted significant interest from short sellers. The activities of short sellers could further
reduce the price of our stock or inhibit increases in our stock price.

Qur stock price and cperations may be affected by potential siock manipulation.

We believe certain parties are acting in a manner to atlernpt to denigrate our busitess for personal profit. We believe
certain parties may have engaged in actions intended to cause harm to our Company, and certain parties have made efforts to
decrease the market price of ow common stock. To the extent such parties engage in any such actions or take any other actions
to interfere with our existing and/or prospective business relationships with regulators, vendors, media, partners, customers,
lenders, or others, our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations may suffer, and the price of our
common stock may trade at prices below those that might prevail in the absence of any such efforts.

{ncreased competition, including the entry of new competifors, the introduction of new products by new ond

~existing competitors, or price competition, could have a materially adverse effect on operating results and financial

condition.

A number of very large, well capitalized, high profile companies serve the e-commerce and technology markets. If any
of these companies entered our markets in a focused and concentrated fashion, we could Jose customers, particularly more
sophisticated and financially stable customers, and our revenue and profitability would suffer. These potential competitors
could fikely offer a broad array of products and services that would compeie favorably with our product offerings. They could
also likely offer these preducts at prices that would be difficult for us to match.

COwr ability to continue to pay cash dividends may be affected by our operating resulis and other conditions.

In December 2008, the Board of Directors decreased the quarterly cash dividend to $0.02 from $0.11 per common
share. Although we currently expect to continie to pay cash dividends to our stockhoiders, the ability 1o do so will depend upon
our results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements, as well as other factors. Also, there can be no assurance that

we will continue to pay cash dividends even if the necessary financial conditions are met and if sufficient cash is available for
distribution. .
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Cur publicly filed SEC reports are reviewed by the SEC from time to time and any significant changes required as a
result of any such review may result in material Imbzhty to us and have q matetrial adverse impact on the trading price of
our commoh stock.

The reparts of pubticly-traded companies are subject 10 review by the SEC from tite to time for the purpuse of
assisting companies in complying with applicable disclosure requirements and to enhance the overall effectiveness of
companies’ public filings. Comprehensive reviews by the SEC of such reports are now required at least every three years under
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0t 2002, SEC reviews often oceur at the time companies file registration staterments, but reviews may
be initiated at any time by the SEC. While we believe that our previousty filed SEC reports comply, and we intend that af]
furure reports will comply in all material respects with the published rules and regulations of the SEC, we could be required 1o
modify or reformulate information contained in prior tilings as a result of an SEC review. Any modification or reformulation of
information contained in such reports could be significant and result in a material liability to us and have a material adverse
impact on the trading price of our common stock.

i
i
i
;
'
!
i
!
]

Our business and results of operations are affected by general economic conditions and are dependent upon the
price of postage, air (ransportation and food service. Comtinuing high postage, airfare, and foad costs or further cost
increases could have a marertai adverse gffect on our aperating results. .

JRPYSTR SN S

Our operating results are affected by general economic conditions, including inflation, recession and currency
volatility. Currency fluctuations may make our software product less attractive to international purchasers which could
negatively impact our revenues. The economic environment may cause reduced demand for our software and widespread
national and international concern over instability in the economy may result in customers declining to pay for our product in
cash and using financing options which could negatively impact our results of operations and financial position

Lk et e b e b § R 1 4 o

Cur ability to pass along the increased costs of postage, airfare and food service to our customers js limited by the
competitive nature of the seftware and Internet industry. Often we have not been able to increase our fees to fully offset the

- effect of increased costs inthe past and we may not be able 1o do so in the fiture. Additional increases in postage, air
‘transportation and food service costs or dlsruptlons n air ransportation or food service supplies could have additional
negative effects on us.

We are exposed to fluctuations in currency exchange rates.

Because we conduct business outside the United States but report our results in U.S. dollars, we face exposure to
adverse movements in currency exchange rates, As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately $723,000 of net trade
receivables denominated in foreign currencies and $284,000 in cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies. If
the U.S. dollar weakens against foreign currencies, the translation of these foreign currency denomninated transactions will result
in increased net revenues as cash is collected from net trade receivables and cash sales. Similarly, our net revermes as cash is
collected from trade receivables and cash sales will be negatively impacted if the U.S. dollar strengthens against foreign
currencies.

Examinations by relevant tax authorities may result in material changes in related tax reserves for tax positions
taken in previously filed tax returns or may impact the valuation of certain deferred income tax assels, such as nel
operating loss carryforwards.

Based on the outcome of examinations by relevant tax authorities, or as 2 result of the expiration of statutes of
limitations for specific jurisdictions, it is reasonably possible that the related tax reserves for tax positions taken regarding
previously filed tax refurns will materially chanze from those recorded in our financial statements. In addition, the cutcome of
examinations may impact the valuation of certain deferred income tax assets (such as net operating loss carryforwards) in future
pericds. It is ot possible to estimate the impact of the amount of such changes, if any, to previously recorded uncertain tax
positions.
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QOur sales sirategy for Crexendo products continues to develop. We intend to continue to develop our direct safes
force, as well as small fulfillment offices with sales staff located in larger metrapolitan areas. We intend to develop
Affiliates {companies providing lead generation) to assist in seliing our products. If we do not establish, develop and
marntage these relationships effectively, our ability to generate revenue and control expenses will be adversely affected

~ Our success in developing Crexendo Web Services is dependent in part upon our ability to establish a robust sales
chamel. As Crexendo Web Services has developed, our sales strategy morphed and emerped, our success with value added
resellers had been limited and we therefore depend more heavily on our direct sales channel while attempting to establish an
affiliate channel. We are attempting to work with affiliates who will provide lead generation to our sales force cost.
effectively, Qur primary focus is in developing our in house sales channel. Accordingly, our ability to sell our products and
services and penerate significant revenue through third party leads is highly dependent on our ability to establish an affiliate
network.

Our ability to increase our revenues in the future will depend in large part on our success in developing and
mainiaining a direct sales force 10 (1) sell 1o existing customers, (i1) sell 1o prospecis developed by and through our affiliates,
(iit) make sales to leads generated through other sources and (iv} through cold sates. Any failure to develop or maintain the
appropriate sales level could 1imit our ability to make saies and could disrupt our relationships with affiliates and could harm
our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our ability to increase owr revenues in the future for Crexendo SEO and other products (such as Pay per Click
(*PPC™) sales may depend on the strategy to develop a robust direct sales force as well as small fulfillment and sales offices in
major metropoliian areas. Our strategy includes the ability to cost effectively hire qualified employees, develop sales offices in
a cost effective marmer, and to acquire SEO offices on an accretive cost basis paying for such office primarily with an “garn
out”. The failure to properly develop this strategy could impede the penetration of Crexendo Web Services into its anticipated
markets and could harm our busmess ﬁnanc1a1 cor:drtlon and results of operations.

We may undertake acquisitions to expand our business, which may pose risks to our business and dilute the
ownership of our existing stockholders.

As part of a potential growth strategy we may atternpt 10 acqitire cerlain businesses, Whether we realize benefits from
any transaction will depend in part upon the integration of the acquired business, the performance of the acquired products,
services, capacities of the technologies acquired as well as the personnel hired in conpection therewith. Accordingly, our
results of operations could be adversely affected from transaction-related charges, amortization of intangible assets and charges
for impairment of long-term assets. While we believe that we have established appropriate and adequate procedures and
processes to mitigate these risks, theve can be o assurance that any potential transaction will be successful.

In addition, the financing of any acquisition may require us to raise additional funds through public or private sources.
Additional fimds may not be available on terms that are favorable to us and, in the case of equity financings, may result in
dilation to our stockholders. Future acquisitions by us could also result in large and immediate write-offs or assumptions of
debtand contingent liabilities, any of which may have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, resulis
of operations, and cash flows.
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Our dependence on cutside contractors and third-party agemnts for fulfillment of certain items and critical
marnufaciuring services could resuit in product or delivery delays and/or damage our customer relations.

We outsource the manufachuring of certain products we sell and products we provide. We submit purchase orders to
agents or the companies that manufacture the products, We describe, among other things, the type and quantities of products or
components to be supplied or manufactured and the delivery date and other terms applicable to the products or components. Our
suppliers or manufaciurers potentially may hot accept any purchase order that we submit. Owr reliance on outside parties
involves a number of potentiaf risks, including: (1) the absence of adeqguate capacity, (2) the unavailability of, or interruptions
in access to, production or mamuacturing processes, {3} reduced control over delivery schecules, (4) errors in the product, and
i {5) claims of third party intellectual infringement or defective merchandise. 1f delays, problems or defects were to oceur, it
could adversely affect our business, cause claims for damages to be filed against vs, and negatively impact our consolidated
operations and cash flows.

If the market for our new products does rot develop as we anticipate, our revenue may decline or fail to grow,
which would adversely affect our operating results.

] We have started to market our Crexendo Web Services products and services, as well as develop additional products
including, but not limited to, hosted telecom. The market for these products is still evolving, and it is uncertain whether these
products and services will achieve and sustain high levels of demand and market acceptance.

‘ f potential customers do not perceive the benefits of our product lines, sales may not develop or may develop more

; - slowly than we expect, either of which would adversely affect our operations. Because the market for new product
development is difficult to predict, we may make errors in predicting and reacting to relevant business trends, which may have
a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

/ Our Chief Execufive Officer owns a significant amouni of our common stock and could exercise substantial
' - corporate control.” - ‘ : ) : :

. Steven G Mihaylo, owr Chief Execitive Officer (CEQ), owns approximately 35% of our ouitstanding shares of common
stock based on the number of shares outstanding as of February 28, 2011. As a result, Mr. Mihaylo may have the ability to
determine the outcome of matters submitted to our stockholders for approval, including the election of directors and any merger,
3 amalgamation, consolidation or sale of al! ar substanially all of our assets. Mr, Mihaylo may have the ability to control the
‘ management and affairs of our Company. Mr. Mibhaylo also may have interests different than, or adverse to our other
stockholders. Accordingly, even though certain transactions may be in the best interests of other stockholders, this concentration
of ownership may harm the market price of our common stock by, among other things, delaving, deferring or preventing a
change in control of our Company, irmpeding a merger, amalgamation, consolidation, takeover or other business combination
involving our Company, or discouraging a potential acquirer from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to obtain
control of our Company.

PSS S RT VRR

In addition, sales or other dispositions of our shares by Mr. Mihaylo may depress our stock price. Sales of a
significant pumber of shares of our commeon stock in the public market could barm the market price of our common stock. As
additional shares of our common stock become available for resale in the public market, the supply of our common stock will
increase, which could result in a decrease in the market price of our conmon stock. :

We have incurred operating losses.

We sustained operafing losses in the current and prior years. Our ability to sustain profitability and positive cash flows
from operating activities will depend on many factors including, but not limited to, our ability to (1) reduce costs, (11} improve
sales and mmarketing efficiencies, (ili} respond to the current economic slowdown, (iv) reach more highly qualified prospects,
and (v) achieve operational improvements.

i
t
i
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate offices consist of approximately 22,000 square feet of office space in Tempe, Arizona and
approximately 78,000 square feet of office and training facilites we lease from wnaffiliated third parties. Our corporate office
and Crexendo Network Services division are located at 1615 South 52nd Street, Tempe, Arizona 85281, our StoresOnline, Inc.
and Crexendo Web Services office is located at 1303 North Research Way, Orem, Utah 84097 and we maintain a training
facility located in Salt Lake City, Utah. The lease for our StoresOnline, Inc. and Crexendo Web Services office terminates on
September 30, 2013 and the lease for our training facility located in Salt Lake City, Utah terminates on July 31,2013, The
annua) rent expense for all of our office space and training facilities is estimated to be approximately $1,625,600 for the year
ending December 31, 2011, We maintain tentant fire and casumlty insurance on pur assets located in these buildings in an amount
that we deemn adequate, We also rent, on a daily basis, hotel conference rooms and facilities from time to time in various cities
throughout the United States, Canada and other countries at which we host vur Preview Training Sessions and Internet Training
Workshops. We are under no long-term obligations related to the hotel facilities.

TTEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time we receive inquiries from federal, state, city and local government officials in the varicus
Jurisdictions in which we operate. These inquiries and investigations generally concern compliance with vatious city, county,
state and/or federal repulations involving sales, representations made, customer service, refund policies, and marketing
practices. We respond to these inquiries and have generally been successful in addressing the concerns of these persons and
emtities, withow a formal complaint or charge being made, although there is often no formal elosing of the Inquiry or
investigation. There can be no assurance that the nltimate resolution of these or other inquiries and investigations will not have
a material adverse effect on our businiess or operations, or that a formal complaint wilt not be initiated. We alse receive
complaints and inquiries in the ordinary course of our business from both custormers and governmental and non-governmental
bodies on behalf of customers, and in some cases these customer complaints have risen to the level of litigation. There can be
no assuranc:e that the ulttmate resolunon of these malters will not have a material adverse affect on our busmess or results of

o "OPGI‘atIOI‘IS
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We have recorded  liability of dpproximately 550,000 and $1,079,000 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, for estimated losses resulting fror various legal proceedings against our Company. Attorneys fees associated
with the various legal proceedings are expensed as incurred, Other key estimates are dlSCussEd elsewhere in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements set forth in Item 8 of this Anmual Report.

We are also subject to various claims and Jegal proceedings covering matters that arise in the ordinary course of
business. We believe that the resolution of these other cases will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
position, or results of operations.

ITEM 4, REMOVED AND RESERVED
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND

ISSUER PURCHASES OFEQUITY SECURITIES

MARKET INFORMATION

Our common stock began trading on the New York Stock Exchange - Amex Securities on Angust 16, 2004 under the
symbol “IIG.” The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices as reported on the New York Stock

Exchanpe — Amex Securities for the periods indicated.

High 1.ow

Year Ended December 31, 2010

October to December 2010 $ 525 % 422

July to Septensber 2010 : 5.00 3.16

April 10 Juge 2010 : 7.00 3.25

January to March 2010 7.35 3.18
Six Months Ended December 31, 2009%

October to December 2009 . : 7.85 5,79

July to September 2009 : 830 6.10
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

April to June 2009 : ) 8.50 4.00

January to March 2009 T 5.90 3.10

October to December 2008 1110 345

Tuly to September 2008 ' 12.15 B.15
* " "We changed our fiscal vear end to December 31 effective December 31, 2009. Accordingly, our fiscal period ended

December 31, 2009 was comprised of only two fiscal quarters.
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SECURITY HOLDERS

There were 292 holders of record of our shares of conunon stock as of February 28, 2011, The murmber of holders does
not include individual participants in security positions listings.

DIVIDENDS

The following table sets forth information regarding cash dividends declared by our Board.of Directors for the year
_ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009, and the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2009;

Per Share
Declaration Dafe ‘ Dividend Record Date Total Amoeat Payment Date
Year Ended December 31, 2010

December 20, 2010 by 002 December 30,2010 $ 214,000 Jamuary 7, 2011
'September 28,2010 b 0.02 October 7, 2010 & 228,000 October 14, 2010
June 22, 2010 b 0.02 June 20,2010 § 229,000 Tuly 7, 2010
March 29, 2010 L 0.02 April 5,2010 § 229,000 April 12, 2010
Six Months Ended December 31, 2009 -

December 22, 2009 £ 0.02 December29,2009 § 229,000 Janaury 5, 2010
Séptembar 14, 2009 kN 0.02 September 22,2009 § 229,000 September 29, 2009
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009

June 30, 2009 $ 0.02 July 15,2009 $ 229,000 July 31, 2009
March 25, 20069 b 0.02 April 6,2009 $ 228,000 April 20, 2009
December 19, 2008 $ 0.02 Jenuary4,2009 § 227,000  January 20, 2009
Septernber 3, 2008 k) 011 September 20,2008 & 1,256,000 September 26, 2008

There are no contrar:mal restrictions on dividends declared for the year ended December 31, 2010, six montlm ended
December 31, 2009, and fiscal year ended hune 30, 2009,

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SEQURITIES
We have a share purchase program that authorizes us to purchase outstanding shares of our commeon stocle The
aggregate dollar amount originaily authorized in September 2006 for purchase was $20,000,000 through Septerber 2009, In

September 2007, our Board of Directors awthorized the purchase of an additional $50,000,600 of owr commeon stock through
September 2012. The following are defails of purchases under this program for the quarter ended December 31, 2010:
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Ocotober 1, 2010 - October 31, 2010
November 1, 2010 - November 30, 2010
December 1, 2010 - December 31, 2010
Total
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Total Number  Appeoximate

of Dollas
Shares Value of
Purchased Shares that
As Part of May Yet Be
FPublicly Purchased
Total Number Average Anmnounced Under the
of Shares Price Paid Plans Plans or
Purchased (2) Per Share or Programs Programs
- - - $42,552,000
- - - $42,552 0060
737463 8 4775 737463 $42,490,000
737463 % 4,75 737,463 $42,490,000

(a) Our share purchase program was originally announced on September 5, 2006. On September 4, 2007, our Board of
Directors authorized the repurchase of an additional $50,000,000 of our common stock, bringing the total amount
authorized for repurchase to $70,000,000 fhrough September 2012, During the three months ended December 31,
2010, 13,567 shares were purchased in open-market transactions at an average share price of $4.57.

On MNevenber 3, 2010, we annomnced the commencement of a medified Dutch auction tender offer to purchase up to
$4,750,000 in value of shares of our common stock at a price not less than $4.35 per share and not more than $4.75 -
per share. The tender offer closed on December 10, 2010, afier which we purchased and cancelled 723,896 shares of

our common stock at a cost 0f 3,438,000,

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES

None
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The consclidated statemnent of aperations data for the year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended December
31, 2009, and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, and the consolidated balance sheet data as of Decetnber 31, 2010, and
December 31, 2009 are derived from ouwr audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual
Report. The consolidated statement of operations data for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, 2007, and 2006 ard the
consolidated balance sheet data as of June 30, 2009, 2008, 2007, and 2006 are derived from audited consolidated financiai
statements not included in this Annual Report. In order to provide a meaningful comparison with owr current calendar year 2010
results and the six month fransition period ended December 31, 2009, the selected financial data below includes the
consolidated statement of operations data for the year ended December 31, 2009 and six months ended December 31, 2008,
which are derived from our wmnandited consolidated financial statements not included in this Annuat Report. Historical results
are not nccessarily indicative of the results to be expected in the fature.

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the
notes thereto, set forth in Item 8 of this Anmai Report, as well as the discussion under ltem 7, Management 5 Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, included in this Annnal Report.

Year Ended Six Monihs Ended
December3i, . December 31, . Fiscal Year Ended June 38,
. 2010 2009 2009 2008 2009 2008 2007 1006
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Consolidated Statement

of Operations Data:

Revenue 0§ 65793 § 76,007 § 35716 $ 54,120 % 94411 $128048 $151,617 § 185089
Net income (loss) $ (23100 8 11,418 § 1,331 $(17,628) § (7.542) $ 3,142 § 24,001 $110,622

Net income (loss) per

common share: _ :

Basic $ (2008 100§ 012 % (155 % (066) § 027 § 194 § 909
Diluted § (02008 100 8§ 012 § (155 % ((v6s) 3 026 $ 187 5 876

Dividends per common

_share $§ ©co08 § Q08 5§ 004 8 01308 017 § 044 § 020 8 -
Weighted average
" cormon shares N

outstanding: '

Basic 11,357 11,381 11,402 11,351 11,371 11,676 12,344 12,164

Diluted 11,357 11,423 11,485 11,351 11,371 11,8358 12,830 12,623

As of December 31, As of June 30,
2010 2009 2008 2009 2008 2607 2006
: (in thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents § 14207 § 21,549 § 18762 § 20474 §$ 26,184 S 36,859 $§ 30,023
Working capital 11,388 17,604 14,140 16,337 20,558 35,755 19,492
Total assets 51,644 56,442 75,772 67,354 86,614 96,710 66,012
Deferred revenue 23,280 22,274 40,962 33,863 43,191 42455 28,757
Debt and coilateralized borrowings — — 148 115 179 — —
Capital lease abligations — — — — — —— 91
Stockholders® equity 20,120 25,982 13,666 24,400 32475 44 408 29,979
33
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS SAYE HARBOR

In addition to kistorical information, this Ammal Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning
of Section 274 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Actual vesults could
differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements as o resulf of a number of factors, risks and

, uncertainties, including the risk factors set forth in Jtem 1A above and the risk factors set forth in this Annual

i Report. Generally, the words “anticipate”, “expect™, “intend”, “believe™ and similar expressions identify forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking statements made in this Anmaal Report are made as of the filing date of this Annual Report
y - with the BEC, and future events or cireumstances could cause results that differ significantly from the forward-looking
statemerus included here. Accordingly, we caution readers not (o place undue reliance on these statemenis. We expressly
diselaim any obligation to update or aiter our forward-looking statements, whether, as a resull of new information, future
events or otherwise after the dare of this document.

OVERVIEW

We are a provider of clond-based infrastctre services 1o eoireprenews and small and medium-sized businesses.
Cur services include high guality voice and messaging services over broadband networks, Do-B-For-Me and Do-It- Yourself
content management and wehsite building tools, ounline marketing, online lead generation, e-commerce technology, and training
sohztions that enable entreprencurs and small and medium—sized businesses to build and maintzin an effective online
presence. Our services are designed to help increase the predictability of success for online businesses.

i Our primary web service offerings are designed to meet the needs of entreprenewrs and sinall and medium-sized
businesses anywhere along its lifecycle. Our Do-lt-Yourself package includes our robust content management and website
bnilding solution, filly enabled e-commerce package, online marketing tools, and educational training modutes. In addition to
our primary service offerings for the Do-It- Yourself customer base, we also offer a variety of premium services to the Do-It-

* Yourself customer such as initial sité desigti and build, logo design, dropshippet/supplier integration, and a variety of search
engine optimization and link building packages.

»

Qur Do-It-For-Me services are comprehensive and flexible allowing us to meet the needs of a wide variety of

i customers ranging from thase just establishing their oniine presence to those wanting 1o ephance their existing online

% presence. These services include custom website design and development, search engine optimization, 1ink building,
conversion rafc optimization, paid search management, and social media management. Additionally, as the online space
continues to evolve owr product and service offerings will continue to evolve to keep our customers on the cutting edge of the
online space.

In addition to web services, we offer a suite of high quality voice and messaging services over broadband
networks. Our smail and home office services are portable and allow our customers fo make and receive phone calls almost
anywhere a broadband Internet connection is available. We transmit these calls using VoIP technology, which converts vaice
signals into digital data packets for transmission over the Infernet. Af a cost effective rate, each of pur calling plams provides a
| number of basic features typically offered by traditional telephone service providers, plus a wide range of enhanced features
i that we believe offers an atfractive value proposition to our customers.

LR RPELS

We rely heavily on owur network, which is a flexible, scalable Session Initiation Protoco! (SIP) based VoIP network
that rides on top of the Internet. This platform enables a user via a single “identity” to access and utilize services and features
regardless of how they are connected to the Internet. As 2 result, with one identity, either 2 number or user name, CuStOmErs

1

% have access fo Crexendo voice, messaging, features, and personal profile information regardless of location, device, or how
i they access the Internet.

]

i SOURCES OF REVENUE

! We derive our revenue from sales of a variety of services to entrepreneurs, small and medium-sized businesses,

i tncluding sale of software licenses, web design, SEO, paid search management, hosting, link building, and commissions from
third parties. Leads are generated primarily through direct mail marketing campaigns, cnline advertising campaigns, and
through strategic parmerships.

LICENSE REVENCE
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We currently derive a substantial majority of our revenue from cash collected on the sale of our content management
and web building software licenses at workshop events held throughout the year, as well as principal collected on the sale of
software licenses sold through cxtended payment term arrangements (EPTAs}, In the fourth quarter of 2010 we transitioned
approximately 80% from a sofiware license model to a Software as a Service (Saa8) model. However, as we recopnize
revenue on our EPTA contracts as cash is collected, we will continue to derive sofiware license revenue for the next two to
three years as the original sale that derived the EPTA contract was a software license.
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REVENUE

We penerate professional services revenue primarily from website design and development, search engine
optimization services, link building, paid search management services, and conversion rate optimization services. These
services are typically billed on a fixed price basis or on a monthly recurring basis with an initial term of six to twelve months.

! SUBSCRIPTION AND HOSTING REVENUE

During the fourth quarter of 2010 we transitioned approximately 80% from a software license model to a SaaS model
which provides access to our software for a menthly fee. We also derive revenue from monthly web hosting fees from our
software license customers who utilize our hosting services. Revenue is recognized ratably on a daily basis over the life of the
; contract for all subscription and hosting services. The typical contract is a recurring monthly contract, although terms range up
to 12 months. As we progress in this fransition from a sofiware license model to a SaaS model, key metrics, such as net
i subscriber additions and monthly churn become increasingly important metrics in measuring Buctuations in revenne.

PRODUCT REVENUE

We generate product revenue from the sale of DVD training courses covering a host of ondine marketing topics,
including affiliate marketing, Amazon® and eBay® training, comparison shopping cngines, competitive reconnaissance,
conversion rate optimization, keyword research, link building, localization and regionalization, paid search campaigns,
permission marketing, search engine optimization, social media marketing, and Google® Analytics. These services are
typically billed on a fixed price basis.

COMMISSION REVENUE

We generate commissions from contracted third-party companies who telernarket complementary products and
‘services to our customer base. This commission is typically paid as a percentage of revenue generated by these third-party
. companies on products and services sold to our customer base.

As we are currently reliant upon sales generated through our workshop channel, for both current revenue in the form of
cash collected on the initial sale of the software license, DVD training courses, or professional services seld through our
] events, as well as future revenue in the form of principal cash collected on EPTA contracts, our revenue will fluctuate based
'J upon the quantity of sales teams we have deployed at any point in time, quantity of events held, average cash percentage of
buyers at events, average number of buying units at events, average purchase price, and average sales rate at each event. In
addition to the metrics associated with our workshop events, our revenue will fluctuate with the dollar volume of collections on
our receivables, as we recognize revenue upon receipt of cash from our custorners and not at the time of sale.

We have histarically sold our products and services through an educational seminar model which has subjected us to
claims by governmental agencies that we are required 1o register as a seller of business opportunities, as well as raised
questions about the manner in which we sell the product. While we have successfully defended the clajm of selling a business
, opportunity, except in the State of California which has a statute with different requirements than other jurisdictions, we have
made changes to the manper in which we sell the product at our seminars in an effort to be more ransparent. We do not believe
our model constitutes a business opportunity, but we have the ability te adjust owr model ifthere are changes inthe law relative
to selling business opportimities, Cur ability to effectively align our business model with the needs of our customers will
impact our fiture growth opportunities.

Economic Factors

The tight credit markets in place over the past two years has adversely affected our business as consumers and
businesses continued 10 be limited in their ability to obtain alternate sources of financing. Since the tightening of the credit
markets began, we have seen an increasing percentage of customers elect to utilize cur financing option, which have terms of
between two and three vears, Because we recognize revenoe as cash is collected, and not at the time of sale, this increase in
the percentage of customers utilizing our financing option has negatively impacted our current revenue, but will result in
additional future revenie as customer payments are collected.
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Opportunities

Technological and product innovation has been the foundation of our long-term growth, and we intend to maintain our
commitment o invest in product development, engineering excellence, and delivering high-quality products and services to
customers. Recoghizing that ong of our primary business ohjectives is to help entreprenewrs and small and medium businesses
increase the effectiveness and visibility of their enline presence, we organized Crexendo Web Services. Crexendo Web
Services offers a wide range of services, including content management, Saa$, SEQ services, search engine management
services, website and logo design services and conversion rate optimization services.

We believe our Jong-term focus on investing in products and developing new and alternative sales channels is enabling
us to build a foundation for growth by delivering innovative products, creating opportunities for potential channel pariners, and
improving costomer satisfaction, Our focus continues o be to execute in key areas through ongping innovation on our integraied
comtent management software sotution, responding effectively to cuostomer and parmer needs, and focusing internally on product
excellence, business efficacy, and accountability actoss our Company.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with US GAAP and form the basis for the
following discussion and analysis on critical accounting policies and estimates. The preparation of these financial statements
requires estimates ‘and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On a regular basis we evaluate our estimates and assumptions. Estimates are
based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that wre believed 1o be reasonable under the citcumstances,
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may ditfer from these estimates under different asswmptions or conditions. Manzgement has
discussed the development, selection and disclosure of these estimates with our Board of Directors and its Audit Conmiittee.

7 * A suromary of our significant accounting policies is provided in Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements. We

_believe the critical accounting policies and estimates described belew reflect our more significant estimates and assumptions
wsed in the preparation of owr consolidated financial statements. The jmpact and any associated risks on our business that are
related to these policies are also discussed throughout this *Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations™ where such policies affect reported and expected financial results,

Revenue Recogrnition

In general, we recognize revenue when all of the following conditions are satisfied: (1) there is persuasive evidence
of an arrangement; (2) the product or service has been provided to the customier; (3) the amount of fees to be paid by the
customer is fixed or determinable; and (4) the collection of owr fees is probable. Specifics to revenue category are as follows:

Software License and Product Revenue -

Cash siles of software licenses and DVD training courses, are recognized s revenue when the cash is received, net of
expected customer refunds, upon expiration of the customers’ rescission period, which typically occurs three days after the
licenses are delivered or when the Internet training workshop takes place, whichever occurs later.

Software licenses and DV training courses sold under EPTAs are recognized as revenue upon receipt of cash from
customers and not at the time of sale. Although we believe we are able 1o reasonably estimate the collectability of our
receivables based upon our history of offering EPTAs, accounting standards require revenue to be deferred unti] custormer
payments are received if collection of the original principal balance is not probable. Additionally, if we subsequently sell the
receivables on a non-recourse basis, accounting standards require that the related revenue be deferred unti] the customer makes
cash payments to the third-party purchaser of the receivables. There are no receivable balances ouistanding that are subject to
recourse by our Company.
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We have bundled products in two types of arrangements at our Internet training workshop. During the fiscal year
ended Jume 30, 2009, the six month ended December 31, 2009, and the first three quarters of the year ended December 31,
2010, we primarily combined our software license with other complementary products and would assign fair value using the
residual method in accordance with accounting guidance for software arrangements. We use the residual method as we have
vendor specific objective evidence for all undelivered elements in the software arrangement. During the fourth quarter of 2019,
we primarily sold our software under a $aaS model! and would combine it with other complementary products and would
assign fair value using the residual method in accordance with accounting guidance for multi-element arrangements. We use the
residual method as we have vendor specific objective evidence for all undelivered clements in the multi-element arrangement.

i Professional Services Revenue

Fees collected for professional services, including website design and development, search engine optimization
services, link-building, and paid search management services are recognized as revenue, net of expected customer refunds, over
the period during which the services are expected to be performed, based upon the fair value for such services. Fees related fo
EPTA contracts are deferred and recognized as revenue during the service period or when cash is collected, whichever ecours
later.

Subscription and Hosting Revenue

Fees collected for subscription and hosting revenue are recognized ratably as services are provided. Customers are

i billed for these services-on a monthly or annual basis at the customer’s option, For all of owr customers, regardiess of their
billing method, subscription revenue is recorded as deferred revenne in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As
services are performed, we recognize subscription revenue ratably over the applicable service period. When we provide a free
trial. period, we do not begin to recognize subscription revenve witil the trial period has ended and the customer has been billed
for the services.

- Compmission Revenus

We have contracts with third-party entities with respect te telemarketing product sales to our customers following the
sale of the initial software {icenses. These products and services are intended to assist the customers with their Internet
businesses. These products are sold and delivered completely by third parties. We receive commissions from these third

 parties, and recognize the revenue as the commissions are received, net of expected customer refunds.

Change in Avail Contract

i oy b L b b R YR T i B A AL S b e ks 3 e

In April 2007, we began marketing and selling Avail 24/7, an all-in-ome communications service which assists small
businesses and entrepreneurs to manage phone menus, voicemail, email, and fax in one onling application. Customers
purchasing the Avail product are charged a non-refindable activation fee along with a monthly service fee. The non-refundable
activation fee is deferved and recognized ratably over the estimated customer life, which is currently estimated to be four and
one-half years. The monthly service fee is recopnized ratably aver the service periad.

In January 2010 we changed the contract that is associated with the sale of cur Avail 24/7 subscription. Effective

- March 31, 2010 any customer that has not activaied their Avail 24/7 subscription was assessed an activation fee of an

additiopal $34.95. Prior to this change in contract, this activation fee was included in a bundle of items sold at the workshop
! and there was no time limit gn activation. All existing customers were notified of the change in contract in Janvary and were
: given 60-days to activate Avail 24/7 without paying the additional activation fee. As a result of this change in contract, we
; . recognized approximately $1,000,000 in revenue upon expiration of the 60-day notice in March 2010 for the Avail 24/7
i activation fees described above as we no longer had an obligation to provide the activation. In additien to the change in the
t
]

i
R}
;
{
.
3
]
i
!

Avail 24/7 contract, this product will not be included in the bundle of items sold at the workshop. Avail 24/7 will continue to
be sold as a standalone product,

Fees collected related to sales tax and other povernment assessed taxes are recognized on a net basis.

37

42 of 99 3/11/2011 5:52 PM

S e


http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/I075736/O00l3544881I00

iig_10k.htm http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/ 1075736/00013544881100...

LR

43 of 99

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Since 1999, we have offered to owr customers the option to finance, through EPTAs, purchases made at the Infernet
tratning workshops. We record the receivable and deferred revenue, along with an allowance for doubtful accounts, at the time
the EPTA contract is perfected. The allowance represents estimated 1osses resulting from the customers’ failure to make
required payments. The allowances for doubtful accoumts for EPTAs we retain by the Company are netied against the current
and long-term trade receivable balances in our consolidated balance sheets. All allowance estimates are based on historical
eollection experience, specific identification of probable bad debts based on collection efforts, aging of trade receivables,
customer payment history, and other known factors, including current economic conditions. If allowances prove inadequate,
additional allowances would be required. Because revenue generated from cusfomers financing through EPTAs is deferred and
not recognized prior to the collection of cash, adjustments to allowances for doubtful accounts are made through deferred
revenue and do not impact operating income or loss. Trade receivables are wrilten-off against the allowance when the related
customers arc no longer making required payments and the trade receivables are determined to be uncollectible, typically 90
days past their original due date.

Income Taxes

fn preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate our income taxes in each of the
jurisdictions in which we operate. This process invelves estimating current income tax liabilities together with assessing
temporary differences resulting from differing freatment of items for tax and financizl reporting purposes. These temporary
differences result in deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Our deferred income tax assets consist primarily of the future
benefit of net operating loss carryforwards, certain deferred revenme, accrued expenses and tax credit carryforwards. 'We may
recognize the tax benefits from an uncertain tax position only if it is more-1ikely-than-not that the tax position will be sustained
on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Results of Consolidated Operations

The foliowing discussion of financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Staternents and Notes thereto and other financial information included elsewhere in this Annual
Report. On November 2009, our board of directors approved a change of our Comparny’s fiscal year end from June 30
December 31 cffective December 31, 2009. The resulting six-month period ended December 31, 2009 may be referred to
herein as the “Transition Period”. The six-month period ended December 31, 2008 is unaudited. We refer to the period
beginning July 1, 2008 and ending June 30, 2009 as “fiscal 2009”, and the period beginning July 1, 2007 and ending June 30,
2008 as “fiscal 2008”.

In order to provide a meaningful comparison with our current calendar year 2010 results, the tables and discussion that
follow compare the results for the year ended December 31, 2010 with the unaudited results of the year ended December 31,
2009, as well as the six months-ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 (umaundited) and the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and
2008.

Year Ended December 31, Bix Months Ended Deeember 31, Fiseal Year Ended June 34,
2010 2009 2009 2008 : 2009 2008 -

Consolidated Operations (in thousands, except per share amoumnts)

Revenue § 65793 % 76007 § 35716 § 54120 § 04411 § 128,048
Income (loss) before income taxes {1,618) 7,405 1,968 (7.298) {1,861) 6,181
Income tax benefit (provision) {692) 4,013 (637) (10.330) {5,681} (3,039)
Net income (toss) (2,318) 11,418 1,331 (17,628) (7,542) 3,142
Diluted net income (Joss) per share § 0.20) % 1.00 % 012 % (1.55) § (D6a) § 028
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Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2609
. Revernue

Total net revenue decreased 13% in the year ended December 31, 2010 compared with the same period of 2009,
primarily due to a 28% decrease in principal collected on owr accounts receivable balance, a 16% decrease in commissions
payable to us by third parties as a result of fewer leads generated from our StoresOnline division, and 2 15% decrease in the
nurmber of workshops held. Crexendo Web Services generated revenue of $1,322,000 during the year ended December 31,
2010 compared with $127,000 in the corresponding period in 2009,

e R VP i e n e e ey

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes

Income (loss) before income tax decreased $9.0 million, or 122%, in the year ended December 31, 2010 compared
with the corresponding period 0of 2009. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010 decreased $10.2 million, or 13% as
compared to same pertod of 2009. Total operating expenses decreased 2% to $72,367,000 for the year ended December 31,
2010, compared to $74,220,000 in the corresponding period of 2009. The increase in operating expenses as a percentage of
revenue, from 98% in the year ended December 31, 2009 to 110% in the year ended December 31, 2010, was primarily
aftribatable o increases in costs in our Crexendo Web Services and our Crexendo Network Services division as we continue to
develop new products and services and invest in additional sales and marketing channels to diversify our customer base.

|

Income Tix Provision

During the year ended December 31, 2010, we recorded an income tax provision of $692,000. This compares to
income tax benefit of $4,013,000 for the vear ended December 31, 2009, Income taxes are based on the estimated effective
federal, state and foreign income tax rates. Although we had a pre-tax loss for the year ended December 31, 2010 of
$1,618,000 we had provision for income taxes primarily as a result of an uncermin tax liability due to the use of foreign tax

- credits on returns amended during the vear ended December 31, 2010 and an additional valuation atlowance placed on our
rermaining foreign tax credits. Our tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2009 was favorable as a result of the reversal of an
uncertain tax liability due to a favorable conclusion of an audit in the United States.

Six Months Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Six Months Ended December 31, 2008
Revenue

Total net revenue deereased 34% In the six months ended December 31, 2009 compared with the same period of 2008,
primarily due to a 33% decrease in principal collected on our accounts receivable balance, a 33% decrease in commissions
payabie to us by third parties as a result of fewer leads generated from our StoresOnline division, and a 24% decrcase in the
number of workshops held. Crexendo Web Services generated revenue of $127,000 during the six months ended December 31,
2009 compared with zero in the ¢orresponding period in 2008.
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Income {Loss) Before Income Taxes

i Income {Ioss) before income tax increased $9.3 million, or 127%, in the six months ended December 31, 2009
compared with the corresponding period of 2008. Revenue for the six months ended Precerber 31, 2009 decreased $18.4
million, or 34% as compared to same period of 2008. Operating expenses decreased as a percentage of revenue, from 119% in
the six months ended December 31, 2009 to 101% in the six months ended December 31, 2008, The decrease is primarily due
to the implementation of sales and marketing cost savings programs which lowered our cost per mail piece in owr StoresOnline
division as described below in the segment operating results.

Income Tax Provision

During the six months ended December 31, 2009, we recorded an income tax provision of $637,000. This compares
to an income tax provision of $10,330,000 for the six months ended December 31, 2008. The income tax provision recorded
: " for the six months ended December 31, 2008 is hipher than federa), state, and foreign statutory rates as a result of owr settiement
i with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) and the creation of a valuation allowance on certain deferred income tax assets, as
discussed below.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
Revenue

Total net revenue decreased 26% in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 compared with the same period of 2008,
primarily due to an 11% decrease in principal collected on our accounts receivable balance, a 17% decrease in commissions
payable to us by third parties as a result of fewer leads generated from our StoresOnline division, and a 24% decrease in the
number of workshops held.

i
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“ Income (Loss) Before Income Tuxes

i Income (loss) before income tax increased $8.0 million, or 130%, in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 compared
with the corresponding period of 2008. Revenue for fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 decreased $33.6 million, or 26% as
compared to same period.of 2608, Total operating expenses decreased 22% to $102,290,000 for the year ended December 31,
2010, compared to $131,301,000 in the corresponding period of 2009, Operating expenses increased as a percentage of
revenue, from 103% in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 to 108% in fiscal year ended hune 30, 2009, Trends in operating
expenses will not always be consistent with the trends inrevenues due to the fact that cost of revenues and selling and
marketing expenses are typically recognized when incurred, at the time of sale, and no later than the expiration of the customer's
three-day cancellation period, but the related revenues are often deferred in accordance with accounting guidance.

Income Tax Provision

During fiscal 2009, we recorded an income tax provision of $5,681,000, This compares 1o an income 1ax provision of
$3,039,000 during fiscal 2008. The income tax provision recorded in fiscal 2009 is higher than federal, state, and foreign
statutory rates as a result of our setijement with the Internal Revenwe Service (*IRS™) and the creation of a valuation allowance
on certain deferred tax assets.

e I " P S A et A 3 A

1
l In August 2009, we reached a settlement with the IRS resulting from its audit of our income tax retrns for fiscal years
: 2007, 2006, and 20035. The settlement with the IRS related to the following ilems:

' . the deductibility, under the provisicns of Internal Revenue Code Section 274 (“Section 274™), of 50% of the cost
of meals provided to attendees at our preview and workshop training sessions. The setflement reached with the IRS
appeals office allows us to deduct 100% of all meals provided to attendees at both the preview and workshop
training sessions. Therefore, no labilities are recognized in the consolidated financial statements related to this
issue.
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© limitations imposed by Internal Revenue Code Section 382 (“Section 3827). Section 382 imposes limitations on a

corporation’s ability to wilize its NOLs if it experiences an “ownership change™ In general terms, an ownership
change results from transactions increasing the ownership of certain stockholders in the stock of a corporation by
more than 50 percentape points over a three-year period, From the time of our formation through fiscal 2002, we
issued a significant number of shares, resulting in two changes of control, as defined by Section 382. As a result of
the most recent ownership change, utilization of owr pre-ownership change NOL carryovers are subject to an annual
Himitation wnder Section 382, The annual limitation is determined by multiplying the valve of owr stock at the time
of the ownership change by the applicable federal long-term tax-exempt rate. Any unused annual Jimitation may be
carried over to later years (unttl those NOLs expire), and the amount of the limitation may, under certain
circurnstances, be increased by the “recognized built-in gains™ that occur during the five-year period after the
ownership change (the “recognition period”). We had previously determined we had sufficient built-in gains to
offset: future income without limitation. As a result of the settlement reached with the [RS, we conceded that the
fiscal 2002 ownership change resulted in a Section 382 Nmitation of $461 000 per year and that there were not
sufficient buihi-in gains to offset future income, Based on this settlement, we have determined that it is more likely
than not that approximately $14,641,000 of our federal NOL carry forwards will expire unutilized. We do not
account for the forgone NOL. carryovers in our deferred tax assets and only account for the NOL carryforwards that
will not expire umitilized as a resvit of the restrictions of IRC section 382.

the TRS argued to re-open our ncome tax returns for the fiscal years ended Tune 30, 2004 and 2003, both of which
are closed from examination. The IRS argued that under Section 481(a) there was a change in “method of
accounting” with respect 1o our recognized built-in-gains described above. As part of the setitement, the TRS
appeals office -found no merit to the assertion that Section 481(a) can be applied to the fiscal 2004 and 2003 tax
refurns. Therefore, no liabilities are recognized in the consolidated financiaf statements related to this isspe.

Segment Operating Results

Th¢ information below is organized in accordance with our three reportable segments, Segment operating income

{loss) is equal to segment net revenne less segment cost of revenue, sales and marketing, and general and adminisirative
cxpenses. Segment expenses do not include certain costs, such as corporate general and administrative expenses and
share-based compensation expenses, which are not allocated to specific segments.

Operating Results of our StoresOnline Division (in thouwsands)

46 of 99

Year Ended December 31, Six Months Ended December 31, Fiscal Year Emded June 30,
2010 2009 2009 2008 2049 2008
StoresQOnline \ ‘
Revenue § 64471 $ 75880 $ 35589 § 54,120 % 94411 § 128,048
Operating expenses: :
Cost of revenue 20,876 22,384 11,186 17,746 28,945 41,0611
Selling and merketing 31,433 33,459 15,911 34,565 52,154 09,536
General and administrative 6,653 6,330 3,037 . 6,141 9630 9,488
QOperating income (loss) L3 5509 % 13,167 § 5,455 % (4,332) § 3682 % 7,993
Other income 4,956 5,619 2491 2,891 6,018 9,434

Income (loss) before taxes 3 10,465 § 18,786 % 7946 % (144D 3 9700 §

17.427

Year Ended December 31, 2016 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2009

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010 decreased 15% to $64,471,000 from $75,880,000 for the year ended

December 31, 2009.
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Revenue from our StoresOnline division is generated primarily through cash collected on the sale of StoresOnline
software licenses at workshop events held throughout the year, as well as principal amounts cellected on the sale of
StoresOnline software Heenses sold through EPTAs. Fees for our StoresOnline Software (508} licenses sold under EPTAs are
recopnized as revenue as cash payments are received from the customer and not at the time of safe. Revenue related to cash
collected under EPTA agreements decreased to $18,028,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to $24,966,000
for the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease in cash collected under EPTA agreements was primarily due to a
decrease in our accounts receivable balance, which for StoresOnline, generates revenue as cash is collected in future
periods. Qur typical EPTA contract is for a period of two to three years. As such, increases in sales at our workshop events
made through EPTA’s are initially recognized in oor balance sheet, net of bad debt, through our deferred revenue balance, rather
than through the income statement. As we have decreased the number of sales teams over the past two years from nipe teams, to
six teams, and finally to four teams, our principal collection of receivables has steadily declined. As we currently finance a
substartial percentage of our customers through EPTA apreements, one of the key indicaters in our sales growth is increases in
owr deferred revenue balance, as it represents future revenue upon collection of receivables. The following table summarizes
the activity within deferred revenue for the years ended December 31, 2030 and 2009 {in thousands):

StoresOnline deferred revenue as of January 1, 2009 $ 40,962
Cash collected on Principal of EPTA Contracts (24,966}
Deferred revenue added during period (net of writeoffs) . 6,249
StoresOnline deferred reverue as of December 31, 2009 - 22245
Cash collected on Principal of EPTA Contracts {18,028)
Dieferred revenue added during period (net of writeofis) 19,012
StoresOnline deferred revenue as of December 31, 2010 § 23,229

~ Cash sales of SOS licenses and other products at our events as well as hosting revenue decreased to $35,794,000 in
the year ended December 31, 2010, corﬂpared to $38,171,000 in the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease was

- . primarily attnbutablc %0

(1) The number of Internet Training Workshops we conducted during the year ended December 31,2010 decreased
15% to 571 (including 28 that were held outside the United States) compared to 673 (21 were he]d outside the United
Swtes) during the year ended December 31, 2009.

(2) As aresuit of the decrease in number of events in the year ended December 31, 2010, we had approximately
7,755 fewer buying units in attendance at our previews in the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to the year ended
December 31,2009,  As a result of the decrease in munber of events, we had approximately 1,897 fewer workshop buyers in
the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease in the mumber of
warkshop buyers reduced revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010 by approximately §3 638 ,000, compared to the
corresponding period of 2009.

(3) Cash purchases as a percentage of total workshop purchases decreased to 37% for the year ended December 31,
2010 from 41% for the year ended December 30, 2009. The lower percentage of cash at the workshop further decreased
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010 by approximately $2,621,000, compared to the corresponding period of 2009.

{4) Offsetting the decrease in workshop buying units and the lower cash percentage was the fact that approximately
28% of buying units made a purchase at the workshops during the year ended December 31, 2010, compared 10 25% for the
year ended December 31, 2009, which resulted in 1,465 addmonal workshop buyers and $2 957,000 in additional workshop
revenue.

(5) Further offsetting the decrease in workshop buying units and the lower cash percentage was a $228,000 increase
in hosting revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared to the corresponding period of 2009,

(6) Revenue from preview and follow-up events decreased by $1,729 600 during the year ended December 31, 2010
compared to the year ended December 31, 2009
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{7) Partiaily offsetting the overall decrease in revenue was a decrease to deferred revenue of $769,000 in the year
ended December 31, 2010 compared to a decrease of $151,000 in the same pertod of 2009. The majority of the decrease in
2010 was due to the change in the Avail 24/7 contract {See Note [to the financial statements). The difference in the change in
deferred revenne in both periods vesulted in a $618,000 increase to Tevenue in the year ended December 31, 2010 comparad (o
the same period in 2009,

(&) Pardally offsetting the overall decrease in revenue was a decrease in refunds when compared to the prior
period. As a result of giving fewer refimds in the current period, revenue increased $2,081,000 in the year ended December
31, 2010 compared to the year ended December 31, 2009.

Commissions from third parties decreased 16% to $10,649,000 for the vear ended December 31, 2014, from
$12,743,000 for the year ended December 31, 2009,

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of the cost to conduct Internet Training Workshops, credit card fees, and the cost of
products sold, Cost of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010 decreased 794 to $20,876,000, from $22,384,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2009. Cost of revenue as a percentage of revenue increased to 32% in the current year compared to
29% in prior year, The increase in cost of reverme as a percentage of revemue was primarily doe to the implementation of
certain promotions beginning in September 2010 desigred to increase the attendance at our workshops. The impact of these
promotions was an increase of 3% to cost of revenue as a percentage of revenue.

Selling and Marketing

Selling and marketing expenses consist of payroll and related expenses for sales and marketing activities, advertising,
and promotional and public relations expenses. Selling and marketing expenses for the year ended December 31, 2610

- decreased 6% to $31,433,000, from $33,499,000 for the year ended December 31, 2009. Selling and marketing expense as a

ercentage of revenue increased to 49% in the current year from 44% in prior year, primarily due to a decrease in the response
P & Y prior year, p ¥ P

 to our direct mail advertising. This decrease intesponse rate resulted in fewer attendees at our preview events compared to
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the prior year quarter. As a result of the decrease in response rate despite the same level of expense on our direct mail
advertising, our revenue per advertising doilar decreased, which significantly impacted our seliing and marketing expense as a
percentage of revenue. The overall decrease in selling and marketing expense is due primarily to a 19% decrease in number of
preéview events to 3,404 in the current year compared to 4,191 in the prior year, which decreased preview related event costs
by approximately $525,000. Trends in selling and marketing expenses will not always be comsistent with the trends in revenue
due to the fact that seliing and marketing expenses are typically recognized when incurred, at the time of sale, and no later than
the expiration of the customer’s three-day cancellation period, but the related revenue is often deferred in accordance with the
application of generally accepted accounting principles.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist of payroll and related expenses for executive, accounting and
administrative persomel, legal, accounting and other professionals, finance company service fees, and other general corporate
expenses. General and administrative expenses for the year emded December 31, 2010 had a small decrease to $6,653.000 from
$6,830,000 for the year ended December 31, 2009,

Other fncome

Other income primarily relates to EPTA contracts, which generally carry an 18% simple interest rate. For the year
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, other income was $4.956,000 and §5,619,000, respectively. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the collection of interest income from EPTA contracts decreasing 17% to $4,653,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2010 compared ta $5,619,000 for the year ended December 31, 2009, This decrease was partially offtet by a
one-time sale of recelvables that had previously been written off the books for $303,000 in the current year,
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Six Months Ended December 31, 200% Compared to Six Months Ended December 31, 2008
Revenues

Revenues for the six months ended December 31, 2009 decreased 34% 10 $35,589, 000 from $54,120,000 for the six
months ended December 2008.

Fees for 3OS licenses sold under EPTAs are recognized as revenue as cash payments are received from the customer
and not at the time of sale, Revennes related 1o cash coliected under EPTA agreements decreased 1o $10.654,000 for the six
months ended December 31, 2009 compared to $15,819,000 for the six months ended December 31, 2008. The decrease in
cash collected under EPTA agreements 1s primarily due 10 an increase in uncollectable accounts which we believe was a result
of worsening economic conditions, as well as decrease in sales made under EPTA agreemenis as a result of the reduction in
numnber of workshop events. Dhring the six months ended December 31, 2009 we increased our reserve on uncollectable
accounts by an additionat $8,738,000 as a result of increasing dzterioration in our acecunts receivable collections. The
following table summarizes the activity within deferred revenue for the six months ended December 31, 2009 and 20038 (1n
thowsands):

StoresOnline deferred revenue as of July 1, 2008 $ 43,191
Cash collected on Principal of EPTA Contracts : ‘ (15,819
Deferred revenue added duoring period (net of writeoffs) 13,590
StoresOntine deferred revenue as of December 31, 2008 $ 40,962
StoresOnline deferred revenne as of July 1, 2009 $ 33,363
Cash collected on Principal of EPTA Contracts (10,654)
Deferred revenue subtracted during period (net of writeolfs) (935}

StoresOnline deferred:-revenue 2s of December 31, 2009 $ 22274

‘The remaining decrease in revenues for the six months ended DPecember 31, 2009 cumpared to the 5ix months ended
Decemnber 31, 2008 is primarily refated to a decrease in cash sales of SOS licenses at workshop and preview events which
decreased to $15,161,000 in the six months ended December 2009 compared to $21,717,000 in the six months ended December
31,2008 The decrease is atiributable to: '

{1} The number of Internet Training Workshops conducted during the six months ended December 31, 2009 decreased
24% to 342 (including 21 that were held outside the United States) compared to 452 (including 81 that were held outside the
Uhnited States) during the six motiths ended December 31, 2008.

(2) The average number of buying units in attendance at our workshops during the six months ended December 31,
2009 decreased to 76 from 87 during the six months ended December 31, 2008. Persons who pay an encollment fee to attend
our workshops are allowed 1o bring a guest at no additional charge, and that individual and hls/her guest constitute one buying
wmit, ¥ the parson atiends alone, that single person also counts as one buying wnit,

{3) Approximately 23% of the buying units made a purchase at the workshops during the six months ended December
31, 2009, compared to 29% for the six months ended December 31, 2008, As a resnlt of the decrease in number of events,
number of buying units per event, and percent purchased per event, we had approximately 4,300 fewer workshop buyers in the
six months ended Decemnber 31, 2009 as compared to the s8ix momths ended December 31, 2008. The result of the decrease in
the mumber of workshop buyers reduced revenue by approximately $9,332,000,

{(4) Cash purchases as a percentage of total workshop purchases increased to 43% for the six months ended December

31, 2009 compared to 41% for the six months ended December 31, 2008, The increase in cash percentage of wtal workshop
purchases increased reverme by approximately $474,000.
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Revenues were reduced by $207,000 during the six months ended December 31, 2009 and $1,280,000 during the six
months ended December 31 2008, as a result of various legal matters discussed elsewhere within this document in which
agreements were reached, or expected to be reached, allowing for customer refinds.

Third party commission and other revenues decreased 33% to $9,830,000 for the six months ended December 31,
2009 compared to $14,639,000 for the six months ended December 31, 2008. The decrease was primarily atirtbutable to 2
decrease in commissions from third parties as a result of fewer leads sent to third parties due te a decrease in our sales.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of reverue consists primarily of the cost to conduct Internet Training Workshops, credit card fees and the cost of
products sold. Cost of product and other revenues for the six months ended December 31, 2009 decreased 37% to $11,186,000
from $17,746,000 for the six momths ended December 31, 2008, The decrease in cost of product and other revenues is
primarily attributable to the decrease in workshop revenue along with the implementation of cost saving measures designed to
reduce travel and event costs. Trends in cost of revenue will not always be consistent with the trends in revenue due to the fact
that cost of revenue is typically recognized at the time of sale and no later than the expiration of the customer’s three-day
cancellation period, but the related revenue is often deferred in accordance with accounting standards.

Seiling and Marketing

Selling and marketing expenses consist of payroll and related expenses for sales and marketing activities, advertising,
and promotional and public relations expenses. Selling and marketing expenses for the six months ended December 31, 2009
decreased 54% to $15,911,000 from $34,565,000 for the six months ended December 31, 2008. The decrease in selling and
marketing expenses 1s primarily due to the implementation of cost savings programs which lowered our cost per mail piece,
which resulted in a 28% decrease in selling and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue to 45% for the six menths ended
December 31, 2009 compared to 64% for the six months ended December 31, 2008. The remaining decrease in selling and

-marketing expenses is primarily aftributable to a 24% decrease in the number of Internet Training Workshops conducted during

the six months ended Decernber 31, 2009 compared to six months ended December 31, 2008. Trends in selling and marketing
expenses will not always be consistent with the trends in revenues due to the fact that selling and marketing cxpenses are
typically recognized when incurred, at the time of sale, and no later than the expiration of the customer’s three-day cancellation
period, but the related revenues are oflen deferred in accordance with accounting puidance.

General and Adminisirative

General and administrative expenses consist of payroll and related cxpenses for executive, accounting and
administrative persomnel, legal, accounting and other professional fees, finance company service fees, and other general
corporate expenses. General and administrative expenses for the six months ended December 31, 2009 decreased 51% to
$3,037,000 from £6,141,000 for the six months ended December 31, 2008. The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in Jegal
expenses of $1,380,000, as a result of several legal settlements in the prior year, and a decrease in finance servicing company
payments of $842,000 as a result of a reduction in principal collected on our receivables portfolio. The remaimng decrease js
due to several cost savings initiatives in the current year which reduced otr telepbone, office supply, shareholder and investor
refations as well as ofher general and admimistrative expenses.

Other Income
Other income is primarily derived from the EPTA contracts, which generally carry an 18% simple interest rate. Other

income for the six months ended December 31, 2009 decreased 14% to $2,491,000 compared to $2,891,000 for six months
ended December 3, 2008. The decrease is atiributable to the decrease in the collection of trade receivables.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008
Revernues

Revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 {“fiscal 2009™} decreased 26% to $94,411,000 from $128,048.000 for
the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2008 (“fiscal 2008,

Fees for 8O8 licenses sold nnder EPTAS are recognized as revenue as cash payments are received from the customer
and not at the time of sale. Revenues related to cash collected under EPTA agreements decreased to $30,131,000 for fiscal
2009 compared to $33,970,000 for fiscal 2008, The decrease in cash collected under EPTA agreements is primarily dueto a
reduction in EFTA sales during the period as a result of a reduction in number of salcs teams and cvents, The following table
sumnmarizes the activity within deferred revenue for the years ended Tune 30, 2008 and 2009 {in thousands):

StoresOnline deferred revenue as of July 1, 2007 $ 42,455
Cash collected on Principal of EPTA Confracts (33,969}
Deferred revenue added during period {net of writeoffs) ' 34,705
StoresOnline deferred revenue as of June 30, 2008 : 43,191
Cash collected on Principal of EPTA Contracts (30,131)
. Deferred revenue added during period (net of writeoffs) B 20,803
StoresOnline deferred revenve as of June 34, 2009 $ 33,863

The remaining decrease in revenue from fiscal 2009 compared to fisca) 2008 is primarily related 1o a decrease in cash
sales of SOS licenses at workshop and preview cvents which decreased to $37,395,000 in fiscal 2009 compared to
$61,487.000 in fiscal 2008, The decrease is atributable to:

-2 (1) The number. of Tnternet Training Workshops conducted: during fiscal 2009 decreased 24% to 783 (including 81 that -

were held outside the United States) compared to 1,028 (including 184 that were held outside the United States) during fiscal

2008, o .

(2) The average mumber of buying units in attendance at our workshops during fiscal 2009 was relatively constant at
85 compared to 84 during fiscal 2008,

(3) Approximately 28% of the buying units made a purchase at the workshops during fiscal 2009, which is comparable

to fiscal 2008, and

. 510f99

{4) Cash purchases as a percentage of total workshop purchases decreased to 41% in fiscal 2009 compared to 52% in
fiscal 2008. '

Revenues were reduced by $1,840,000 during fiscal 2009 and $998,000 during fiscal 2008 as a result of various legal
matters discussed ¢lsewhere within this document in which agreements were reached, or expected to be reached, allowing for
customer refinds.

Commission and other revenue decrsased 17% to $25,747,000 in fiscal 2009 compared to $30,907,00C in fiscal 2008,
The decrease was primarily atributable to a decrease in commission from third parties as a resalt of fewer leads sent to third
parties due to a decrease in owr sales.

Cost of Reverue
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Cost of revenue consists primarily of the cost to conduct Internet Training Workshops, credit card fees and the cost of
products sold. Cost of revenue for fiscal 2000 decreased 29% to $28,945,000 from $41,011,000 for fiscal 2008. The decrease
in cost of revenue is primarily attributable to the decrease in number of workshops held along with the implementation of cost
saving measures designed to reduce travel and event costs. Trends in cost of product and other revenues will not aiways be
consistent with the trends in revenue due to the fact that cost of product and other reverues is typically recognized at the time of
sale and no later than the expiration of the customer’s three-day cancellation peried, but fhe related revenue is often deferred in
accordance with accouating enidance.

et | g e

Selling and Marketing

Selling and marketing expenses consist of payroil and related expenses for sales and marketing activities, advertising,
and promotional and public relations expenses. Selling and marketing expenses for fiscal 2009 decreased 25% to $52,154,000
from $69,556,000 for fiscal 2008, The decrease in selling and marketing expenses is primarily attributable to a 24% decrease
inthe mumber of iternet Training Workshops conducted during fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008, The increase in selling and
marketing expense as a percentage of workshop revenue to 76% in fiscal 2009 from 72% in fiscal 2008, is primarily related to
a lower response to our marketing efforts at the preview training sessions due to several factors including the infavorable
global economic environment which resu!ted in a cutback in consumer and business spending. Trends in se}/ing and marketing
expenses will not always be consistent with the trends in revenues due to the fact that selling and marketing expenses are
typically recognized when incurred, at the time of sale, and no later than the expiration of the customer’s three-day cancellation
period, but the related revenues are often deferred in accordance with accounting suidance,

General and Administrative
Generat and administrative expenses consist of payroil and refated expenses for executive, accounting and
adupinistrative persomnel, legal, accounting and other professjonal fees, finance company service fees, and other general
corporate expenses. General and administrative expenses in fiscal 2009 increased 2% to §9,630,000 from $9,488,000 in fiscal
- 2008, The small 1 increase i in'general and adminjstrative expenses is primarily due to an increase in professional fées. ’
Other Income
Other incoie is primarily derived from the EPTA-contracts, which generany carry an 18% simple interest rate. Other
income for fiscal 2009 decreased 36% to $6,018,000 compared to $9,434,000 for fiscal 2008. The decrease is attributable to
the decrease in the collection of rade receivables,

Operating Results of Crexende Weh Services {in thousands)

Year Ended December3l, . Bix Months Ended December 31, Fiscal Year Ended Juoe 30,

2010 2009 2009 2008 2009 2008
Crexendo Web Services

Revenue $ 1,322 § 127 % 127 § - % - & -
Operating Expenses;

Cost of revenue 129 401 331 - 40 .

Selling and marksting 1,389 566 432 - 34 -

General and administrative 1,031 318 268 - 49 -
Loss from operations $ (1,827 § (1,158) 3§ (904} $ - 5 (253) % -
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Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2009
Revenue

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $1,322,000, compared to $127,000 in the vear ended December 31,
2009. Reverue from Crexendo Web Services is generated primarily through on page and off page search engine optimization
services, search engine managemment services, conversion rate optimization services, and website design end development
services. A substaniial portion of Crexendo Web Services’ revenue is generated through six to twelve month service contracts,
as such; growth in Crexendo Web Services will initially be seen through increases in our backlog.

Below is a table which displays the Crexendo Web Services revenue backlog as of December 31, 2009 apnd 2010, which is
expected ta be recognized as revenue within the next twelve months (in thousands):

Crexendo Web Services backlog as of December 31, 2009 5 42
Crexendo Web Services backlog as of December 31, 2810 $ 964

Cost of Revenue
Cost of revenue consists primarily of salaries related to fulfillment of our web services. Cost of revenue for the year

ended December 31, 2010 was $729,000 compared to $401,000 for the vear ended December 31, 2009, The increase in
salaries for the current period is related to an increzse in headcount as we continue to Increase our fulfillment capacity.
Selling and Marketing
Selling and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries and benefits, as well as advertising expenses. Selling and
marketmg expense was $1,389,000 and $566,000 for the year ended Decermber 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The large
increase was primarily atfributable to an increase in salespeople and other sales ac’nvxty Since December 31, 2009 we have
hired six additional direct sales reps in major US cities, with the majority of those coming in September and October In total,
we now have 11 direct sales reps in major US cities. '
General and Administrative

 Geperal and administrative expenses constst of payroll and related expenses for account managers and administrative
personnel. General and administrative expenses were $1,031,000 and $318,000 for the vear ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, respectively, The large increase reflected the prowth of cur business between the two periods as we add persome! to
support our increase inrevenue.
Six Months Ended December 31, 2009 Compared te Six Monihs Ended December 31, 2008

Revenue

Revenue for the six months ended December 31, 2009 was $127,000. We began selling Crexende Web Services in the
six months ended December 31, 2009,

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revemue consists primarily of salaries related to fulfiliment of our web services. Cost of revenue for the six
months ended December 31, 2009 was $331,000. The cost of revenue parallels our revenue which began during this period.
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Selling and Marketing

Sclling and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries and benefits, as well as advertising expenses. Selling
and marketing expense was $432,000 for the six months ended December 31, 2009 as a result of beginning this business,

General and Adminisiraiive

(General and administrative expenses consist of payroll and related expenses for account managers and administrative
personnel. General and administrative expenses were $268,000 for the six months ended December 31, 2009,

R O A NP S

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 38, 2008

As of Tune 30, 20109, Crexendo Web Services was a development stage segment, and had only incurred $253,000 in
expenses since inception and had not generated any revenue.

Operating Results of our Crexendo Network Services Division (in thousands)

i
]
!
i
k]
1

Year Ended December 31, Six Months Ended December 31, Fiscal Year Ended Yune 30,
i - 2010 2069 2009 2008 2009 2008
] Crexendo Network Services
‘ Operating expenses:
General and

administrative 5 462 % 71 § 41 - 3 0 3 -
: Research and development 967 338 169 - 169 -
Loss from operations £ (1429 % (409) § (210} § - % (199) § -

" Year Ended December 31, 2610 Compared to Year Ended December 31,2009

As of December 31, 2010, our Crexendo Network Services division was a development stage segment and had
incigred $1.838,000 in expenses since inception and had not generated any reveme.

General and Administrative

Genera) and administrative expenses consist of payroll and related expenses for rent, professional fees, and
administrative personnel. General and administrative expenses were $462,000 and $71,000 for the year ended December 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively. The large increase, which mostly included legal and consulting fees, was primarily attributable
to preparation of our hosted telecom Phase One product Jaunch,

Research and Development
; Research and development expenses primarily consist of payroll and related expenses, related 1o the development
of new telecom products. Research and development expenses were $967,000 and $338,000 for the year ended December 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively. The large increase was primarily attributable to preparation of our hosted felecom Phase One
product Jaunch which began with sales at select StoresOnline events in February 2011
Six Months Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Six Months Ended December 31, 2008

As of December 31, 2009, our Crexendo Network Services division was a development stage segment and had

incurred $409,000 in expenses since inception and had not generated any revenue.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

As of June 30, 2009, cur Crexendo Network Services division was a development stape segment and had mcurred
$199.000 in expenses since inception and had not generated any revenue.

§ Results of gur Corporate and Qther Unallocated Qperations (in thousands)

Year Ended December 31, Six Months Ended December 31, Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

: 2010 2009 2009 2008 009 2008

g Unallocated corporate items .
Cost of revenues ' $ 169 % 158 § 91 § 58 8 123§ 180
Selling and marketing 34 114 48 8t 146 231
General and administrative 6,451 77339 3,850 4,638 8,832 8,722
3 Research and development 2,123 1,803 875 1,080 2,008 2,113
Total unailocated corporate

: Hems $ (88273 8 (9.814) §  (4,864) § (5857 §  (11,109) §  (11.246)

Yeaf Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2009

Unallocated corporate expensés which are not allocated to specific segments, totaled £8,827,000 and $9,814,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Unallocated costs decreased for the year ended December 31,
2010 due, inpart, to 2 decrease in salaries and share-based compensation expense from the prior year

Cost of Revenue

Cost of reveme consists of share based compensat;on which was $1 69,000 and $158 000 for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009..

Selling and Marketing

Seiling and marketing expenses consist of share-based compensation which was $84,000 and $114,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
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General and Administrative

Corporate general and administrative expenses consist of payroll, share-based compensation, rent, professional fees, and
administrative personnel which are not allocated to specific segments, Corporate general and administrative expenses were
$6.451,000 and $7,739,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The large decrease for the year
ended December 31, 2010 was due, in part, to a decrease in salaries and share-based compensation expense from the prior
year,

Research and Devéfopment

:
i
;
i
=
i
3

Research and development expenses primarily consist of payroll and share-based compensation expenses, related to
our engingering team whose cost cannot be specifically allocated to any particutar segment. Unallocated research and
development expenses were $2,123,000 and $1,803,000 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Six Months Ended December 31, 2009 Compared 1o Six Months Ended December 31, 2608
Total corporate general and administrative expenses and share-based compensation expenses, which are not allocated
to specific segments, totaled $4,864,000 and $5,857,000 for the six months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
] respectively, Unallocated costs decreased in'the six months ended December 31, 2010 due, in patt, to a decrease in salaries
: - and share-based compensation expense from the comparable period of the prmr year.
Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists of share-based compensation which was $91,000 and $58,000 for the six months ended
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

- Selling and Marketing

_ Selling and marketing expenses consist of share based compensation which was $48,000 and $81,000 for the sii
mmonths ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

General and Administrative

v

Corporate general and administrative expenses consist of payroll, share-based compensation, and related expenses for
rent, professional fees, and administrative personnet which are not allocated to specific segments. Corporate general and
administrative expenses were $3,850,000 and $4.638,000 for the six months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The larpe decrease for the year ended December 31, 2010 was due, in part, to a decrease in salaries and
share-based compensation expense from the prior year.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses primarily consist of payroll and share-based compensation expenses, related to
our engineering team whose cost camnot be specifically allocated to any particular segment. Unallocated research and
development expenses were $875,000 and §1,080,000 for the six months ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Fiscal Year Ended June 31, 2009 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2008

to specific segments, totaled $11,109,000 and $11,246,000 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

i
E - Total corporate general and administrative expenses and share-based compensation expenses, which are not allocated
!
: Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consisis of share-based compensation which was $123,000 and $180,000 for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively,
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Selling and Marketing

Selling and marketing expenses consist of share-based compensation which was $146,000 and $231,000 for the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

General and Administrative

Corporate general and administrative expenses consist of payroll, share-based compensation, rent, professional fees,
and administeative personnel which are not allocated te specific segments. Corporate general and administrative cxpenses
were $3,832,000 and $8,722,000 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses primarily consist of payroll and share-based compensation expenses, related 1o
our engineering team whose cost cannot be specifically allocated to any particular segment. Unallocated research and
development expenses were $2,008,000 and $2,113,000 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We had working capital of $11,388,000 and $17,064,000 as of December 31, 2070 and 2009, respectively. We had
waorking capital, excluding deferred revenue, of $25,145,000 and $33,431,000 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. Deferred revenue balances represent historical sales for which we cannot immediate]y recognize revenue. The
costs and expenses we incur as these deferred revenue amounts are recognized as product and other revenues are expected to be
insignificant. Consequently, we do not consider deferred revenue to be a factor that impacts our liquidity or fahre cash
requirements,

7 Cash and Cash Equivalents’

We had cash and cash equivalents of $14,207,000 and $21,549,000, respectively. For the year ended December 31,
2010, we generated positive cash flows from operating activities of $39,000 compared to a use of cash for operating activities
of $1,676,000 (unaudited) for the year ended December 31, 2009. For the six months ended December 31, 2009 we generated
positive cash flows from operating activities of $2,578,000 compared to a use of cash for operating activities of $6,083,000
(unaudited} for the six months ended December 31, 2008. During the year ended Fune 30, 2009 we used $4,985,000 of cash for
operating activities. - '

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables and fong-term wade receivables, net of aliowance for doubtful accounts, totaled $21,564,000 and
520,426,000 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Long-term trade receivables, net of altowance for doubtful
accounts, were $9,442,000 and $6,264,000 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. We offer our customers an
installment contract with payment terms between 24 and 36 months, as one of several payment-options. The payments that
become due more than 12 mombs afier the end of the fiscal period are classified as Jong-term trade réceivables.
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We have sold some of our domestic rade receivables in the past. In the futwre, we may evaluate agreements with
third-party finaticing companies for the sale of our infernational and domestic trade receivables

Accounts Payable

Accounts payable totaled $3,328,000 and $3,154,000 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The aging of
accounts payable as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 was generally within our vendors® terms of payment,

Capital Requirements — Contractual Obligations
The following table summmarizes our significant contractual ‘obligations as of Degermber 31, 2010:

Payments due by Period (1)
Less than 103

Total 1 year years
- {in thoosands)
Operating leases (2) $ 4693 § 1,625 3 3,046

(1) Payments are included in the period in which they are contractually required to be made. Actual payments may be made
prior to the contracmually required date.

{2}  Represents our commitments associated with operating leases and includes contracts that expire in various years through
2013. Paymenis due reflect cash to be paid for rent.

We have approximately $1,317,000 of unrecognized tax positions that have been recognized as liabilities that have not
been included in‘the contractisa] obligations table due to uncertainty as to when such amiounts may be setiled.

Capital

As of December 31, 2010, total stockholders® equity was $20,120,000, down 23% from $25,982.000 as of December
31, 2009. The decrease for the year ended December 31, 2010 in total stockholders’ equity was attribatable to net loss of
$2,310,000, the purchase and retirement of $3,823,000 of our common stock, and for the declaration of $200,000 in dividends
to common stockholders, The decrease in total stockholders” equity was pama]ly offset by the stock option compensation
expense of $1,041,000,

In December 2008, our Board of Directors decreased the quarterly cash dividend to $0.02 from 30.11 per common
share. The dividend payout ratio is not meaningful because we had a net loss for the period. '

Common Stock Repurchase Program

On September 5, 2006, our Board of Direclors anthorized the repurchase of up to 520,000,000 of our common stock.
In September 2007, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of an additional $50,000,000 of our common stock.
During the year ended December 3T, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009 and the fiscal years ended June 30, 2609
and 2008, we repurchased $3,823,000, $734,000 (unaudited), $734,000, and $12,580,000 of owr common stock, respectively.
We intend to repurchase shares of our common stock from time to time over the next two years but may suspend or discontinue
purchasing the common stock at any time. The repurchased common stock was retired.

On November 3, 2010, we ainounced the coramencement of a2 modified Dutch auction tender offer to purchage up to
$4,750,000 in value of shares of our common stock at a price not less than $4.35 per share and not more than $4.75 per share.

The tender offer closed on Deceinber 10, 2010, after which we purchased and cancelled 723,896 shares of our common stock
at a cost of $3,438,000.
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OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have no of-balance sheet arrangements other than operating leases. We do not believe that these operating leases
are material to our carrent or future financial position, results of operations, revenues or expenses, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

Recently Adopted Accounting Guidance - On Jamwary 1, 2010, we adopted new accounting guidance on Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures. This authoritative guidance requires us to disclose the amount of significant ransfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 oFthe fair value hierarchy and the reasons for these transfers, as well as the reasons for any transfers in or
out of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. In addition, the guidance clarifies certain existing disclosure requircments. This new
guidance did not have a material impact on our disclosures in ow consolidated financial statements at Decernber 31, 2010.

On January 1, 2010, we adopted new accounting guidance on the consolidation of variable interest entities. This
guidance requires revised evatuations of whether entities represent variabie interest entities, ongoing assessments of control
over such entities, and additional disclosures for variable interasts. This new auﬂ;oritatiye guidance had no fmpact on owr
financial condition and results of operations at December 31, 2010.

In July 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“the FASB™) released accounting guidance which provides
greater transparency and addresses disclosures about the credit quality of financing receivables and the allowance for credit
losses. In addition, the guidance assists in the assessment of eredit risk exposures and evalvation of the adeguacy of
allowances for credit losses, Additional disclosures must be provided on a disaggregated basis. The update defines two
levels of disageregation — portfolio segment and class of financing receivable. Additionally, the update requires disclosure of
credit quality indicators, past due information and modifications of financing receivables. The update is not applicable to
mortgage banking activities {loans originated or purchased for resale to investors); derivative instruments such as repurchass

“agréements; debt securities; “a fransferor’s interest in securitization transactions; and purchased beneficial intérests in

59 0f 99

securitized financial assets. This update is effective for the Company for interim or armual periods ending on or after
December 15, 2010, This update has no material effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Recent Accounting Guidance Not Yet Adopted - In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the
“FASB™) issued authoritative guidance on revenie recognition that will become effective for us beginning Yanuary 1, 2011, with
garlier adoption permitted. Under the new guidance, arrangements that include tangible products that have software compongits
that are essential to the functionality of the tangible product will no longer be within the scope of the software revenue
recognition guidance, and such soflware-enabled products will now be subject to other relevant revenue recognition guidance.,
Additionally, the FASB issued authoritative puidance on revenue arranpements with multiple deliversbles fhat are outside the
scope of the software revenue recognition guidance. Under the new guidance, when vendor specific objective evidence or third
party evidence for deliverables in an arrangement cannot be determined, a best estimate of the selling price is required to
separate deliverables and allocats arrangement consideration using the relative selling price method, The new guidance
includes new disclosure requirements on how the application of the relative selling price method affects the timing anl amount
of revenue recognpition. This guidance could have a material effect on our financial statements as a result of using the
relative selling price method for our SaaS arrangements.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND FACT ORS THAT MAY AFFECT FUTURE RESULTS AND FINANCIAL
CONDITION

With the exception of historical facts, the statements contained in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations are “forward-looking staterments™ within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995, which reflect our current expectations and beliefs regarding our fitture results of operations, performance
arxd achievements. The section entitled “Business” above in Part 1, lrem 1 of this Annual Report also includes forward-looking
staternents. These statements are subject to risks and uncertainties and are based upon assumptions and beliefs that may or may
not materialize. These forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, staterments concerning:
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our belief that our target market will increasingly look to Infernet solutions providers who leverage industry and
customer practices, increase predictability of success of their Internet initiatives and decrease implementation risks
by providing low-cost, scalable solutions with minimal lead time;

our belief that we can compete successfully by relying on owr infrastructure, marketing strategies as well as
techniques, systems and procedures, and by adding additional products and services in the fitre;

our belief that we can continue our success by periodic review and revision of our methods of doing business and
by contiming our expansion into domestic and international markets;

our belief that a key component of our success comes from a number of new, recenity developed proprietary
technologies and that these technologies and advances distinguish our services and products from owr competitors
and further help to substantially reduce our operating costs and expenses;

our contertion that we do not offer our customers a “business opportunity” or a “franchise” as those terms are
defined in applicable stantes of the states in which we operate;

our belief that we operate in compliance with laws concerning sales practices and more particularly that we are
not obligated to offer more than a three-day right of rescission;

i . our belief there is a large, fragmented and under-served poputation of smail businesses and entrepreneurs
searching for professional services firms that offer business-to-consumer e-commerce solutions coupled with
P support and continuing, education;

: - our belief that continuously testing and implementing changes to our business model may further reduce the level of
investment necessary to get customers 1o aftend our events and to increase our value proposition 1o these
-customers; : : ‘ Lo .

our expectation that our offering of products and services will evolve as some products are replaced by new and
enhanced products intended to help our customers achieve success with their Internet-related businesses; and

owr expectation that the costs and cxpenses we incur will be insignificant as deferred revenue amounts are
recognized as product and other revenues when cash is collected.

We caution readers that our operating results are subject to various risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual
results and outcomes to differ materially from those discussed or anticipated, including changes in economic conditions and
infernet technologies, fluctuations in weather patierns, interest rate flucthiations, and the factors set forth in the section entitled,
“Risk Factors,” under Part I, ltem 1A of this Annual Report. We also advise readers not to place any undue reliance on the
forward-looking statements contained in this report, which reflect our beliefs and expectations only as of the date of this report.
We assume no obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements to reflect new events or circumstances or any
changes in our beliefs or expectations, other than as required by Taw.,

PN,

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE: AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS

: Not required
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Financial Statements

IMergent, Inc. and Sobsidiaries

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms
Comsolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2010 and 2009

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended December
31, 2009, and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity for the yéar ended December 31, 201(], the six months ended
December 31, 2009, and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2010, the six monlhs ended December
31, 2009, and the ﬁscal year ended June 30, 2009

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Financial Statement Sehedule

iMergent, Ing. and Subsidiaries

PAGE
57-58

59

60

6t

62-63

‘The foliowing consolidated financiaj statement schedule of iMergent, Inc. and subsidiaries is filed as parf of this
Form 10-K. All gther schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable, not requlred or the information is included

in the consalidated financial statements or notes thereto.

Schedule H - Valuation and Qualifving Accounts

PAGE
£3

Exhibits. The exhibits listed in the accorpanying index to exhibits immediately following the financia) statements are

filed as part of, or hereby incorporated by reference into, this Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
iMergent, Inc.

; We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of iMergent, Inc, and subsidiaries (the "Company™) as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders® equity, and cash flows for
the vear ended December 31, 2010 and for the six months ended December 31, 2009. Onr audits also included the financial
statement schedule listed in the Index at Ttem 15, These financial statements and the financial staternent schedule are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and the

~ financia) statement schedule based on our audits. '

e Fuddant s Eomete s L

; We conducted owr audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States).

. Those standards require that we planand perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

{ statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of
; its internal controf over financial reporting, Cur audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing andit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectivencss of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
andit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our andits provide a reasonable hasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in a}l material respects, the financial position of iMergert,
Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2010 and for the six meonths ended December 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation

- to the basic-consolidated financial statemends taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein.” : ’

s famim s o Mot A b

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Salt Lake City, Utah
~ March2,2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FiRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
iMergent, Inc.

: We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year
ended June 30, 2002, Owr audit also included the financial staterent schedule listed in the Index at Item 15¢2) with respect to
: the year ended June 30, 2009. These financial statements and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and the financia] statement
schedule based on our audit, ’

‘We conducted our awdit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United

States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
staternents are free of material misstatement. The Cornpany is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perfortn, an sudit
of its internal contrel over financial reporting. Our audit included consideraticn of internal controi over financial reporting as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An

; audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit

] , also inclndes assessing the accounting principtes used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
i

overal! financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial sttements referred fo above presert fairly, in all material respeets, the results of eperations and

cash flows of iMereent, Inc. and subsidiaries for the year ended Iime 30, 2009 in conformity with U.S. generally accepted

i accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial staternent schedule for the year ended Time 30, 2008, when

] considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein.

fsi Tammer LLC
Salt Lake City, Utah

September 1, 2009
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IMERGENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except par value and share data)
Assets

Current assats:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $10,464
as of December 31, 2010 and $11,827 as of December 31, 2009
Inventories
Income tax receivable
Deeferred income tax assets, net
Prepaid expenses and other

Toal current assets

Certificate of deposit
Long-term trade receivables, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $7.957 as of December
31,2010 :
and $5,882 as of December 3], 2009
Property and equipment, net
Deferred income tax assets, net
Intangible assets

© ‘Goodwill

Other long-term assets
" Total Assets

Liabilities and Stockhelders' Equity .

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other
Dividend payable '
Income taxes payable
Deferred revenue, current portion
Total current Habilities

Deferred revenue, net of eurrent portion
Other tong-term [iabilities
Total liabilities

Commitmehts and contingencies (Mote 11)

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share - authorized 5,000,000 shares; none issued
Common stock, par value $0.001 per share - authorized 100,000,000 shares; 10,664,878
shares outstanding as of December 31, 2010 and 11,446,320 shares outstanding
as of December 31, 2009
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders' equity

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

htip:) fwww sce.govi Archives/edgar/data/ 1675736/00013544881100...

-Deccmbder3l,  December3l,
2010 2009
5 14,207 § 21,549
1,088 1,088
12,122 14,162
1,067 243
1,239 387
949 1,009
1,376 2,988
32,048 41,426
500 500
3442 6,264
3,139 1,446
5,024 5,298
987 . _1,2(}6
265
239 . 302
b 51,644 § 56,442
b3 3328 % 3,154
3.361 4 588
214 229
- 24
13,757 15,827
20,660 23,822
9,523 6,447
1,341 191
31,524 30,460
11 11
45,481 53,033
(29.372) {27,062}
20,120 25982
$ 51644 § 56442
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See accompanying notes.
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IMERGENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
{In thousands, except per share and share data)
Six Months
Year Ended Ended Fis¢al Year
December3]l, December3l, Ended
2010 2009 June 30, 2009
Revenue $ 65793 § 35716 § 94411
Operating expenses:
Cost of revenue 21,774 11,608 29,138
Selling and marketing 32,906 16,391 52,434
General and administrative 14,597 7,196 18,541
Research and developrment 3,000 1,044 2177
Total operating expenses 72,367 36,239 142,290
Loss from operations (6,574) (523) (7,879
Other income (expense):
Interest income 4,746 2,596 6,799
Interest expense {4 N (13)
Other income {(expense}, net 214 . (98) {768)
Total other income, net 4,956 2,491 6,018
Income (loss) before income tax provision (1,618) 1,968 (1,861)
Income tax provision (692) 637  (5681)
Net income (loss) $ 0 (2310) § 1331 §  (7,542)
Net income (loss)} per conmmon share;
Basic 5 (0.20) § 012 % {0.66)
Diluted h (0.20) § 012 § {0.66)
Dividends per commen share 3 0.08 § 0.04 § 0.17
‘Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic 11357434 11402442 11,371,303
Dihned 11,357,434 11,484,684 11,371,303

66 of 99

See accompanying notes.
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iIMERGENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity
Year Ended December 31, 2010, Six Months Ended December 31, 2009, and
Fiscal Year Ended June 390, 2009
{In thousands, except share data)

Balance, July 1, 2008
Expense for stock options granted o
employees
Stock issued under stock award plans {net of
forfeitures) and
related income tax benefit of §1
Issuance of restricted stock (net of
forfetiures)
Repurchase of common stock -
Dividends declared
Net loss
Balance, June 30, 2009
Expense for stock options granted to
employees
Dividends declared
. Issuance of restricted stock
Net income
Balance, December 31, 2009
Expense for stock options granted to
employees .
Stock issued under stock award plans (net of
forfeitures) and .
related income tax benefit of $3
Restricted stock issued for acquisition
Dividends declared
Repurchase of common stock
Common stock acquired through tender offer
Net toss

Balance, December 31, 2010

Additional Total
Common Stock Paid-in Accumuiated Stockholders'
Shares Ampunt Capital Deficit Equity
11,304,410 % 11§ 53315 § (20851 § 32,475
1,544 1,544
" 155,109 600 600
74,201 -
(105.160) {734) . {734)
{1,943) {1,943)
(7.542) (7,542)
11,425,320 i1 52,782 (28,393) 24,460
709 708
: (458) (458)
21,000 - ‘
1,331 1,331 -
11,446,320 11 53,033 (27,062) 25,982 .
1,041 1,041
827 13 13
20,000 117 117
(500) (900)
{78,373) (335) {335)
{723,896} (3,438) (3,438)
(2,310) (2,310}
10,664,878 % 1 § 49481 § (29372) % 20,120

See accompanying notes.
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iMERGENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

e {In thousands)
Six Months
Year Ended Ended Fiscal Year
December3l, December 3], Emded
2010 2009 June 30, 2009

e

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) 3 (2,310) § 1,331 §  (7,542)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (lnss) to net

cash provided by (used for) operating activities:

e g

' Depreciation end amortization 1,379 704 1,468
Expense for stock options issued to employees _ 1,041 709 1,544
Impairment of property held-for-sale ‘ - 90 -
i Tax benefit upon issuance of cotmmon stock (3) - -
: Deferred income tax provision 334 839 1,130
‘ Changes in assets and liabilities: 7
Restricted cash - - 714 (1.802)
Trade receivables : ' (1,138) - 10,330 7,812
Inventories _ {(824) 13 3N
; Income tax receivable . (852) 1,439 (L033)
i Prepaid expenses and other 1,402 {1,258) ° - 2,325
Other long-term assets 63 - 46 166
Accounts payable, accroed expenses and other (1,130) (730) {1,926)
 Income taxes payable | _ ‘ @n an - (17D
Deferred revenue : 1,006 (11,589) (9,328)
Other long-term liabilities : 1,142 . 7 1
" Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 39 2,578 (6,985)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property and equipment {2.534) (634) {613)
Acquisttion of company {Note 3) (250) - -
Acquisition of property held-for-sale - {296) -
Proceeds from sale of property held for sale (Note 13) 210 -
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities - - 3,800
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities (2,574) (530) 3,187
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES -
Repurchase of common stock o (385) B (734)
‘Commuon stock acquired through tender offer {3.438) -
Proceeds from exercise of options and related income tax benefit 13 - 600
Principal payments on note payable - {115) (64
Payments made on contingent consideration {82) - -
: Dividend payments {915) . (458) {i,714)
‘. Net cash used for fnancing activities {4,807y {573) (1.912)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (7,342) 1,075 (5,710)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD 21,549 20,474 26,184
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERICD § 14207 § 21549 § 2 20 474

See accompanying notes.
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Fair value of assets aqmred (mcludmg gnodwrll of $265,000} $ 495 -
: Cashpaid.- : (250}
Srock 1ssuecl (117
Estimated value of contingent consideration {128)
Liabilities assumed ' None
See accompanying notes.
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IMERGENT, INC. AND SUBSIMARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (CONTINUED}

{In thousands)
Fiscal Year
Year Ended Six Months Ended Ended
December3i, 2000  December 31, 2009 June 30, 2009

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid (received) durmg the year for,

Interast 3 4 35 7 % 7

Income taxes 70 {(1,624) 3,790
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing information:

Dividends declared and not paid 3 214 § 229 % 220

Purchase of property and eguipment included in accounts payahle 101 - -

Acquisition of company with stock 17 - -

Corntingent consideration related to acquisition . 46 - -

In February 2010, iMergemnt, Inc. entered into an asset purchase agreement with CastleWave, LLC (“CastieWave™) to
purchase their assets for total consideration of $495,000 (Note 3}, The total consideration included a contingent consideration
of approximately $128,000 based upon estimated fiire revenue generated through CastleWave's sales channels, restricted
stock of $117,000, and cash of $250,000. The purchase price was allocated to a non-compete agreement for $60,000, teckinical
know-how for $60,000, customer list for $98,000, other assets for $12,000 and goodwill for $265,000. See surnmary below
{in thousands):
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IMERGENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Significant Accounting Policies

Pescription of Business - iMergent, Inc. is incorporated in the state of Delaware. As used hereafter in the notes to
consolidated financial statements, we refer to iMergent, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, as “we,” “us,” or “our
Company”. We are an eServices company that provides e-commerce technology, training and a variety of web-based
technologies and resources to entrepreneurs and small, medium, and large enterprises. Our services are designed to help
decrease the risks associated with e-commerce implementation by providing low-cost, scalable solutions and providing
support and information regarding industry developments.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
-pringiples (“US GAAP™) and pursuant {o the rules and regulations of the Securitics and Exchanbe Commission (“"SEC”). These
consolidated financial statements reflect the results of operations, financial position, changes in stockbolders’ equity, and cash
flows of our Company.

‘ Change in Fiscal Year — In Noverber 2009, the Board of Directors approved a change of our fiscal year froma June
: 30 fiscal yearend to a December 31 fiscal year end. This Form 10-K is an annual report, and includes information for the year
ended December 31, 2010, the six month transitional period ended December 31, 2009 and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2009.

Principles of Consolidation - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and operations of IMergent,
Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries, which include Avail 24/7 Inc., Crexendo Web Services, Inc., Galaxy Mali, Inc
StoresOnline Inc., StoresOnline International Canada ULC, StoresOnline International, Inc., StoresOnline International Ltd and
" Internet Training C‘roup, Tne. Al mtercompany account balances and ransactions have been eliminated in consolidation,

. Cash and Cash Equivalents - We consider all ughly liquid, short—texm investments with maturitias of three momths or
less at the time of purchase to be cash equivalents. As of December 31, 2010, we had cash and cash equivalents in financial
institutions in excess of federally insured limits in the amount of $1,397.000.

Restricted Cash — We classified $1,088,000 as restricted cash as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, to
reflect the compensating balance requirement of its merchant accounts and purchasing card agreements.

Frade Receivables - We offer to our customers the option to finance, typically through 24 and 36-month extended
payment term arrangements {“EPTAs™), purchases made at its [nternet Training Workshops. EPTAs are reflected as short-term
and long-term frade receivables, as applicable, as we have the intent and ability to hold the receivables for the foreseeable
firture, until maturity or payotf. EPTAs are recorded on a nonacerual status heginning on the contract date.

Allowance for Doubtfil Accounts - We record an allowance for doubtfild accounts at the time the EPTA confract is
perfected. The altowance represents estimated losses resulting from customers’ failure to make required payments, The
allowance for doubtful accounts for EPTAs is netted against the cinrent and lobg-term trade receivables balances. The
allowance estimate is based on historical collection experience, specific identification of probable bad debts based on
collection efforts, aging of trade receivables, customer payment history, and other known factors, including current economic
conditions. We believe that the allowance for doubtful accounts is adequate based ont our assessment to date, however, actual
collection resulfs may differ materially from ouwr expectations. Because reverte generated from customers finaneing through
EPTAs is defesred and not recognized prior to the collection of cash, adjustments to the allowance for doubtful accounts
increase or deercase deferred revenue. Trade receivables are written off against the allowance when the related customers are
: no longer making required payments and the rade receivables are determined to be wncollectible, typically 90 days past their
-orniginal due date.

Interest Income - Interest income is primarily eamed from EPTA contracts, EPTA contract terms generally conain an
18% simple interest rate. Interest income is recognized on these accounts only to the extent cash is received as the receivables
are generally 24 and 36-months in length and collection of the full amount of the receivable is not probable. We recognized
£4,746,000, $2.596,000, and $6,799,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009,
and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, respectively. -
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Inventories - Inventories consist of products provided in conjunction with the Internet Treining Workshops and the
costs of telecom equipment and are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method} or market.

Certificate of Deposit - We hold a $500,000 certificate of deposit as collateral for merchant accounts, which
automatically renews every 16 months. The certificate of deposit is classified as long-term in the consolidated balance sheets,
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Property and Fquipment - Depreciation and amortization expense is computed using the straight-line method in
amounts sufficient to allocate the cost of depreciable assets, incloding assets held under capital leases, over their estimated
useful lives ranging from two to five years. The cost of leasehold improvements is amortized using the straight-line method aver
the shorter of the estimated useful 1ife of the asset or the term of the related lease. Depreciation and amortization expense Is
included in general and administrative expenses and totaled $942,000, $510,000, and $1,037,000 for the year ended December
31, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009, and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, respectively. Depreciable lives
by asset group are as follows:

Compuler and office equipment 2t0 5 years

Computer software 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Leasehold improvements 210 5 years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to costs and expenses as incurred. The cost and accumulated deprectation of
property and equipment s01d or otherwise retired are removed from the accounts and any related gain or loss on disposition is
reflected in net income or loss for the year.

Goodwill - Goodwill is tested for impairment using a fair-value-based approach on an anmual basis (December 1 for
us) and between annual tests if indicafors of potential impairment exist.

Intangible Assets - Our intangible assets consist primarily of purchased advertising lists and intangible assets
acquired in the acquisition of Castlewave, which include a customer list, technical know-how, and a not-compete agreement
{Note 3). The fair value of identifiable intangible assets is based upon the lower of discounted future cash flow projections or
the amount paid in an arm’s length transaction. The advertising lists are amortized over six years on an accelerated basis.
Amortization expense from the name lists is included in sales and marketing expense and totaled $371,000, $194,000, and
$432,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009, and the fiscal year ended June 30,
2010. The remaining intangible assets, which were acquired in February 2010, are amortized over three years ona
straight-line basis. Amortization expense from these acquired assets is included in general and administrative expense and

‘totaled $66,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010, The remaining useful lives of these assets are 25 months as of

December 31, 2010.

We periodicaily review the estimated usefid lives of our intangible assets and review these assels for impairment
whenever evemls or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. The
determination of impairment is based on estimates of future undiscounted cash flows. If an intangible asset is considered to be
impaired, the amount of the impairment witl be equal to the excess of the carrying value over the fair value of the asset.

Use of Estimates - In preparing the consolidated financial statements, managerment makes assumptions, estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates
of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of net sates and expenses during the reported
periods. Specific estimates and judgments include inventory, intangible assets, allowances for doubtful accounts, sales returns
and allowances, uncertainties related to certain income tax benefits, valuation of deferred income tax assets, valuation of
share-based payments and recoverability of long-lived assets. Management’s estimates are based on historical experience and
on our expeciations that are believed to be reasonable. The combination of these factors forms the basis for making judgments -
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from our current estimates and those differences may be material,

Revenue Recognition
In general, we recognize revenue when all of the following conditions are satisfied: {1 there 1s persuasive evidence
of an arrangement; (2) the product or service has been provided to the customer; (2) the amount of fees to be paid by the

customer is fixed or determinable; and (4) the collection of our fees is probable. Specifics to revenue category are as follows:

Software License and Product Revenue

Cash sales of software licenses and DVD training courses, are recognized as revenue when the cashis received, net of
expected customer refunds, upon expiration of the customers” rescission period, which typically occurs three days after the
licenses ate delivered or when the Internet training workshop takes place, whichever occurs later.
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Software licenses and DVD training courses sold under EPTAs are recognized as revenue upon receipt of cash from
customers 2nd not at the time of sale. Although we are able to reasonably estimate the collectability of our receivables based
upon our long history of offering EPTAs, accounting standards require revenue to be deferred until customer payments are
received if collection of the original principal balance is not probable. Additionally, if we subsequently sale the receivables
on a pon-recourse basis, accounting standards require that the related revenue be deferred until the customer makes cash
payments to the third-party purchaser of the receivables. There are no receivable balances outstanding that are subject to
| FECOUrse. _
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We have bundled products in two types of arrangements at our Internet training workshop. During the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2009, the six months ended Pecember 31, 2009, and the first three quarters of the year ended Decernber 31,
2018, we primarily combined our software license with other complementary products and would assign fair valve using the
residual method in accordance with accounting guidance for software arrangements. 'We use the residoal method as we have
vendor specific objective evidence for all undelivered elements in the software arrangement. During the fourth quarter of 2014,
we primarily sold our software under a software as a service {“SaaS™) model, and would combine it with other complementary
products and would assign fair value using the residual method in accordance with accounting guidance for multi-¢lement
arrangements. We use the residual method as we have vendor specific objective evidence for all undelivered elements in the
multi-¢lement arrangement,

Professional Services Revenue

Fees collected for professional services, including website design and development, scarch engine optimization
services, 1ink-building, and paid search management services are recognized as revenue, net of expected customer refunds, over
the period during which the services are expected 1o be performed, based upon the fair valve for such services. Fees related o
EPTA contracts are deférred and recognized as revenue during the service period or when cash is collected, whichever oceours
later.

Subscription and Hosting Revenue

Fees collected for subscription and hosting reverue are recognized ratably as services are provided. Customers are
: billed for these services on a monthly or annual basis at the customner’s optior. For al! of our customers, regardless of their
i ‘ billing method, subscription revenue is recorded as deferred revenue in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As
services are performed, we recognize subscription revenue ratably over the applicable service period. When a free trial period
is provided, subscription revenue commences when the trial period has ended and the customer has been billed for the services.

Commission Revenue

We have contracts with third-party entities with respect to telemarketing preduct sales to our customers following the
sale of the initial software licenses. These products and services are intended to assist the customers with their Internet
businesses. These products are sold and delivered completely by third parties. We recsive commissions from these third
partics, and recognize the revenue as the commissions are received, net of expected custorner refinds.

Chapge in Avail Contract

In April 2007, we began marketing and selling Avail 24/7, an all-ir-one conmmunications service which assists small
businesses and entrepreneurs to manage phone menus, voicemail, email, and fax in one online application. Customers
- purchasing the Avail product are charged a non-refindable activation fee along with 2 monthly service fee. The non-refundable
i " activation fee is deferred and recognized ratabiy over the estimated customer life, which is currently estimated to be four and
one half years. The monthly service fee is recognized ratably over the service period.

i In January 2010 we changed the contract that is associated with the sale of our Avail 24/7 subscription. Effective

: March 31, 2010 any customer that has not activated their Avail 24/7 subscription was assessed an activation fee of an
additional $34.93, Prior to this change in contract, this activation fee was included in 2 bundle of items so0ld at the workshop
and there was no fime limit on activation. Al) existing customers were notified of the change in contract in January and were
given 60-days to activate Avail 24/7 without paying the additional activation fee. As a result of this change in confract, we
recognized approximately $1,000,000 in revenue upon expiration of the 60 day notice in March 2010 for the Avail 24/7

; activation fees described above as we no longer had an obligation to provide the activation, In addition to the change in the

i Avail 24/7 contract, this product will not be inctuded in the bundle of items sold at the workshop. Avail 24/7 will continue to
be sold as a standalone product.

Fees coilected related to sales tax and other government assessed taxes are recognized on a net basis.

Cost of Revenue — Cost of revenue consists primarily of the cost to conduct Internet Training Workshaops, credit card
fees, salaries for professional services, and the cost of products sold,

Advertising Costs - We expense costs of advertising and promotions as incurred, with the exception of direct-
response advertising costs. Direct-response advertising costs that meet specified criteria are deferred and amortized over the
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A estimated benefit period. Because we have evidence that customers have responded specifically to the advertising, and that the
' advertising results in probable fiture benefits, such amounts are deferred and amortized. We are able to document the
responses of each customer to the advertising that elicited the response. Advertising expenses included in selling and marketing
expenses were approximately $14,749,000, $7,284,000, and $22,808,000 for the year énded December 31, 2010, the six
months ended December 31, 2009, and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, respectively. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
we recorded approximately $609,000 and $1.267,000 respectively, of direct-response advertising related to future workshops
as prepaid expenses. Amounts recorded as prepaid advertising expenses are amortized over the estimated benefit period,
typically three months.

66

]
:
i
H

[P

e e s b T

e et e 4 A A 0 et =

76 of 95 3/11/2011 5:52 PM

e e e T TR TR e T T T T ATILT e a T L e Tt M me T v Nl N m e A R tias ae S i . e e e o mmes o emam g rmemm ey s e om e e e s sy ey A eI Sk e e o A AR g = £ o


http://www.sec.gov/ArchJves/edgaT/data/1075736/OOQ1354488nOO

bl e e n

k)
El
i
1

[PP.

itg_lok.hom http:/fwww sec.gov/ Archives/edgar/data/1075736/00013544881100...

Research and Development - Research and development costs are expensed as incwred. Costs related to internafly
developed software are expensed as research and developiment expense until technological feaSJblhty has been achieved, after
which the costs are capitalized.

Fair Value Measurements - The fair value of cur financial assets and liabilities was determined based on three
levels of inputs, of which the first iwo are considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair
value which are the following:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices that are available in active markets for the identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

Level 2 — Other cbservable inputs available at the measurement date, other than quoted prices included in Level 1,
either directly or indirectly, including:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets in non-active markets;

Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and

Inputs that are derived principally from or corrobarated by other obscrvable market data.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that camnct be corroborated by observable market data and reflect the use of
" significant mamagement judgment. These values are generally determined using pricing medels for wliich the
assumptions utilize management’s estimates df market participant assumptions.

Financial Instruments - The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, certificates of deposit, and
merchant account deposits approximate their fair values due to either the short maturity of the instruments or the recent date of

the initia] transaction.
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Foreign Currency Translation — We consider the United States dollar as the functional currency for our foreign
operations. Assets, Habilities, and all statemenis of income amounts are translated daily into onr functional currency using
daily rates. All transaction adjustments are recorded in accounts receivable and deferred revenue until cash is received and
then the gain (loss) is recorded in the consolidated statements of operations. -

Income Taxes - We recognize a liability or asset for the deferred tax consequences of ail temporary differences
between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements that will result
in taxable or deductible amounts in fiture years when the reported amounts of the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled.
Accruals for incertain tax positions are provided for in accordance with accounting guidance. Accordingly, we may recognize
the tax benefits from an uncertain tax position only if it is more-tikely-than-not that the tax position will be sustained on
exammination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized in the financial
statements from such a position should be measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihond of being
realized upon ultimate settlement. Accounting guidance is also provided on derecognition of incomme tax assets and liabilities,
classification of current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities, accounting for interest and penalties associated with tax
positions, and income tax disclosures. Judgment is required in assessing the future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the financial statements or tax returns. Variations in the actual outcome of these future tax consequences could
materially impact our financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

Interest and penaltics associated with income taxes are classified as income tax expense in the consolidated statements
of operations.

We do not intend to permanently reinvest the undistributed earnings of its United Kingdom subsidiary in those
businesses outside of the United States and, therefore, has provided for U.S. deferred income taxes on such imdistributed
foreign carnings.

Stock-Based Compensation - For equity-classified awards, compensation expense is recognized over the requisite
service period based on the computed fair value on the grant date of the award. Equity classified awards include the issuance
of stock options and restricted stock. The restricted stock includes all dividend rights and is a participating security; however,
the restricted stock does not change earnings per share under the two-class method.
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Comprehensive Income (Joss) — There were no other components of comprehensive income (1oss) other than net
income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended December 3§, 2009, and the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009,

Rusiness Segments and Related Information - Accounting gnidance establishes standards for the way public
business enterprises are to report information about operating segments in annual financial statements and requires enterprises
fo report selected information about operating segments in interim financial reports issued to stockholders. Accounting guidance
also establishes standards for related disclosure about products and services, geographic areas and major customers. We
generate over 90% of our total revenue from StoresOnline cusiomers within North America (United States and Canada) and
fess than 10% of our total revenues from customers in other parts of the world.

Recently Adopted Accounting Guidance - On January 1, 2010, we adopted new accounting guidance on Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures. This authoritative guidance requires us to disclose the amount of significant transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy and the reasons for these transfers, as well as the reasons for any transfers in or
ont of Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. In addition, the guidance clarifies certain existing disclosure requirements. This new
guidance did not have a material impact on our disclasures in our consolidated financial statements at December 31, 2010,

Cn Jamuary 1, 2010, we adopted new accounting guidance on the.consolidation of variable interest entities. This
guidance requires revised evaluations of whether entities represent variable interest entities, ongoing assessments of control
over such entities, and additional disclosures for variable interests. This new authoritative guidance had no impact on our
financial condition and results of operations at December 31, 2010,

In July 2010, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“the FASB”) released accounting guidance which provides
greater iranspatency and addresses disclosures about the credit quality of financing recéivables and the allowance for eredit
losses. In addition, the guidance assists in the assessment of credit risk exposures and evaluation of the adequacy of
aliowances for credit losses. Additional disclosures must be provided on 2 disaggregated basis. The update defines two
leévels of disagaregdrion = portfolio ségment and class of financing receivable. Additionally, the update requires disclosure of
credit quality indicators, past due information and modifications of financing receivables. The update is not applicable to
mortgage banking activities (loans ariginated or purchased for resale to investors); derivative instruments such as repurchase
agreements; debt securities; a transferor’s interest in securitization transactions; and purchased beneficial interests in
securitized financial assets. This update is effective for us for interim or annual periods ending on or after December 15,
2010. This update resulted in additional foatnole disclosures (Mote 4).

Recent Accounting Guidance Not Yet Adopted - In October 2009, the FASB issued authoritative gnidance on
revenue recognition that will become effective for us beginning Jamuary 1, 2011, with earlier adoption permitted. Under the new
guidance, arrangements that include tangible products that have software components that are essential to the finctionality of the
tangible product will no longer be within the scope of the software revenue recognition guidance, and such software-enabled
praducts witl now be subject to other relevant revenue recognition guidance. Additionally, the FASB issued authoritative
guidance on revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables that are owside the scope of the software revenue recognition
guidance, Under the new guidance, when vendor specific objective evidence or third party evidence for deliverables in an
arrangement cannot be determined, a best estimate of the selling price is required 1o separate deliverables and allocate
arrangemnent consideration using the relative selling price method. The new guidance includes new disclosure requirements on
how the application of the relative selling price methed affeets the timing and amount of revenue recognition. This guidance
could have a material effect on owr financial stafements as a result of using the relative selling price method for our SaaS
arrangements.
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2 Net Income (L.oss) Per Common Share

Basic net income (loss} per common share is computed by dividing the net income (loss) for the period by the
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding diring the period. Diluted net income (loss) per common share is
computed giving effect to alt dilutive common stock equivalents, consisting of common stock options. Diluted net loss per
common share for the year ended December 31, 2010 and the fiscal year ended Fune 30, 2009 is the same as basic net loss per
common share because the comrmon share equivalents were anti-dilutive. The following table sets forth the computation of
basic and diluted net income (loss} per common share:

Fiscal Year
Year Ended Six Months Ended Ended
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009 Junc 30, 2009

Net income (loss) (in thousands) 5 (2,310) § 1,331 8 (7.542)
Weighted-average share reconciliation: -
Weighted-average shares outstanding ‘ 11,380,816 11,442,763 11,371,303
Weighted-average restricted shares held in escrow (23,382) {40,321} —
‘Weighted-average basic shares outsanding ' 11,357,434 11,402,442 11,371,303
Dilutive employee stock options T N/A 71,896 N/A
Dilutive restricted shares held in escrow N/A 10,346 N/A
Diluted shares outstanding 11,357434 11,484,684 11,371,303
Net income (loss) per common share:
~ Basic . _ : 5 (0207 § iz % (0.66)
Diluted 7 $ (0.20) % 012 § 0.66)

Weighted average anti-dilutive common share equivalents not included in the calculation of diluted net income (loss)
per common share totaled 811,414, 568,604, and 675,336 for the year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended

December 31, 2009, and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.

3. Acquisition

On February 9, 2010 we acquired all of the assets of CastleWave for total consideration of $495,000. For the quarter
ended March 31, 2010, we disclosed the provisional total consideration was $846,000. Subsequent to the acquisition, new
information was obiained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that resulted in s retrospectively
adjusting the provisional contingent consideration from $479,000 to $128,000 based upon estimated future revenue to be
generated through CastleWave sales channels, This retrospective decrease in contingent consideration resulted in a $351,000
decrease in goodwill. The total consideration included a contingent consideration based upon future revenue generated from
CastieWave sales channels of approximately $128,000, restricted stock of $117,000, and cash of $250,000. The contingent:
consideration is computed and paid ot quarterly based upon a petcentage of sales from CastleWave’s sales channels for three
years after the acquisition date. The provisional contingemt consideration is valued on a recurring basis and any future change
that are not measurement period adjustments will be recorded through the income statement. CastleWave is a provider of online
marketing services with offices in both New York, New York and Provo, Utah. We acquired CastleWave in an effort to expand
owr online marketing services capabilities and 1o add a sales office in the New York metropolitan area.
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Under the acquisition method of accounting we allocated the fair value of the total consideration transferred to the
tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired from CastleWave based on their estimated fair values on the date of
acquisition. The fair values assigned to identifiable intangible assets acquired were based on estimaies and assumptions
determined by management, We recorded the excess of purchase price over the agpregate fair values as goodwill. We
allocated approximately $12,000 of the purchase price to tangible assets and approximately $218,000 of the purchase price to

, identified intangible assets. We recorded ihe excess purchase price of approximately $265,000 as goodwill, all of which is
g deductible for income tax purposes. The identified intangible assets are being amortized over a weighted average life of three
years.

We have included CastleWave's results of operations in our Crexendo Web Services segment and our consolidated
resulis of eperations from the date of acquisition. Pro forma disclosures of CastleWave’s results of operations for periods
prior to the date of acquisition are not presented herein as they were not material when compared with our consolidated results

of operations.

l 4, Trade Receivables

ii _ — |

t Cuwrrently we operate with one class of financing receivable. Below is an analysis of the age of our trade receivables

{in thousands):

‘: 7 7 December 31,

2010 2000

Current 3 30,029 § 28327

3 1 - 30t days 3416 3,461

i 31 - 69 days ' . 2,291 2,284
61 - 90 days ‘ 1,533 1,298
91 days and over . 2,716 2,765
Gross trade recelvables 39,985 38,135
Less allowance for doubtfill accounts (18.421) {17,709)

; Trade receivables, net $ 21564 § 20426
5. Property and Equipment

,, Pmperty- and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands): .

:E : December 31,

i 2010 2009

g Software 3480 % 3,066

Computers and office equipment 3287 2,741

Land ‘ 877 -

i Building 765 -

| Leasehold improvements 101 101

i Furniture and fixtures 169 162

: Less accumulated depreciation and amertization {5,540} {4.624)

81 of 99

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, we had $366,000 and $252,000, respectively, of internally developed-sofiware

included in software above.

On June 3, 2010, we acquired a 22,000 square foot building in Tempe, Arizona for our corporate offices and
Crexendo Network Services division for totat consideration of $1,525,000. The fair value allocated to the land and building
was $877,000 and $648,000, respectively. The building will be depreciated over its estimated remaining life of 20 years.
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6. Fair Value Measurements

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below as of December 31, 2010 (in thonsands):

As of Fair valve measurement al reporting date using
December 31,
Description 2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level3
Contingent consideration $ (46) § - % - 8 {46)
Total ) (46) § - 3 - 5 (46)

The following table provides a reconciliation between the beginning and ending balances of items measured at fair
value on a recurring basis that used significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) (in thousands):

Acquisition
Contingent
‘ Considcration
Balances as of January I, 2010 $ -
Purchases, safes and settlernents, net 128
Transfers out of Level 3 : : {82} -
Balances as of December 31, 2010 3 46

The fair values of the trade receivables, and certificate of deposit were computed using a discounted cash flow model
using estimated market rates as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 (in thousands):

December 31, 2010 December.31, 2009
Carrying ~ FEstimated Fair Carrying  ~ Estimated Fair
. Value Yalue Valne Value
Cash and cash equivalents S 14207 % 14207 § 21,549 § 21,549
Restricted cash : ’ 1,088 1,088 1,088 1,088
Trade receivables ; ) . 21,564 21,120 20,426 20,071
Certificate of deposit 500 500 500 500

Our disclosure of the estimated fair value of por financial instuments is made in accordance with accounting guidance.
The estimated fair value amounts have been determined by using available market information and appropriate valuation
methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required to interpret market data in order to develop the estimates of fair
value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts we could realize in a current
market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the
estimated fair value amounts. The fair valuve estimates presented herein are based on peritnent information avaijlable to
management as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009,
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7. Stock-Based Compensation

We have various incentive stock-based compensation plans that provide for the gramt of up to 2,000,000 shares to
eligible employees, consultants and directors of stock options, restricted siock, and other share-based awards. As of December
31, 2010, we had 354,817 shares remaining in the plans for grant.

The following table surnmarizes the statement of operations effect of stock-based compensation for the year ended
December 31, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009, and the fiseal year ended Tune 30, 2009 (in thousands}:

Six Months
Year Ended Ended Fascal Year
December 31, December 31, Ended

: 2010 2009 June 30, 2009
Stock option compensation expense recognized: -
Cost of revenne $ 169 91 5 124
Research and development 176 113 279
Selling and marketing ' 34 47 146
General and administrative 612 458 095
Total stock option compensation expense recognized 1,041 709 1,544
Related deferred income tax benefit - : {354) {228} (76T

Decrease in net income or increase in net loss h 687 § 481 §$ 777

Stock Options

The Wéightsd?average fair value of stock options on the date of grant and the assumptions used to estimate the fair
value of stock options granted during the year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009, and the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model were as follows: '

Six Moaths
Year Ended Ended Fiscal Year
December3l, Deeember 31, Ended

_ 2010 2009 June 30, 2009
Weighted-average fair value of options granted £ 1.53 8§ 351 % 2,70
Expected volatility 66% 70% T1%
Expected life (in years) 4.00 337 3.61
Risk-free interest rate 1.73% 202% 1.92%
Expected dividend yield 2.35% 1.06% 1.63%

The expected volatility of the option is determined using historical volatilities based on historical stock prices. The
expected life of the options gramted Is based on our historical share option exercise experience. The risk-free interest rate is
determined using the yield avaitable for zero-coupon U.S. government issues with a remaining term equal to the expected life of
the option. Expected dividend yizld is based on owr announced dividends each peried during the term of the option.

72

e mm———— L mmw e UGSV -

3112011 5:52 PM


http://www.sec.gov//%5echives/edgar/data/1075736/000I35448SI100

B N s BT LE

T

TR

i I b L2

RN

iig 10k him hitp://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1075736/(001354488 1100...

The following table summarizes the stock option activity for all plans for the year ended December 31, 2010, the six
months ended December 31, 2009, and the fiscal year ended hme 30,2009:

Weighted-
Avernge Apgregate
Weighted-
Average Remaining  Intrinsic Value
Numaber of

Shares Execrcise Price Conteact Life  {in thousands)

Outstanding at July T, 2008 804,417 §$ 1468 3.4 years $ 1,547
* Granted ' 368,000 5.56
- Exercised (154,651) 3.86
Cancefled/forfeited : (342.430) 15.06

Qutstanding at June 30, 2009 675,336 1199 6.8 years 690
Granted 175,000 7.52
Exercised - -
Cancelled/forfeited ’ ) {102,295) 20.82

Outstanding at December 31, 2009 748,041 2.75 7.9 years 431
Granted . 585,000 345
Exercised ' (2,499} - 349
Cancelled/forfeited (42,531) 13.95

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 1,288 011 676 8.2 years 832

Ending vested and expected to vest 1,180,473 6.76 8.2 years 710

Exercisable as of December 31, 2010 552,957 946 7.0 years 245

Exercisable as of December 31, 2009 _ 322,890 1245 6.3 years 176

84 of' 99

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2010 and the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2009 was $9,000 and $279,000, respectively.

The following mble summarizes non-vested stock activity for all stock option plans during the year ended December

31,2010:

Year Ended December 31, 2010

Weighted

Average

Graat-Brate

Shares Fair Valoe
Nonvested balance, beginning of period ' 425,151 3 3.83
{ranted 585,000 1.53
Vested (255,511) 3.3
Forfeited {19,586) 2.13
‘Nonvested balance, end of period 735054 § 225

As of December 31, 2010, the total future compensation expense related to nonvested options pot yet recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations was approximately 31,630,000 and the weighted-average period over which these
awards are expected to be recognized is approximately 18 months. -
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During the year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended Decernber 31, 2009, and the fiscal vear ended
hme 30, 2009, we granted 20,000, 21,000 and 108,008 shares of restricted stock to our employees and directors under the 2003
Equity Incentive Plan, respectively. The restricted stock has one, two, or three-year vesting periods during which the recipient
must remain employed with us or our subsidiaries. The weighted average fair value of the restricted stock on the dates of grant
made during the year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009, and the fiscal year ended Iune 30,
2009 was $5.85, $6.89, and $12.15 per share, respectively. The following table summarizes the restricted stock activity for the
year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009, and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009:

Restricted stock ontstanding as of July 1, 2008
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Restricted stock outstanding as of June 30, 2009
Granted

Vested

Forfeited

Restricted stock outstanding as of December 31, 2009
Granted ‘

Vested

‘Forfeited... . ... - - .

- Restricted stock outstanding as of December 31, 2014

8. Income Taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consisted of the foliowi'ng (in thousands): '

Current income tax provision {benefit):
Federal
State and local
Foreign

Current income tax provision (benefit)
Deferred ingome tax provision {benefit):
Federal
State and local
Foreign

Deferred income tax provision

Total income tay provision

Weighted-

Average
Number of Grant-Date
Sharcs Fair Yalue
108,000 3 12.15
(49,849} 12.15
(33,099} 12.15
25,052 12.15
21,000 6.89
(16,749 12,15
-29,303 15
20,000 5.85
(33,631) %.13
(1,672} 12.15
14,000 6.89
Six Months
Year Ended Ended Fiscal Year

December 31, December 31, Ended
2010 2009 June 30, 2009
b 540 % (123) % 4,451
8 1] 100
(190) {175) —
358 (202) 4,551
19 1,015 992
118 59 138
235 (235) —
334 839 1,130
5 092 § 637 § 5,681
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: The income tax provision (benefit) attributable to income (loss) before income tax provision for the year ended
December 31, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009, and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 differed from the

i amounts computed by applying the U.S. federal statutory tax rate of 34% for the year ended December 31, 2010 and 35% for the
six months ended December 31, 2009 and fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 as a result of the following (in thousands):

Six Months
Year Ended Ended Fiscal Year
December3l, Deeember3l, Ended

i 2010 2009 June 30, 2009
! . Computed “expected” income tax provision (benefif) 3 (550} § 688 § (651)
; Increase (decrease) in income tax provision (benefit) resuliing from:
State and local income tax provision (benefit), net of federal effect (43) 103 154
: Change in tax rate 123 — —

Change in the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets 685 . 81 5,124

Settlements (96) (235) 795
g Uncertain tax positions 365 15 —
Other, net 208 (15) 250

Income tax provision $ 692 § 637 § 5,681

kbt e
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As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, significant components of net deferred income tax assets and liabilities were as

follows (in thousands):

Deferred income tax assets;
Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Net operating loss carryforwards
Foreign tax credits

Stock-based compensation

Other

Subtotal

Vzlation allowance

Total deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Property and equipment

Prepaid expenses and other

Total deferved income tax liabilities

Net deferred income tax assets

As of Deecmber 31, 2010 As of December 31, 2009
Cuorrent Non-current Current Non-carrent
5 532 % — § 808 3 —
1,048 1,412 —
e 2,506 R 3,073
— 1,341 — 1,064
— 1,957 — 1,744
e 364 — 212
1,580 6,168 2,220 6,093
— (837) — (546)
1.580 5,331 2,220 5,547
— (198) — (121)
(631) (109) (1,211 (128}
(631) (307) (1211) (249)
$ 949 § 5024 % 1,009 % 5,208
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During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2002, we experienced a change in ownership, as defined by the Intemal Revenne
Code (“IRC™) under Section 382. A change of ownership occurs when ownership of a company incrcases by more than 50
percentage points over a three-year festing period of certain stockholders. As a result of this ownership change we determined
that our annual limitation on the utilization of our federal net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards is approximately $461,000
per year. We will only be able to utilize $5,761,000 of our NOL carryforwards and will forgo utilizing $14,871,000 of our
NOL carryforwards as a result of this ownership chanpe. We do not account for forgone NQL carryovers in our deferred tax
assets and only account for the NOL carryforwards that will not expire umutilized as a result of the restrictions of IRC section
382.

As of December 31, 2010, we had NOL, research and development, and foreign tax credit carryforwards for 5.

federal income tax reporting purposes of approximately $6,092,000, $129,000, and $1,341,000, respectively. The NOLs will

begin to expire in 2020 through 2029, the research and development credits wilk begin to expire in 2029 through 2030, and the
foreign tax credits will begin to expire in 2017 through 2019, if not utilized.

We also have state NOL and rescarch and development credit carryforwards of approximately $2,627,000 and
$48,000, which expire on specified dates as set forth io the rules of the various states to which the carryforwards relate.

We also have foreign NOL carryforwards of approximately $710,000, which expire on specified dates as set forth in
the mles of the various cionmtries in which the carryforwards relates,

Accoutting gnidance requires that a valuation allowance be established when it is more likely than not that all or a
portion of net deferred income tax assets will not be realized. A valuation allowance has been recorded on certain of our
foreign tax credits that we believe we will not be able to utilize before the carryforwards expire. A valuation allowance has
also been recorded on certain of our state NOL carryovers that we believe we will not be able to utilize before the
carryforwards expire. A valumation allowance has also been recorded on all of our foreign NOL carryovers as we do not
believe we will be able to utilize these carryforwards.

The net change in our valuation allowance was an increase of $291 L300 for the year ended December 31, 2010 and a
decrease of $5,124,000 for the six months ended December 31, 2009,

Acf:omting guidance clarifies the accounting for uncertain tax positions and requires companies to recognize the
impact of a tax position in their financial staternents, if that position is more Jikely than not of being sustained on audit, based on
the techmical merits of the position,

Although we believe otr estimates are reasonable, there can be no assurance that the final tax outcome of these matters
will not be different from that which we have reflected in our historical income tax provisions and aceruvals, Such difference
could have a malerial impact on our income tax provision and operating results in the period in which it makes such
determination.
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The aggregate changes in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits during the year ended December 31, 2010 and the
six months ended December 31, 2009 were as follows (in thousands):

Balance as of hiy 1, 2008 5 129
Increases for tax positions related to the current period . : 1
Increases for tax positions related to the prior years —
Decreases for tax positions related to prior years , —

Settlements —
Reductions due to lapsed statute of limitations -
Balance as of December 31, 2009 - § 140
Increases for tax positions related to the current period - 1,273

Increases for tax positions related to the prior years —
Decreases for tax positions related to prior years —

Settlements {96)
Reductions due to lapsed statute of limitations ' —
Balance as of December 31, 2010 ) 1,317 .

During the year ended December 31, 2610, we reached a favorable settlement with New Zealand Island Revenue
Service. Prior to the settlement, we had rcserved $96,000 as an uncertain tax Hability. Upon conclusion of the settlement, this
amourt was reduced from the uncértain tax liability and provided an income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2010,

During the year ended Decerober 31, 2010 we filed amended returns for the following tax periods ending June 30,
2003, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and the six months ended December 31, 2009. The returns were amended to reflect an
extraterritorial income redetermination (ETI). "As a result of the redetermination of ET] we reassessed our foreign source
income whichresulted in the wtilization of additional foreign tax credits. As a result of the amended returns we have recorded a

“liability for uncértiin tax positions of $1:273,000;
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. As of December 31, 2010, we had unrecognized tax benefits of $1,317,000 principally related to foreign tax credits,
which if recognized, would reduce our effective tax rate.

Estimated interest and penalties related to the underpayment or late payment of income taxes are classifiedasa
component of income tax provision (benefit) in the consolidated statements of operations. Accrued imterest and penalties were
approximately $6,000 and $28,000 as of Decerber 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Our U.5. federal income tax returns for fiscal 2007 through 2010 are open tax years. The IRS recently completed an

audit of fiscal years 20035 through 2007. We also file in various state and foreign jurisdictions. With few exceptions, we are no
Ionger subject to state and non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities for years prior to fiscal 2007,
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9. Acerued Expenses
Accrued expenses consisted of the folfowing (in thousands):
Peeember 3, Decemberdt,
2010 2009

Customer service retumns allowance $ 652 $ 1,387

" Accrued wages and benefits 1,291 1,188
Other 1,418 2,013
Total b} 3,361 % 4,588

89 of 99

10, Intangible Assets

On hme 29, 2007, we purchased certain advertising lists for $1,276,000. On June 30, 2003, we purchased an
additionat $833,000 in advertising lists. We have historically rented these 1ists for use in our direct advertising campaigns. We
have the right to lease these lists to other third parties. We amortize the advertising lists over six years on an accelerated basis.

In February 2010, we entered into an asset purchase agreement with Castlewave LLC in which several intangible
assets were acquired which were customer relationships, technical know-how; and non-compete agreements (Note 3). The net
carrying amount of intangible assets and future estimated amortization expense is as follows (in thousands);

December3l,  December3l,

' . 2010 2009

* Advertising name lists ) $ 2,109 5 2,109
Customer relationships o8 0

. ‘Techmcal know-how . SN : 60 0
Non-compete . 60 0

Less accumulated amortization ‘

Adveriising name Hsts - (1,274) (903)
Custorner relationships : Go 0
Technical know-how : (18} Q0
Non-compete (18) - 0

5 087 $ 1,206

The following table outlines the estimated future amortization expense related to intangible assets held at December
31, 2010 (in thousands):

Years ending December 31,

201 $ 401

2012 C 355

2013 183

2014 - 48

Total : ‘ % 087
78
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Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009, and the fiscal
year enided June 30, 2009 was approximately $437,000, $194,000, and $43 1,000, respectively.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

We lease certain of its equipment and corporate offices under noncancelable operating lease agreements expiring at
various dates through 2015. The operating leases for our corporate offices and training center facility contain customary
escalation clauses. Future aggregate minimum lease obligations under aperanng leases as of December 31, 2010, exclusive of

taxes and insurance, are as follows (in thousands):

Years ending December 31,

2011 F 1,625
2012 1,675
2013 1,350
2014 21
2015 22
Total 3 4,693

‘Rental expense for the year ended December 31, 2010, the six months ended December 31, 2009, and the vear ended
June 30, 2002 was approximately $2,052,000, $667,000, and $1,881,000, respectively.

Legal Proceedings

Fromi time to tirme we receive inquiries from federal, state, city and local government officials il the various
jurisdictions in which we operate. These inquiries and investigations generally concern compliance with various city, county,
state and/or federal regulations involving sales, representations made, customer service, refund policies, and marketing
practices. We respond to these inquirics and have generally been successful in addressing the concerns of these persons and
entities, without a formal complaint or charge being made, although there is often no formal closing of the inguiry or
investigation. There can be no assurance that the ultimate resolution of these or other inquiries and investigations will not have
a material adverse effect on owr business or operations, or that a formal complaint will not be initiated. We also receive
complaints and inquiries in the ordinary course of bisiness from both customers and governmental and non-governmental
bodies on behalf of erstomers, and in some cases these customer complaints have risen to the level of litigation, There can be
no assurance that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse affect on our business or results of
aperations,

We have recorded liabilities of approximately $50,000 and $1,079,000 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, for estimated losses resulting from various legal proceedings in which we are engaged. Attorneys fees associated
with the various legal proceedings are expensed as incurred. We are also subject to various claims and fegal proceedings
covering matters that arise in the crdinary course of business. We believe that the resolution of these other cases will not have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial position, or results of operations.
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12, Stockhalders’ Equity

On September 4, 2007, our Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to an additional $50,000,000 of our
common stock, bringing the total amount authorized for repurchase to $70,000,000 through September 2012, Qur share purchase
program was originally announced on September 5, 2006. We expect to repurchase the comnon stock over 5 years but may
suspend or discontinue repurchasing the common stock at any time. During the year ended December 31, 2010 and the fiscal
vear ended June 30, 2009, we repurchased 78,373 and 109,100 shares of common stock for $385,000 and $734,000,
respectively. As of December 31, 2010, $42,490,000 remained of the $70,000,000 approved repurchase amount.

On November 3, 2010, we annotinced the commencement of a2 modified Dutch auction tender offer to purchase up to
$4,750,000 in value of shares of our comamon stock at a price not less than $4.35 per share and not miore than $4.75 per share.
The tender offer closed on December 10, 2010, after which we purchased and canceted 723,856 shares of our commen stock
at a cost of §3,438,000.

13. Employee Benefit Plan

We have established a retirement savings plan for eligible employees. The plan allows employees to contribufe a
portion of their pre-tax compensation in accordance with specified guidelines. We may make discretionary profit-sharing
contributions. We have begun making cortributions to the plan in July 2006. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the six
months ended December 31, 2009, and the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, we contributed approximately $407 000, $155,000,

. and $339 (00 to the retirement savings plan, respectively.

14. ‘Sepments

Management has chosen to organize the Comparty around differences in products and services. In the fiscal year ended

. June 30, 2009, we introduced two new segments into the market named Crexendo Web Services and Crexendo Network

Services, Crexendo Web Services generates revenne from managing e-commerce or lead generation offerings, web sites,
search enging optimizationfmanagement zrd online promotional needs for small, medium, and large businesses. Crexendo
Network Services is currently in the development stage and will market to the data and telecommunications

industry. StoresOnline will continue to generate revenue by offering businesses a contimmm of services and technology
providing tools and training to establish a successfui website on the Internet for entreprenewrs and smzll office/home office
{SOHO) custormers, ‘

Segment revenue and operating income (loss) was as follows (in thousands):

Six Months
Year Ended Ended Fiscal Year
December3), December3l, Eaded
20010 L June 30, 2009
Revenue:
StoresOnling $ 64471 § 35589 § 94411
Crexendo Web Services 1,322 127 -

. Crexendo Network Services , - . -
Consolidated revenue £ 65793 § 35716 § 94411
Operating Income(Loss):

StoresOnline i 5,509 % 54535 % 3,682
Crexendo Web Services (1,827 (904) (253)
Crexendo Network Services {1,429) {210) (199)
Unallocated corporate items (8,827) (4,864) (11,109)
Total operating loss $ (6,574 % (523 §  (7.879)
Other Income, net:
StoresOnline h 4956 § 2491 8§ 6,018
Tota} other income, net 5 4,956 § 2491 § 6,018
Income (loss) before income taxes:
StoresOnline 5 10,465 § 7946 - % 9700
Crexendo Web Services {1,827 {904) (253)
Crexendo Network Services (1,429) (210} (199)
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{8.827) (4,864) (11,109
B (1,618) § 1,968 §  (1.861)
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Crexendo Network Services is a development stage segment. Since the incepﬁon of Crexendo Network Services in
March 2009 through December 31, 2019, this segment has incurred $1,838,000 in expenses.

15, Related Party
On April 7, 2010, Steven G. Mihaylo, our Chief Executive Officer, purchased property we held for sale for $210,000,

which represented management’s best estimate of the fair market value of the property. There was no gain or loss recorded on
the transaction.

16. Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

Year ended December31, 2010

: For the three months ended

f March 31, June 30, September 30}, December 31,

2010 2010 2016 2019 -

i (In thousands, except per share data)

i Revenues $ 17,09 § 17448 § 14284 § 16,967

; Cost of revenue 5,097 5,228 4,707 6,742

H Selling and marketing C 8,874 8,913 7,232 7,887

j General and administrative 3,466 3,634 3,295 - 4,202

: Research and development 538 715 957 $80
Loss from operations (831) (1,042) (1,907) (2,744)
Total other income 1,129 1,169 1,452 1,206
Income (loss) before incoine taxes 243 . 127 {455) (1,338)
Income tax benefit (provision} . (125) (76) 376 (867)

- MNetincome (loss)- - - - - S 123§ 51 § (7 % (2,405)

Basic net income (loss) per common share 5 001 % 0.00 § e 3 - (021)
Diluted net income (loss) per common share $ 001 § 0.00 § (00D % (0.21)

; g1
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Six months ¢nded December 31, 2009
For the three months ended

_September 30, Pecember 31,

2009 2009
(Tn thousands, exce pt per share data}
Revemes by 17,378 § 18,338
Cost of revenue 5,583 6,025
Selling and marketing 7,904 8,487
General and administrative 3,601 3,595
Research and development . 503 54]
Loss from operations : {(Z13) (310}
Total other income 1,313 1,178
Income before income taxes 1,100 868
- Income tax provision (382) (255)
Net income : $ 718 % 613
Basic net income per common share 5 006 8% 0.06
Diluted net income per cormmon share : 3 006 $ 0.06

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2009
For the three months ended

September 30, December 31, March 31, June 30,
2008 2008 2009 2009
. . {In thousands, except per share data)
Revenues § 27266 & 26854 § 20921 % 1937
Cost of revenue 8,367 9,436 5,802 5,533
‘Selling-and marketing - e - - 17,066 17,580 9,335 8,452
Gereral and administrative ' 4,512 6,267 4,051 3,711
" Research and development 583 497 315 - 582
Income (loss) from operations (3,262} (6,926} 1,217 1,092
Total other income , 1,644 1,246 1,561 1,567
Income (Joss) before income taxes {1,618} (5,680) 2,778 2,659
Income tax benefit (provision) {5,881) (4,450) (1,226) 5,376
Net income (10ss) : $ (7,499 3 (10,130} § 1,552 § 8,535
Basic net income (loss) per common share 8 (066} § {0.89) . 0.14 § 0.75
Diluted net income (loss) per common share 5 (0.66) $ (0.89) § 0.14 § 0.74

Net income (loss) per common share is computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Therefore, the
sums of quarterly net income (loss) per common share amounts do not necessarily equal the total for the six month and twelve
month periods presented due to rounding.
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IMERGENT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule II- Valvation and Qualifying Accounts
Year Ended December 31, 2010, Six Months Ended December 31, 2009, and
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2002

Balance at Balance at
Begioning End of
of Period Additions Deductions Period
. {in lhousands)
Year ended December 31, 2010
Alowance for doubtful accounts receivable $ 17,709 % 19923 § (1921 § 13421
Deferred income tax asset valnation allowance 546 29] — 837
Six Months ended December 31, 2009
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable 14,107 17,616 (4.4 17,709
- Deferred income tax asset valuation allowance 5,670 —_ (5,124) 346
Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2009
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable 18,583 24 445 (23,9243 14,107
Deferred income tax asset valuation allowance — 5,670 — 5,670

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FENANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None

. ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

95 of 99

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures.that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed
in our Exchange Act reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified inthe SEC’s
rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow for timefy decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing
and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, we recognize that any controls and procedures, no matter how weil
designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives, and we are required

" to apply owr judgment in evalvating the cost-benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

As required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b), we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the
participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the fiscal quarter covered by this report. Based
on the foregoing, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosire controls and
procedures were effective. '
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There has been no change in our internal controls over financial reporting during our most recent fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

Manage ment's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Internzl control over financial reporting refers to the process designed by, or inder the supervision of, our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, and effected by our Board of Directors, tanagement and other personnel, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financiai statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and includes those policies and procedures
1 that;

Pertain to the maimenance of records that in reasopable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of our assets;

] . Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and
expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and

Provide reasomable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving financial reporting objectives
becanse of its inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that invelves human diligence and
compliance and is subject to Japses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Intersal control over financial
reporting also can be circumvented by collusion or improper management override. Because of such limitations, there is a risk
that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by internal control over financial

- reporting. However, these inherent limitations are known features of the finaneial reporting process. Therefore, it is possible
to design into the process safeguards to reduce, though not eliminate, the risk. Management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over ow financial reporting,

Management has used the framework set forth in the report entitled “Internal Control-Integrated Framework™ published
by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission to evaluate the effectiveness of its internal control
over financial reporting. Management has concluded that its internal control over financial reporting was effective as of the end
of the most recent fiscal year.

e AR it R A e

This Annual Report does not include an attestation report of owr independent registered public accounting firm
regarding internal contro] over financial reporting. Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchangc Commission that
permit us to provide only management’s report in this Amual Report.,

PULTPILE PR ST

The foregéing has been approved by our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, who have been involved with the assessment and analysis of our internal controls over financial reporting.

TPEM 98, OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART I1
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Information with respect to this item will be set forth in the definitive proxy statement to be delivered to siockholders

in connection with the 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Proxy Statement™). Such information is incorparated herein
by reference. A

We have adopted 2 code of ethics that applies (o all employees, including employees of our subsidiaries, as well as
each member of our Board of Directors. ‘The code of ethics is available at our website at www . imergeniinc.com.

We imend to satisfy any disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendmert to, or waiver
from, a provision of this code of ethics by posting such information on our website, at the address specified above.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to this itern will be set forth in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Executive
Compensation and Other Matters,” and is incorporated hersin by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS MATTERS

- Information with respect to this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement under the heading “Beneficial Ownership
of Shares,” apd is incorporated herein by reference.

 ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

a7 of 99

Information with respect-to this item wil| be set forth in the Proxy Staternen: under the heading “Corporate
Governance” and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information with respect to this item will be set forth in the Proxy Staiement under the headings “Fees of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm”™ and “Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures,” and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
‘ ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
Documents filed as part of this Report:

1. Financial Statements ~ consolidated financial statements of iMergent, Inc. and subsidiaries as set forth under liem 8 of this
Report.

[ ' 2. The Financial Statemént Schedule on page 83 of this Anmual Repart.

3. Exhibit Index as seen below.

EXHIBIT INDEX

j Incorporated By Reference

‘ ExhjbitNo.  Exhibit Description Form Date Number  FiiedHerewith

e 21 - Agreement and Plan of Merger dated March 10, 2000 by and among $K 321/00 101

Netgateway, Inc., Galaxy Acquisition Corp. and .

: GalaxyEnterprises, Inc.

i 31 Certificate of Incorporation S-1 6/1/99 3.1

; 32 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of lncorporation s1 9700 3.

i 33 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation 10-K 10/15/02 3.3

i 3.4 Amended and Restated Bylaws 10-Q  11/20/01 32

.35 . (Certificate of Ownership and Merger (4} S-1/A 11712499 33

36 Articles of Merger . ’ S-1/A 11/12/99 34
4.1 Form of Common Stock Certificate . 10K 10/15/02 4.1
42% Form of Representatives’ Warrant $-1 6/1/99 41
10.1* 1598 Stock Cempensation Program s-1 6/1/99 10.6

10.2* Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Option Plan for Senior Executives  10-K 9/29/03  10.2
10.3* Amended and Restated 1999 Stock Option Plar for Non-Executives 10-K  929/03 103

10.5% 2003 Equity Incentive Plan 10-K 9/10/04 10.11
10.6 Lease Agreement dated as of March 18, 2008 by and between ©10-Q 5/6/08 10.1
iMergent, Inc. and Canyon Park Management Company

21.1 Subsidiaries of iMergemt, Inc. X
E 23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (Deloitte X
: & Touche LLP)
E 232 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (Tanner X
o LLC) '
311 Certification Pursoant to Rules 13a-14(a) under the Securities
; Exchange Act of 1934 as amended X
i 31.2 Certification Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 as amended X
: 32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350 X

322 Certification Pursvant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 X

* Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

ICLTPAPTARE AT S K1 3 T SRS
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 2, 2011

IMERGENT, INC.

By:  /s/ STEVEN G MIHAYLG
Steven G Mihaylo
Chief Execwtive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchangs Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Date: March 2, 2011

Date: March 2, 2011

Date: March 2 2011
Date: M§rch 2,201
Date: March 2, 2011
Date: March2, 2011

Date: March 2, 2011

By:

By:

B)_f:

By

By:

By:

By:

By:
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/s/ STEVEN G MIHAYLO

Steven G Mihaylo

Chief Executive Ofﬁcef, Chairman of the

Board of Directors

'/s/ JONATHAN R. ERICKSON

Jonathan R. Erickson
Chief Financial Officer

/sf JEFFREY T. JARVIE

Jeffrey T. Jarvie

Corporate Comtrotler/Vice President of

Finance

/s/ TODD GOBRGEN

+

Todd Goergen
Director

/s! CRAIG RAUCHLE

Craig Rauchle
Director

/s/ ROBERT KAMM

Robert Karmm
Director

fs/ DAVID WILLIAMS

David Williams
Director

/s/ ANIL PURI

Anil Puri
Director
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EXHIBITK - Documentation to support the applicant’s cash and funding sources

See Exhibit J



EXHIBIT L- Documentation attesting to the applicant’s technical and managerial expertise relative to
the proposed service offering (s) and proposed service area

See attached biographical information, and

Applicant is currently authorized in Alabama, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Delaware, District of Columnbia,
Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana, Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Massachusetts, Michigan,
Mississippi, Missouri, Montana, Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North
Carolina, North Dakota, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Tsland, South Dakota, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Washington,
West Virginia, Wisconsin and Wyoming to provide local exchange and/or interexchange service. Applicant is in
the process of applying for authorization to provide competitive local exchange and interexchange services
nationwide. Applicant has not been denied authority for any of the services for which it seeks authority in this
Application.

When it initiates service in Ohio, Crexendo propeses initially to provide resold local exchange and
interexchange telecommunications services, and local services using the UNEs and UNE replacement, utilizing
ILEC facilities. Although the company has no current plans to install facilities in the State of Ohio, it may do
so in the future, Initially, the local services Crexendo intends to offer are likely to be those local exchange
telecommunications services offered by incumbent local exchange carriers in the proposed service area.

If Crexendo installs facilities in Ohio, it will probably use the following or a similar configuration of equipment:
Applicant will provide voice and high speed data services through a combination of the latest technology
switching and transport media. The switching system will consist of a central processing and control complex
capable of interconnection as a peer to the incumbent as well as competitive local exchange companies. The
hub portion of the switch will inferconnect with the public switched network on Signaling System 7 ("SS7") or
Feature Group D ("FGD") facilities. The system's remote module capability will allow properties to be served
in a manner that provides the exchange of appropriate signaling, control and calling/caller information to the
network in accordance with network standards and specifications. Additionally, these services will be delivered
over a combination of delivery mechanisms through incumbent local carriers’ unbundled loop network, both
copper and fiber and transport networks, as well as via Applicant constructed facilities.  Applicant intends to
provide service upon certification and finalization of interconnection agreements with the LECs.



Steven G. Mihaylo, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Steve was appainted as Chief Executive Officer in 2008. He is the retired chairman and chief executive officer
of Inter-Tel, Incorporated, which he founded in 1969. Steve led the Inter-Tel evolution from providing business
telephene systems to offering complete managed services and software that help businesses faciiitate
communication and increase customer service and productivity. Before selling Inter-Tel to Mitel for $720
million in 2007, Steve grew the business to nearly $500 million in annual sales.

Steve earned an henarary PhD fram California State University - Fullerton and received a Bachelor of Arts in
Business Administration in Accounting & Finance from the university in 1969. He has served on boards of
numerous community organizations including the Arizona Heart Foundation, Junior Achievement of Arizona,
Arizona Museum of Science and Technology and the Arizona State University College of Business Dean's
Council of 100. Committed to education, Steve is involved with the Karl Eller Callege of Management at the
University of Arizona and has served on the advisory board of Junior Achievement of Central Arizona for over
25 years, a5 a member of the board of directors of the Big Bear High Schaol Education Foundation and on the
Dean’s Advisary Board of CSU-Fullerton.

Clint Sanderson, Senior Vice President

Mr. Sanderson jeined StoresCnline in 2002 and has served as SVP and President of our StoresOnline and
Crexendo divisions since February 2009. Since jeining iMergent, Sandersen has held positions of increasing
responsibility, including Senior Vice President of Sales of our StoresOnline Division, Sales Manager and vice

president of operations. Prier to joining StoresOnline, Mr. Sanderson served as director of sales for two
enterprise saftware companies. Mr. Sanderson alse serves an the Baard of Directars of the American Lung
Association of Utah. Mr. Sandersan received a Bachelor of Science Degree from Brigham Young University.

David Krietzberg, Chief Administrative Officer

Mr. Krietzberg has served as the Chief Administrative Cfficer since 2009. Prior to joining iMergent, Inc.,
Krietzberg held pesitions with Mitel Networks, Inc, Inter-Te! Technologies. Inc and Executone Information
Systems, Inc., including Chief Financial Officer, Vice President of Finance and Treasurer. Krietzberg has

extensive experience in operations management, strategic planning, financial management, building
crgamzations and developing high performance teams. Mr. Krietzberg has both an MBA in finance and a BBA
in accounting from Pace University.




Jonathan R. Erickson, Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Erickson has served as iMergent's Chief Financial Officer since February 2009. Prior to his that he served
as a contraller since 20086. Prior to jeining iMergent Mr. Erickson held various positions of increasing
responsibility at Deloitte & Teuche LLP, which he joined in May 2003, culminaling with the position of Audit
Senior specializing primarily in international manufacturing operations. Mr. Erickson received a Bachelor of
Science degree in Accounting from Brigham Yoeoung University in 2002 and a Master of Accountancy from
Brigham Young University in 2003. Mr. Erickscn is also a certified public accountant.

David L. Rosenvall, Chief Technology Officer

Mr. Rasenvali was appointed as our Chief Technalogy Officer in February 2001. Prior thareto, he served as
our Chief Architect from September 1999, He initially joined us in November 1998 in connection with cur
acquisition of StoresCnline.com. From September 1997 to December 1998, Mr. Rosenvall was president of
Spartan Multimedia in Calgary. Alberta, Canada, and from January 1995 to August 1997, he was Vice-
President for Research and Development at Xentel, anather Calgary company. Mr. Rosenvall holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Calgary and an M.B.A. from
Brigham Young University.

Jeffrey Korn, Chief Legal Officer

Mr. Korn has served as Chief Legal Officer since February 2009. Prior 1o that he served as the General
Counsel of iMergent since 2002. Prior 10 joining iMergeni, Mr. Korn had a private consulting praciice; before
that, he had served as general counsei of ProsoftTraining {previously a NASDAQ company), and prior to that,
Mr. Korm was a partner in a Jacksonville, Florida, law firm with his practice. specializing in corparate matters
and litigatien. Mr. Korn has been an advisor to private venture firms, as well as a lecturer and a college
instructor. Mr. Korn currently serves on the board of directors of Flanders Corporation and on several
charitable and educaticn boards. Mr. Korn has a BA from the State University of New York at New Paltz and a
JD from Stetson University College.




EXHIBIT M - List of names, addresses, and phone
numbers of officers and directors, or partaners

OFFICERS: Steven G. Mihaylo Chief Executive Officer
Jeff Korn Chief Legal Officer
Jonathan Erickson Chief Financial Officer
David Krietzberg Chief Administrative Officer
David Rosenvall Chief Technology Officer
Clint Sanderson Senior Vice President

DIRECTORS: Steven (. Mihaylo

1615 South 52nd Street
Tempe, Arizona 85281
(801) 227-0004 (Phone)



EXHIBIT N — Documentation indicating the Applicant’s corporate structure and ownership

Applicant is an Arizona Corporation

Applicant’s ownership is as follows:

Name and percentage owned

iMergent, Inc. 100%



EXHIBIT O - Information regarding any similar operations in other states

This company has not been previously certified in the State of Ohio. Crexendo is currently authorized in
Alabama, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Delaware, District of Columbia, Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Idaho,
Illinois, Indiana, Towa, Kansas, Kentucky, Louisiana, Massachusetts, Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri, Montana,
Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, Oregon,
Pennsylvannia, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Texas, Utah, Vermont, Washington, West Virginia, Wisconsin and
Wyoming to provide local exchange and/or interexchange service. Applicant is in the process of applying for
authorization to provide local exchange and interexchange services nationwide. Applicant has not been denied
authority for any of the services for which 1t seeks authority in this Application.



EXHIBIT P - Verification that the applicant will maintain local
telephony records separate and apart from any other accounting records in accordance with the GAAP

The company may use its own numbering scheme for its books, provided that a translation matrix is maintained
that maps the local exchange operations only between this numbering system and the USOA accounts. The
purpose of the matrix is to allow a conversion from the company’s chosen account numbering scheme and
descriptions for the local exchange operations into USOA account numbers; and

The translation matrix shall be made available for the Commission staff’s review upon request; and

All filings with the Commission that require submission of financial information specific to local exchange
operations, such as the Commission’s Annual Report, shall utilize the translation matrix and be provided in the
USOA format. To the extent the treatment under the USOA of a particular transaction or event differs from the
treatment the company would otherwise apply under generally accepted accounting principles, the financial
information filed with the Commission shall reflect the USOA prescribed treatment of this item. The company
shall use subsidiary records, if needed, to substantiate differences between USOA-prescribed accounting and
generally accepted accounting principles.



Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.

Verification of Maintaining Local Telephony Records

I, Jeff Korn, Chief Legal Officer, of Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc., an Arizona Corporation, verify
that Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. will comply with maintaining local telephony records separate and apart

from any other accounting records in accordance with the GAAP.

Crexendo Business Solutipnsy Inc.

South 52nd Street
Tenhpe, Arizona 85281
Telephone: (801) 227-0004
Facsimile: (801) 426-6712

eff; Chlef gal Officer

Dated: Lr) I f‘{/




EXHIBIT Q — Verification of compliance with any affiliate transaction requirements



Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.

Veritication of Affiliate Transaction Requirements

1. Jeff Korn, Chief Legal Officer, of Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc., a Arizona Corporation, verify
that Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. will comply with all Affiliate Transaction Requirements set forth in

0.A.C. 1901:1-6-10(D)(3), adopted pursuant to PUCO Case No. 06-1345-TP-ORD.

Crexendo Business Solutions, [nc.

u:fLeg Offic
@/’(%{th 52nd Stre
mpe, Arizona 85281

Telephone: (801) 227-0004
Facsimile: (801) 426-6712

Dated: . 7H s




EXHIBIT R - Explanation as to which service areas company currently has an approved interconnection
or resale agreement

The company has begun negotiations for an interconnection or resale agreement,



EXHIBIT S — A notarized affidavit accompanied by bona fide letters requesting negotiation pursuant to
Sections 251 and 252 of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and a proposed timeline for construction,
interconnection and offering of services to end users



AFFIDAVIT OF APPLICANT

Rt
State of Tempe ' )

s ) §8:
County of Aﬁzomi 7 )

I, Jeft Korn, being duly sworn, do hereby affirm that Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. has entered into
negotiations with AT&T Ohio.

'Mﬁf

¢ I;( Chief Leg orer
Crexghdo Business S lu ons, Inc.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this fre dayof _{ /.7 - ,2011.

Y
Ly
L :
, 7

e Y . i « Yl oul l W F ¥L'r {/
Notar3 Pubhc o

My commission expires:

¥, STACY FERNELIUS ALLRE

’ [} NOTARY PUBLIC+STATE OF UTAH
- BICoMMISSION® 800318

35527 COMM. EXP. 09-05-2014




ATAT Wholesale

311 'S, Akard, 9t Floor
Dallas, TX 75202

Fax 800 404-4548

May 26, 2011

Jeff Komn

Chief Legal Officer

Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.
1615 South 52 Street

Tempe, AZ 85251

Re: Crexendo Business Solutians, Inc.’s, Request to Negefiate
Dear Mr. Korn:

On May 20, 2011, AT&T received your letter of this same date, via facsimile, in which Crexendo Business
Solutions, Inc. (“Crexendo”} requested commencement of negotiations in compliance with our mutual good faith
obligations under the Telecommunications Act of 1996. Your letter states that Crexendo desires an Interconnection
Agreement in the State(s) of Arkansas, Michigan, and Ohio.

Please note that AT&T offers a separate Transit Traffic Service Agreement that is not a part of the Section 251/252
agreement or negotiations process. Negotiations for transiting rates, terms and conditions between AT&T and
Crexendo should take place independently of 251/252 negotiation and arbitration process.

Enclosed for your consideration are two copies of our Nondisclosure Agreement which covers those items that are
not subject to Sections 251, 252, 271, and/or any state law counterpart; or are not subject to any other provision of
the Communications Act of 1834, as amended (*Act”). Please sign both documents and return one original to me.

Thank you for including a copy of Crexende's cerfification in the States of Arkansas and Michigan, its registration
with the Secretary of State's office in Ohig and Michigan, and dacumentation of its ACNA.

In order o ensure that AT&T prepares the Interconnection Agreement accurately, please provide the following
ifems:

(1) Certification as a CLEC for Ohio.

(2) Registrafion with the Secretary of State's office in the State of Arkansas, showing its type of entity and company
name. Please ensure that the name on state certification, and the name registered with secretary of state’s office
are the same. Unfortunately, if they do not match AT&T will not be able to execute the Agreement.

(3} Documentation from NECA showing your company's Operafing Company Number(s) {OCN). OCNs are also
known as company codes and AECHs {Alternate Exchange Carrier Mumbers) and are company identifiers
assigned by the National Exchange Carrier Association (NECA). In accordance with the industry standards as
defined by NECA, AT&T requires Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (CLECs) wishing to conduct business in
any of the AT&T-owned ILEC territories 10 establish separate Operating Company Numbers (OCNs) for Resale
andfor Facility-Based OCNs prior to provisioning services under a Resale or Interconnection Agreement (ICA)
entered into with AT&T or any AT&T-Owned ILEC. You may contact NECA at the following address or website to
obtain an OCN.

80 South Jefferson Road

Whippany, NJ 07981-1009

(800) 228-8597

Fax; (973) 884-8469

hitp./fwww . neca.org/source/NECA_BusinessSolutions 4452.asp

(4) 'n addition, please complete the enclosed Confidential Credit Application and fax it to {(678) 966-2863.


http://www.neca.orQ/soufce/NECA

Please note that in responding to your request for negotiations under Sections 251/252 of the Act and providing any
proposed contract terms in connectian with this response or in our upcoming 251/252 negotiations, AT&T does not
waive, but instead expressly reserves, all of its rights, remedies, and arguments. Accordingly, AT&T reserves the
right to withdraw, revise or otherwise madify its proposed provisions prior to the provisions being incorporated into
an approved and effective interconnection agreement between the Parties.

Eric Peterson is the AT&T Lead Negotiator for Crexendo. He can be reached at 214-858-0716. Please address any
questions or concerns you may have to Mr. Peterson.

AT&T \ooks forward to working with you to meet your business needs.

Sigsarely,

IS NS

Bilf Bockekman
irector

Enciosures



CC.

Eric Peterson
Sandra Cetli
Ann Frye
Larry Thaxton
Paul Witbanks



EXHIBIT T — Explanation of whether applicant intends to provide Local Services which require
payment in advance of Customer receiving dial tone

Applicant does not intend to provide Local Services which require payment in advance of Customer receiving
dial tone.



EXHIBIT U — Tariff sheet(s) listing the services and associated charges that must be paid prior to
customer receiving dial tone (if applicable)

Not Applicable



EXHIBIT V ~ A sample copy of the customer bill and
Disconnection notice the applicant plans to utilize

See Attached



Sample Bill

Customer: [Insert Customer's Name]
Address: [Insert Address]

Account No.: [Insert account number or phone number]
Billing Date | Billing Period Date Due

CREXENDO BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, INC.
1615 South 52nd Street

Tempe, Arizona 85281

FOR BILLING INQUIRIES: 1-XXX-XXX-XXXX
FOR SERVICE INQUIRIES: 1-XXX-XXX-XXXX
www.crexendo.com

Description Rate Quantity Amount

Current Month's Charges

Credits applied to account:

Unpaid charges from previous bill:

Late payments:

Charges for regulated competitive service:

Non-Recurring, fractional or nonbasic service
charges:

Charges for nonregulated services or products:

Taxes and surcharges: [include summary]

9-1-1 charges:

An itemization of local and/or toll charges is
attached.

Total Due | S

Please remit this bill via U.S. Mail to the address listed on this invoice.

If your complaint is not resolved after you have called (name of the utility), or for general utility information,
residential and business customers may contact the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio for assistance at 1-800-
686-7826 (toll free) or for TTY at 1-800-686-1570 (toll free) from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. weekdays, or at
www.puco.ohio.gov.

Residential customers may also contact the Ohio Consumers’ Counsel for assistance with complaints and utility
issues at 1-877-742-5622 (toll free) from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. weekdays, or at www.pickocc.org.


http://www.crexendo.com
http://www.puco.ohio.gov
http://www.pickoccorg

ITEMIZATION OF CHARGES

Ttemization of local service charges:

e Toll charge per call —

Itemization of toll service charges:

Date and time
of placement

Destination
(City, State)

Telephone
Number
Called

Total Charge
per call (e.g.,
day, night /
weekend,
calling card)

Duration of
Call

Total Toll
Charges




RESIDENTIAL DISCONNECTION NOTICE

Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. June 269, 2011

Customer Name Account Number: xxxxxxxx

Address 1 Amount Past Due - to avoid disconnection: $xxxx.xx
Address 2 Minimum Amount Due - to maintain service: §xxxx.xx

City, State, Zip

This will serve as notice that Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. intends to disconnect your long distance
telephone service. Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. has decided to take this action, because it has not received
payment for services since [insert date]. The total amount past due is [insert amount]. Failure to pay the amount
required at the company's office or to one of its authorized agents by [insert date] may result in the
disconnection of toll services. Payments to an unauthorized payment agent may result in the untimely or
improper crediting of your account.

The reasons for disconnection of service are [insert reasons]. In order to avoid the disconnection, the subscriber
must take the following action [insert action taken and amount of payment to be made which is not greater than
past due balance, not including nonregulated services]. The earliest date when disconnection will oceur is
[insert date]. A reconnection fee may apply.

Please note that the total amount due for toll charges is [insert figure]. [If applicable — The total amount due for
nonregulated charges is [insert figure]. However, nonpayment of nonregulated charges cannot result in the
disconnection of local service or regulated toll service.]

If you wish to contact Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. to discuss your account, please call or send all
correspondence to:

Patricia Creviston, Customer Support Manager

Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.

1615 South 52nd Street Phone: (801) 234-5988

Tempe, Arizona 85281 Hours: 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. EST

If you have a complaint in regard to this disconnection notice that cannot be resolved after you have called
Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc., or for general utility information, residential and business customers may
contact the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio for assistance at 1-800-686-7826 (toll free) or for TTY at 1-
800-686-1570 (toll free) from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. weekdays, or at www.puco.ohio.gov.

Residential customers may also contact the Ohio Consumers® Counsel for assistance with complaints and
utility issues at 1-877-742-5622 (toll free) from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. weekdays, or at www.pickocc.org.


http://www.puco.ohio.gov
http://www.pickoccorg

NON-RESIDENTIAL DISCONNECTION NOTICE

Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. June 29, 2011

Customer Name Account Number: xxxxxxxx

Address 1 Amount Past Due - to avoid disconnection: $xxxx.xx
Address 2 Minimum Amount Due - to maintain service: $xxxx.xx

City, State, Zip

This will serve as notice that Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. intends to disconnect your long distance
telephone service, Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. has decided to take this action, because it has not received
payment for services since [insert date]. The total amount past due is [insert amount]. Failure to pay the amount
required at the company's office or to one of its authorized agents by [insert date] may result in the
disconnection of toll services. Payments to an unauthorized payment agent may result in the untimely or
improper crediting of your account.

The reasons for disconnection of service are [insert reasons]. In order to avoid the disconnection, the subscriber
must take the following action [insert action taken and amount of payment to be made which is not greater than
past due balance, not including nonregulated services]. The earliest date when disconnection will occur is
[insert date]. A reconnection fee may apply.

Please note that the total amount due for toll charges is [insert figure]. [If applicable - The total amount due for
nonregulated charges is [insert figure]. However, nonpayment of nonregulated charges cannot result in the
disconnection of local service or regulated toll service.]

If you wish to contact Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. to discuss your account, please call or send all
correspondence to:

Patricia Creviston, Customer Support Manager

Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.

1615 South 52nd Street Phone: (801) 234-5988

Tempe, Arizona 85281 Hours: 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. EST

If you have a complaint in regard to this disconnection notice that cannot be resolved after you have called
Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc., or for general utility information, residential and business customers may
contact the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio for assistance at 1-800-686-7826 (toll free) or for TTY at 1-
800-686-1570 (toll free) from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. weekdays, or at www.puco.ohio.gov.


http://www.puco.ohio.gov

EXHIBIT W- Provide a copy of any customer application form
required in order to establish residential service, if applicable



Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.
1615 South 52nd Street
Tempe, Arizona 85281
Letter of Agency & Service Agreement
“or each of the telephone numbers listed herein, | appoint Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc., to act as my agent in order to
sffectuate the collection of account information and/or carry out the changes authorized herein on my behalf. | understand that |
nay select a separate IntralLATA toll carrier and InterLATA carrier for any one t{elephone number.

hereby authorize the change of my communications company(s) from that/those, which | am currenily using, to Crexendo
3usiness Soluticns, Inc. for each of the service types | have designated below.

[ understand that by signing this letter of agency my signature shall unblock my carrier of choice service protection to make the
shange in long distance service possible. | also understand that | may incur a fee to switch my telephone service to Crexendo
3usginess Solutions, Inc.- | further understand that | may designate only one carrier per service for any one telephone number,
ind therefore revoke any previous appointments or selections concerning that telephone numbers listed below.

Yease designate the telecommunications services for the telephone numbers listed below by marking the appropriate hoxes:

INTERLATA / INTERSTATE / INTERNATIONAL D

INTRALATA ]
-ocal Exchange Services Only
authorize disclosure to Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. of my account information, including my account billing name, billing address,
firectory listing, service address, and my customer proprietary network information, including service and feature subscription, long distance
:arrier identity, and pending service order activity. Please designate the telecommunications services for the telephone numbers listed below
»y marking the appropriate boxes:

LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES 1

This agreement will remain in effect until revoked in writing by the customer or Crexendo
Business Solutions, Inc.

| select Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. to provide the communications service types indicated for each of the telephone
numbers listed herein.  {List all telepbone numbers, including any toll-free numbers)

N

Name

Address

City State Zip
Contact Phone

Your signature acknowledges that you understand and accept the terms and conditions of this L.O.A. and that YOU ARE
DULY AUTHORIZED TO MAKE THE CHANGES(S) INDICATED BY EXECUTING THIS L.O.A

Customer Acceptance Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.

Signature

Printed Name

Title

[

Date




EXHIBIT X- For CLECs, List of Qhio ILEC Exchanges the applicant intends to serve (Use spreadsheet
from: http://www.puc.state.oh.us/puco/forms/form.cfm?doc_id=357)

Registrant intends to provide interexchange service on a statewide basis and local service in the attached list of
Local Ohio exchanges:


http://www.puc.state.oh.us/Duco/forms/form.cfmVdoc

Company Name:

Cettificate Number:

Crexendo Business Solutions, Ing.

Select Only AT&T Ohio

Designate Proposed Market Area (PMA) by putting an "X" in appropriate boxes

| ILEC ‘ COUNTY EXCHANGE. . PMA
AT&T Ohio ADAMS Winchester X
ATS&T Chio ATHENS Nelsonville X
ATE&T Ohio BELMONT Barnesville X
AT&T Ohio BELMONT Bellaire X
AT&T Ohig BELMONT Bethesda X
AT&T Ghio BELMONT Martins Ferry-Bridgeport |X
AT&T Ohio BELMONT Somerton X
AT&T Chio BELMONT St. Clairsville X
AT&T Ohio BROWN Aberdeen X
AT&T Ohio BROWN Ripley X
AT&T Ohig BUTLER Middletown X
AT&T Ohio BUTLER Monroe X
AT&T Ohio BUTLER Trenton X
AT&T Ghio CHAMPAIGN Christiansburg X
AT&T Chio CLARK Dannelsville X
ATE&T Ohio CLARK Enon X
AT&T Chip CLARK Medway X
ATAT Ohio CLARK New Carlisle X
AT&T Ohio CLARK North Hampton X
AT&T Ohio CLARK Pitchin X
AT&T Chio CLARK South Charleston X
AT&T Ohio CLARK South Vienna X
AT&T Ohio CLARK Springfield X
AT&T Ohio CLARK Tremont City X
AT&T Ohio COLUMBIANA Columbiana X
AT&T Ohio COLUMBIANA East Liverpool X
AT&T Chio COLUMBIANA East Palestine X
AT&T Chio COLUMBIANA Lestonia X
AT&T Ohio COLUMEBIANA Lisbon X
AT&T Chio COLUMBIANA New Waterford X
AT&T Ohio COLUMBIANA Rogers X
ATET Chio COLUMBIANA Salem X
AT&T Ohio COLUMBIANA Salineville X
AT&T Ohio COLUMBIANA Wellsville X
AT&T Chio COSHOCTON Conesville X
AT&T Ohio COSHOCTON Coshocton X
ATE&T Ohio COSHOCTON West Lafayette X
AT&T Ohio CUYAHOGA Bedford X
AT&T QOhio CUYAHOGA Berea X
AT&T Ohio CUYAHOGA Brecksville X
AT&T Ohio CUYAHOGA Chagrin Falls X
AT&T Ohio CUYAHOGA Cleveland X
AT&T Ohio CUYAHOGA Gates Mills X
AT&T Qhio CUYAHOGA Hillcrest X
AT&T Ohio CUYAHOGA independence X




AT&T Ohio CUYAHOGA Montrose [CUY]
AT&T Ohio CUYAHOGA North Royalton
AT&T Chio CUYAHOGA Olmsted Falls
AT&T Ohio CUYAHOGA Strongsville
ATA&T Ohio CUYAHOCGA Terrace
AT&T Chio CUYAHOGA Trinity

ATA&T Ohio CUYAHOGA Victory

AT&T Ohio ERIE Bloomingvifle
[AT&T Ohio ERIE Castalia
ATAT Chio ERIE Sandusky
ATAT Ohio FAIRFIELD Carroll

AT&T Ohio FAIRFIELD Lancaster
ATE&T Ohio FAIRFIELD Rushville
AT&T Ohio FAIRFIELD Sugar Grove
ATAT Ohio FAYETTE Bloominghburg
ATAT Ohio FAYETTE Jeffersonville
ATE&T Ohio FAYETTE Milledgeville
AT&T Ohio FAYETTE Washington Court House
[AT&T Ohio FRANKLIN Alton

ATE&T Chio FRANKLIN Canal Winchester
AT&T Ohio FRANKLIN Columbus
AT&T Ohio FRANKLIN Dublin

ATAT Chio FRANKLIN Gahanna
AT&T Ohio FRANKLIN Grove City
AT&T Chio FRANKLIN Groveport
AT&T Chio FRANKLIN Harrisburg
AT&T Ohio FRANKLIN Hilltiard

AT&T Ohio FRANKLIN Lockbourne
AT&T Ohio FRANKLIN New Albany
AT&T Ohio FRANKLIN Reynoldsburg
AT&T Chio FRANKLIN Westerville
AT&T Qhio FRANKLIN Worthington
ATET Ohio GALLIA Cheshire
AT&T Ohio GALLIA Gallipolis
ATE&T Ohio GALLIA Guyan

AT&T Ohio GALLIA Rio Grande
AT&T Chio GALLIA Vinton

ATA&T Qhio GALLIA Walnut

AT&T Ohic GEAUGA Burton

AT&T Ohio GEAUGA Chesterland
AT&T Ohio GREENE Beavercreek
AT&T Ohic GREENE Bellbrook
AT&T Ohio GREENE Bowersville
ATET Ohio GREENE Cedarville
AT&T Ohio GREENE Fairborn
AT&T Ohio GREENE Jamestown
AT&T Ohio GREENE Spring Valley
AT&T Ohio GREENE Xenia

AT&T Ohio GREENE Yellow Springs-Clifton
AT&T QChio HANCOCK Findlay

AT&T Ohio HIGHLAND Belfast

AT&T Ohio HIGHLAND Danville [HIG]
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AT&T Ohio HIGHLAND Hillsboro
AT&T Ohio HIGHLAND Marshall
AT&T Ohio HIGHLAND Rainsboro
AT&T Ohio HIGHLAND Sugar Tree Ridge
AT&T Ohio HOCKING Murray City
AT&T Ohio JEFFERSON Minga Junction
AT&T Ohio JEFFERSON Steubenville
AT&T Ohio JEFFERSON Taronto

ATE&T Ohio LAKE Leroy

AT&T Ohio LAKE Mentor

AT&T Ohio LAKE Painesville
AT&T Ohio LAKE Wickliffe
AT&T Ohio LAKE Willoughby
AT&T Ohio LAWRENCE Arabia

AT&T Ohio LAWRENCE Ironton

ATE&T Ohio LUCAS Holland

ATE&T Chio LUCAS Maumee
AT&T Ohic LUCAS Toledo

AT&T Ohic LUCAS Whitehouse
AT&T Dhio MADISON London

ATE&T Ohio MADISON Sedalia

AT&T Ohio MADISON Scuth Solon
AT&T Ohio MADISON West Jefferson
AT&T Qhio MAHONING Canfield

ATE&T Ohie MAHONING Lowellville
AT&T Ohio MAHQONING North Jackson
AT&T Chio MAHONING North Lima
AT&T Ohio MAHONING Sebring

ATE&T Ohio MAHONING Youngstown
AT&T Chio MIAMI Fletcher-Lena
AT&T Chio MIAMI Pigua

[AT&T Ohio MONROE Beallsville
ATET Chio MONROE Clarington
AT&T Chio MONROE Duffy

ATE&T Chio MONROE Graysville
ATE&T Chio MONROE Lewisville
AT&T Chio MONROE Woodsfield
AT&T Ohio MONTGOMERY Centerville [MOT]
AT&T Chio MONTGOMERY Dayton

ATET Ohio MONTGOMERY Miamisburg-W.Carrollton
AT&T Chio MONTGOMERY Vandalia
AT&T Chio MUSKINGUM Dresden
AT&T Chig MUSKINGUM Fultonham
AT&T Ohio MUSKINGUM Norwich

ATE&T Ohio MUSKINGUM Philo

ATE&T Chio MUSKINGUM Zanasville
ATE&T Ohio PERRY Corning

AT&T Chio PERRY Glenford
AT&T Ohio PERRY New Lexington
ATE&T Ohio PERRY Roseville
AT&T Ohio PERRY Shawnee
AT&T Qhio PERRY Somerset
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ATET Ohio PERRY Thornville

AT&T Ohio PICKAWAY New Holland
AT&T Ohio PORTAGE Atwater

AT&T Ohio PORTAGE Kent

AT&T Ohio PORTAGE Mantua

ATE&T Ohio PORTAGE Mogadore
ATET Ohio PORTAGE Ravenna

AT&T Ohio PORTAGE Rootstown
AT&T Ohio SANDUSKY Fremont

AT&T Ohio SANDUSKY Lindsey

ATE&T Ohio SENECA Fostoria

AT&T Ohio SENECA New Riegel
AT&T Ohio SENECA Tiffin

AT&T Ohio STARK Alliance

AT&T Ohic STARK Canal Fulton
AT&T Ohio STARK Canton

AT&T Chio STARK Hartville

AT&T Ohio STARK Louisville

ATET Chio STARK Magnolia-Waynesburg
ATE&T Chio STARK Marlboro

AT&T Chio STARK Massilion

AT&T Chio STARK Navarre

ATE&T Chio STARK North Canton
AT&T Ghio STARK Uniontown
ATE&T Ohio SUMMIT Akron

AT&T Ohio SUMMIT Greensburg
AT&T Ohio SUMMIT Manchester [SUM]
AT&T Ohio TRUMBLUILL Girard

AT&T Ohio TRUMBULL Hubbard

AT&T Ohio TRUMBULL Kirtland

AT&T Ohio TRUMBULL Niles

AT&T Ohio TRUMBULL Sharon

AT&T Dhio TUSCARAWAS Gnadenhutten
AT&T Ohio TUSCARAWAS Newcomerstown
AT&T Ohio TUSCARAWAS Uhrichsville
ATAT Ohio WARREN Franklin

AT&T Ohio WASHINGTON Belpre

AT&T Ohio WASHINGTON Marietta

ATAT Chio WASHINGTON New Matamoras
AT&T Ohio WASHINGTON Newport

ATE&T Ohio WAYNE Dalton

ATE&T Chio WOOD Perryshurg
AT&T Chio WYANDOT Upper Sandusky

X
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EXHIBIT Y- If Mirroring the entire ILEC exchanges for both serving area and local calling areas,
tariffs may incorporate by reference. If not mirroring the entire ILEC serving and/or local
calling areas, the CLEC shall specifically define their service and local calling areas in the
tariff.

Exchange areas offered by the Company can be found on the Company’s website at www.crexendo.com.


http://www.crexendo.com

EXHIBIT Z - WELCOME LETTER



Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.
Confirmation of Services Ordered

BAN; xx300Xxxx Service Order Number: xxxxxx
Telephone Number: xxx-xxx-xxxx Invoice Date: xx/xx/xx
Purchase Order:

[Date of letter]
Dear Customer,

We recently processed an order to either: (1) set up your new Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. aceount, or (2) add or
remove services from your existing Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. Service account. As confirmation of your
recent order, you will find your new list of services on the following page. Please review this information for accuracy. If
you believe that this does not accurately reflect the service(s) you ordered, you should contact us immediately or no later
than thirty days from the date of this letier, at our Customer Contact Center:

1-800-xxx-4099 (Residential customers)
1-800-xx¢-4102 (Business customers)
1-800-xxx-1410 (High-Speed Internet customers)
1-888-xxx-7313 (D1al-Up Internet customers)
Customer Service Hours are Manday-Friday 8am-5pm

If you prefer to send your correspondence by mail, please write o:

Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc.
Attn: Customer Service
1615 South 52nd Street
Tempe, Arizona 85281

You can also send us your questions via email by visiting our website at: www.crexendo.com

If you have a complaint that is not resolved after you have called our contact center, or for general utility information,
residential and business customers may call the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (PUCO) toll free at 1-800-686-7826
or for TTY at 1-800-686-1570 from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. weekdays, or visit www.puco.ohio.gov.

Residential customers may also contact the Ohio Consumers' Counsel for assistance with complaints and utility issues at
[-877-742-5622 (toll free) from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. weekdays, or visit www.pickocc.org,

Thank you for choosing Crexendo Business Solutions, Inc. as vour telecomumunications provider!


http://www.crexendo.com
http://www.puco.ohio.gov
http://www.pickoccorg

N
XXX X<Account Name> XXX XXX XXX

—
= XA XX <Account Address>X XXX XXXX
= XXXXXXXXKXXXXXKXXXXXXXXXK
= XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXK

), 9.9.9:6.0.0.9.9.9.9.0.9:9.9.9.0.9:9.9.9.0.9.9.0.¢

THIS IS NOT A BILL. PLEASE DO NOT PAY.

Description Quantity Rate
1 Pty Residence Line | XXXX
Call Waiting — Residence 1 XXXX
Caller ID Number/Name-Res 1 XAXX
Local Number Portability 1 XXXX
Non-Published Number 1 XXXX
Subscriber Line Charge- Inter 1 XXX
Touchtone-Res 1 XXXX
E 911 1 XXXX
Total Monthly Charges * XXXX
Secondary Service Order Charge Res 1 XXXX
Total One-time Charges XXXX
Installation Instaliment 1

*Total Monthly Charges does may not include applicable taxes and surcharges for your area, which may be state, federal
and local taxes in the range 5-7%.



